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VISION AND MISSION STATEMENT

VISION

To be the leading provider of industry- specific 
consul�ng and so�ware solu�ons trusted by 
the Public and Private Sectors

MISSION

To con�nually develop high quality, high- 
performing solu�ons that solve prac�cal 
business problems and are easy and cost- 
effec�ve to use
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COMPANY INFORMATION

BOARD OF DIRECTORS

Mr. Imran Zaid Chairman/ Independent Director
Ms. Javeria Malik Independent Director
Ms. Sana Malik Non-Execu�ve Director
Mr. Muhammad Faheem Qureshi Non-Execu�ve Director
Ms. Azra Perveen Non-Execu�ve  Director
Mr. Muhammad Sheraz Execu�ve Director
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CHIEF FINANCIAL OFFICER
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EXTERNAL AUDITORS
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SHARE REGISTRAR

M/S. Corplink (Private) Limited                 
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REGISTERED OFFICE 

623 B PCSIR II, Lahore.
Web : www.itanztechnologies.com

REGIONAL OFFICE 
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Technology Park, Karachi.

BANKERS

Dubai Islamic Bank Limited.
MCB Bank Limited.
Al Baraka Bank (Pakistan) Limited.
Standard Chartered Bank (Pakistan) Limited

COMPANY REGISTRATION NUMBER
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NOTICE OF ANNUAL GENERAL MEETING

No�ce is hereby given that Annual General Mee�ng of the Members of ITANZ Technologies Limited, formerly Zahur Co�on Mills 
Limited (the "Company") will be held on Tuesday, 25 November 2025 at 10:00 a.m. at LSE Auditorium, Basement-2, LSE Plaza, 19 
Khayaban-e-Aiwan-e-Iqbal, Lahore, Pakistan to transact the following business:

1. To confirm the minutes of Annual General Mee�ng of the Company held on 28 October 2024.

2. To receive, consider and adopt the audited financial statements of the Company for the financial year ended 30 June 2025,
together with the Directors' and Auditors' Reports thereon and Chairman's Review Report.

3. To appoint the Statutory Auditors for the year ending 30 June 2026 and to fix their remunera�on. The Board of Directors on the
recommenda�on of Audit Commi�ee has recommended the re-appointment of re�ring auditors, Alam & Aulakh, Chartered
Accountants who being eligible have offered themselves for re-appointment.

4. To transact any other business with the permission of the Chair.

By order of the Board

Muhammad Faheem Qureshi
Company Secretary

04 November 2025
Lahore

NOTES:

1. The Share Transfer Books of the Company will remain closed for the period from 19 November 2025 to 25 November 2025
(both days inclusive). Transfers received in order at the Office of Company's Share Registrar, F.D. Registrar Services
(Private) Limited, 17th Floor, Saima Trade Tower-A, I.I. Chundrigar Road, Karachi. ("Registrar") at the close of business on
18 November 2025 will be considered in �me to a�end and vote at the Mee�ng.

2. the financial statements of the Company can also be accessed through the following weblink and QR enabled code:

Weblink QR Code

Further, any member may request a hard copy of Annual Report free of cost and in this respect standard request form is 
available at the website of the Company www.itanztechnologies.com for convenience of members.

3. A member of the Company en�tled to a�end and vote at the General Mee�ng may appoint another member as his/her proxy
to a�end and vote in place of him/her at the mee�ng. Proxies in order to be effec�ve must be received at the Registered Office
of the Company, duly stamped and signed, not less than 48 hours before the �me of mee�ng. A proxy must be a member of the
Company. Proxy Forms in Urdu and English languages are a�ached to the no�ce circulated to the shareholders.

4. In pursuance of Circular No. 4 of 2021 dated 15 February 2021 issued by the Securi�es and Exchange Commission of Pakistan,
the member shall also be en�tled to a�end the mee�ng through video link facility a�er comple�ng verifica�on and
iden�fica�on requirements. Members interested in a�ending this mee�ng through video link facility are requested to register
themselves by submi�ng the following par�culars at email address amin.shakir@itanzgroup.com before close of business
(i.e. 05:00 pm) on 24 November 2025.

Name
CNIC no. / Passport no. (in case of
foreigner)*

Folio no. /CDC
Account no.

Mobile no. and
email address

No. of shares held

* Please also a�ach legible scanned copy of CNIC/Passport (in case of foreigner).

Registra�on request must be sent through email address available/registered with the Company i.e. provided by CDC in case of 
shares held in book entry form in CDS or available with the Company in case of shares held in physical form.

The Company will send the link of video facility and other relevant informa�on to respec�ve members in order to enable them to 
access the video facility and a�end this mee�ng. Please note that requirements of note 5 below shall be followed in the case of proxy 
/ representa�ve of a corporate body and link of video facility shall only be sent upon receipt of original documents

It is clarified that members a�ending this mee�ng by availing above facility shall only vote through postal ballot (if required) in 
accordance with the relevant requirements.

5. The CDC Account Holders will further have to follow the undermen�oned guidelines as laid down by the Securi�es and 
Exchange Commission of Pakistan.

A. For a�ending the mee�ng

i. In case of individuals, the account holders and/or sub-account holders whose registra�on details are uploaded as per the 
CDC Regula�ons, shall authen�cate his/her iden�ty by showing his/her original CNIC or Passport at the �me of a�ending 
the mee�ng.

ii. In case of corporate en�ty, the Board of Directors' resolu�on/power of a�orney with specimen signature of the nominee 
shall be produced (unless it has been provided earlier) at the �me of the mee�ng.

B. For appoin�ng proxies

i. In case of individuals, the account holders and/or sub-account holders whose registra�on details are uploaded as per the 
CDC Regula�ons, shall submit the proxy form as per the above requirements.

ii. The proxy form shall be witnessed by two persons whose names, addresses and CNIC numbers shall be men�oned on the 
form.

iii. A�ested copies of CNIC or the passport of the beneficial owner and the proxy shall be furnished with the proxy form.

iv. The proxy shall produce his/her original CNIC or original Passport at the �me of mee�ng.

v. In case of corporate en�ty, Board of Directors' resolu�on/power of a�orney with specimen signature shall be submi�ed 
(unless it has been provided earlier) along with proxy form to the Company.

6. Members can exercise their right to demand a poll subject to mee�ng requirements of Sec�on 143 -145 of Companies Act, 
2017 and applicable clauses of Companies (Postal Ballot) Regula�ons 2018.

7. If the Company receives consent from the members holding at least 10% shareholding residing in a city, to par�cipate in the 
mee�ng through video-link at least seven (7) days prior to date of the mee�ng, the Company will arrange facility of video-link 
in that city subject to availability of such facility in that city.

8. No gi�s will be distributed at the mee�ng.

9. As per Sec�on 72 of the Companies Act, 2017, every exis�ng listed company shall be required to replace its physical shares 
with book-entry form in a manner as may be specified and from the date no�fied by the Commission, within a period not 
exceeding four years from the commencement of the Act, i.e. 30 May 2017.

The shareholders having physical shareholding are encouraged to open CDC sub-account with any of the brokers or Investor 
Account directly with CDC to place their physical shares into scrip less form, this will facilitate them in many ways, including 
safe custody and sale of shares, any �me they want, as the trading of physical shares is not permi�ed as per exis�ng regula�ons 
of the Pakistan Stock Exchange Limited.

10. To ensure compliance with the SECP No�fica�on SRO 831(1)2012 dated 05 July 2012 read with No�fica�on SRO 19(1)2014 
dated 10 January 2014, all members who have not yet submi�ed their valid CNIC/NTN/Dividend Mandate (bank account 
detail i.e. Name and Address of Bank and IBAN), are hereby once again requested to submit the same without further delay.

11. Members are requested to promptly no�fy the Company of any change in their registered address.

12. For any query/ informa�on, the investors may contact the Shares Registrar and / or the Company: Mr. Muhammad Amin 
Shakir, Phone No. 92 300 8416505, email address: amin.shakir@itanzgroup.com.

h�ps://itanztechnologies.com/annual-report-2025.pdf
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REVIEW REPORT BY THE CHAIRPERSON
ON THE OVERALL PERFORMANCE OF THE BOARD AND EFFECTIVENESS
OF THE ROLE PLAYED BY THE BOARD IN ACHIEVING THE COMPANY'S
OBJECTIVES

The Board of Directors of ITANZ Technologies Limited (the "Company") has diligently fulfilled its responsibili�es in safeguarding the 
interests of shareholders and ensuring the effec�ve and efficient management of the Company's affairs. The Board exercised its 
powers in full compliance with the Companies Act, 2017 and the Listed Companies (Code of Corporate Governance) Regula�ons, 
2019, and remained steadfast in its commitment to maintaining the highest standards of governance and transparency.

During the financial year 2024-25, the Board ac�vely contributed to the achievement of the Company's strategic objec�ves through 
the following key ac�ons:

Ÿ Provided guidance in the formula�on and monitoring of the Company's strategic plans, enterprise risk management framework, 
and financial structure, while ensuring sound policy development and oversight.

Ÿ Considered and approved all significant ma�ers placed before it or its commi�ees during the year, thereby strengthening the 
corporate decision-making process. In par�cular, all related party transac�ons were reviewed and approved by the Board based 
on the Audit Commi�ee's recommenda�ons.

Ÿ Reviewed the effec�veness of internal controls through self-assessment and internal audit mechanisms.

Ÿ Approved the Director's Report, quarterly, and annual financial statements, ensuring their compliance with applicable laws and 
regula�ons.

Ÿ Oversaw the recruitment, evalua�on, and compensa�on of key professionals, with a con�nued focus on fostering an inclusive 
work environment offering equal opportuni�es to all employees.

Ÿ Ensured the �mely dissemina�on of informa�on among Board members and that Directors were regularly updated on significant 
developments between mee�ngs.

Ÿ Exercised its powers responsibly within the framework prescribed by law, upholding principles of good governance, integrity, and 
accountability in all decisions.

Ÿ Ensured that comprehensive Board agendas and suppor�ng materials were circulated well in advance of mee�ngs to enable 
informed decision-making. Both non-execu�ve and independent directors ac�vely par�cipated in discussions and contributed to 
major decisions of the Board.

The annual Board performance evalua�on was conducted based on key governance and strategic oversight criteria, including the 
clarity of strategic direc�on, effec�veness of risk management, quality of informa�on flows, and overall Board dynamics. Based on 
this assessment, it can be affirmed that the Board of ITANZ Technologies Limited has performed its du�es effec�vely and played a 
pivotal role in ensuring that the Company's objec�ves were achieved through close collabora�on with management, prudent 
oversight, and strategic guidance.

Chairperson

Lahore
27 October 2025
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DIRECTORS' REPORT TO THE SHAREHOLDERS

On behalf of Board of Directors of ITANZ Technologies Limited (formerly Zahur Co�on Mills Limited) (the "Company") we are pleased 
to present The Company's Annual Report 2025 accompanied by Audited Financial Statements for the year ended 30 June 2025 and 
Independent Auditor's Report thereon.

The accompanying financial statements have been endorsed by the Chief Execu�ve Officer and the Chief Financial Officer having 
been recommended for approval by the Audit Commi�ee of the Board and approved by the Board of Directors for issue and 
presenta�on to the stakeholders.

PRINCIPAL ACTIVITIES, KEY DEVELOPMENTS AND PERFORMANCE

The Company is engaged in rendering services in the field of Informa�on Technology and IT enables services including so�ware 
development, installa�on and implementa�on and other IT related supplies and services with majority of the revenue coming from 
export of these services.

Amalgama�on under Scheme of Arrangement

The Honourable Lahore High Court ('LHC') vide its order dated 24 March 2025, approved the Scheme of Arrangement for merger of 
the Company and ITANZ Technology (Private) Limited ('ITPL'), wherein it was proposed to merge ITPL with and into the Company 
with effect from 01 October 2023. Consequently, all assets, liabili�es, contracts, licenses, obliga�ons, and undertakings of ITPL stand 
transferred to and vested in the Company as at the effec�ve date against allotment and issue of ordinary shares in the Company to 
shareholders of ITPL with ITPL dissolved without winding up. 

In accordance with the scheme, the authorized share capital of the Company has increased from Rs. 200 million comprising 
20,000,000 ordinary shares of Rs. 10 each to Rs. 1,200 million, comprising 120,000,000 ordinary shares of Rs. 10 each, to 
accommodate the shares to be issued under the share swap arrangement.

As considera�on for the merger, the Company will issue 97,961,500 fully paid ordinary shares to the shareholders of ITPL. Following 
the issuance, the Company's paid-up share capital will increase to 107,821,500 ordinary shares. The valua�on and share exchange 
ra�o were determined based on a valua�on report issued by an independent valuer.

Post-merger, the business ac�vi�es previously carried out by ITPL con�nued as an integral part of the Company's opera�ons, under 
the name and pla�orm of the Company, without any disrup�on. Therefore, consequent to approval of scheme of arrangement, the 
principal line of business has been amended to include rendering/providing consultancy services in the field of Informa�on 
Technology and IT enables services including so�ware development, installa�on and implementa�on and other IT related supplies 
and services.  Further, pursuant to the provisions of Sec�on 13 of the Companies Act, 2017 read with regula�on 6 of the Companies' 
regula�ons, the name of the Company has been changed to ITANZ Technologies Limited.

IT Export Services in Pakistan

Pakistan's Informa�on Technology and IT-enabled Services sector con�nues to demonstrate strong and sustained growth, 
establishing itself as one of the country's most promising export domains. The sector's contribu�on to Pakistan's overall services 
exports has expanded significantly, driven by rising global demand for so�ware development, business process outsourcing, and 
digital transforma�on solu�ons.

During FY 2024-25, exports of telecommunica�on, computer and informa�on services reached an all-�me high of US$ 3.8 billion, 
reflec�ng a robust year-on-year growth of around 18 % compared to US$ 3.2 billion in the preceding year. This record performance 
underscores the increasing global compe��veness of Pakistani IT companies and their growing reputa�on for delivering high-
quality, cost-effec�ve technology solu�ons. Notably, IT exports now account for nearly 45 % of Pakistan's total services exports, 
highligh�ng the sector's rising strategic importance in the na�onal economy.

The industry's momentum has been supported by a large pool of skilled professionals, compe��ve cost structures and the 
con�nued expansion of Pakistan's technology ecosystem. The government's suppor�ve policy framework, including tax incen�ves 
on export income and the establishment of Special Technology Zones, has further enhanced the country's a�rac�veness for IT 
exports.

Infrastructure investments such as the development of new IT parks in Islamabad, Karachi, and Lahore, improved broadband 
connec�vity, and public-private partnerships for skills development are reinforcing the founda�ons for long-term growth. The 
increasing adop�on of cloud compu�ng, ar�ficial intelligence, and so�ware-as-a-service (SaaS) models is crea�ng addi�onal 
opportuni�es for export-oriented technology companies.

Review of financial performance

2025
Rupees

2024
Rupees

YoY
%

441,520,529 338,903,402

142,830,810 130,595,048

52,364,406 40,302,975

268,206,163 162,743,710

344,836,478 158,320,505

Revenue

Direct cost

Opera�ng expenses

Profit before income taxes

Profit a�er income taxes

Basic earnings per share 34.97 16.06

30.28

9.37

29.93

64.80

117.81
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The financial results for the year ended 30 June 2025 reflect another strong year of performance, primarily driven by the Company's 
con�nued focus on so�ware development and implementa�on projects, and business process outsourcing services to interna�onal 
clients. Total revenue increased by 30.28% to Rs. 441.52 million, compared to Rs. 338.90 million in the preceding year. The growth 
was largely a�ributable to higher export sales, which remain the dominant component of the Company's revenue mix.

Direct costs increased by 9.37% to Rs. 142.83 million (2024: Rs. 130.60 million), mainly due to higher subscrip�on expenses and IT 
consul�ng services procured from external specialists to support complex overseas projects. Despite this increase, gross margins 
improved as revenue growth outpaced the rise in costs, reflec�ng efficient project execu�on and disciplined cost control.

Opera�ng expenses rose by 29.93% to Rs. 52.36 million (2024: Rs. 40.30 million), primarily due to one-off costs incurred during the 
year. These included the fee payable to the Securi�es and Exchange Commission of Pakistan in connec�on with the increase in 
authorized share capital from Rs. 200 million (20,000,000 ordinary shares of Rs. 10 each) to Rs. 1,200 million (120,000,000 ordinary 
shares of Rs. 10 each), as well as higher legal and professional charges related to the merger of ITANZ Technology (Private) Limited 
with the Company.

As a result of higher revenues and prudent financial management, profit before income tax grew by 64.80% to Rs. 268.21 million, 
while profit a�er tax more than doubled to Rs. 344.84 million, represen�ng an impressive 117.81% year-on-year increase. The 
significant rise in profitability reflects strong export performance and opera�onal leverage.

Future Outlook

In line with the na�onal trend, the Company con�nues to play an ac�ve role in strengthening Pakistan's IT export base through the 
development and delivery of customized so�ware solu�ons for interna�onal clients. By maintaining high technical standards, 
adop�ng agile development frameworks, and ensuring compliance with interna�onal quality benchmarks, the Company has built 
long-term rela�onships with stakeholders and contributed to the country's foreign exchange earnings.

Despite the challenging global environment, the outlook for Pakistan's IT exports remains highly posi�ve. Sustained government 
support, a growing freelancer community, and con�nued demand for digital solu�ons from interna�onal clients are expected to 
keep the upward trajectory intact.

The management remains commi�ed to further expanding export opera�ons by diversifying service offerings, targe�ng new 
industry ver�cals, and inves�ng in advanced technologies such as data analy�cs, AI-driven applica�ons, and automa�on pla�orms. 
These ini�a�ves are expected to enhance the Company's global compe��veness while aligning with Pakistan's broader vision of 
establishing itself as a regional hub for digital innova�on and technology exports.

Earnings per share

Basic earnings per share of the Company for the year ended 30 June 2025 amounts Rs. 34.97 per share. Diluted earnings per share 
a�er considering the impact of ordinary shares to be issued under the scheme of amalgama�on comes out to Rs. 3.20 per share.

Dividends

In line with the future business plans of the Company and resul�ng reinvestment of profits, the Board of Directors do not 
recommend any dividend.

Debt servicing

The Company remained current in its debt servicing the throughout the year ended 30 June 2025.

CORPORATE SOCIAL RESPONSIBILITY

The Company firmly believes that Corporate Social Responsibility (CSR) is an integral part of sustainable business prac�ce. It 
con�nuously strives to create a posi�ve impact on the communi�es directly or indirectly influenced by its opera�ons. Through its 
CSR ini�a�ves, the Company aims to contribute meaningfully to social development, promote educa�on and technology 
awareness, and support ini�a�ves that enhance the well-being of society at large.
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DIRECTORS' REPORT TO THE SHAREHOLDERS

On behalf of Board of Directors of ITANZ Technologies Limited (formerly Zahur Co�on Mills Limited) (the "Company") we are pleased 
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Independent Auditor's Report thereon.
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presenta�on to the stakeholders.

PRINCIPAL ACTIVITIES, KEY DEVELOPMENTS AND PERFORMANCE
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Post-merger, the business ac�vi�es previously carried out by ITPL con�nued as an integral part of the Company's opera�ons, under 
the name and pla�orm of the Company, without any disrup�on. Therefore, consequent to approval of scheme of arrangement, the 
principal line of business has been amended to include rendering/providing consultancy services in the field of Informa�on 
Technology and IT enables services including so�ware development, installa�on and implementa�on and other IT related supplies 
and services.  Further, pursuant to the provisions of Sec�on 13 of the Companies Act, 2017 read with regula�on 6 of the Companies' 
regula�ons, the name of the Company has been changed to ITANZ Technologies Limited.

IT Export Services in Pakistan

Pakistan's Informa�on Technology and IT-enabled Services sector con�nues to demonstrate strong and sustained growth, 
establishing itself as one of the country's most promising export domains. The sector's contribu�on to Pakistan's overall services 
exports has expanded significantly, driven by rising global demand for so�ware development, business process outsourcing, and 
digital transforma�on solu�ons.

During FY 2024-25, exports of telecommunica�on, computer and informa�on services reached an all-�me high of US$ 3.8 billion, 
reflec�ng a robust year-on-year growth of around 18 % compared to US$ 3.2 billion in the preceding year. This record performance 
underscores the increasing global compe��veness of Pakistani IT companies and their growing reputa�on for delivering high-
quality, cost-effec�ve technology solu�ons. Notably, IT exports now account for nearly 45 % of Pakistan's total services exports, 
highligh�ng the sector's rising strategic importance in the na�onal economy.

The industry's momentum has been supported by a large pool of skilled professionals, compe��ve cost structures and the 
con�nued expansion of Pakistan's technology ecosystem. The government's suppor�ve policy framework, including tax incen�ves 
on export income and the establishment of Special Technology Zones, has further enhanced the country's a�rac�veness for IT 
exports.

Infrastructure investments such as the development of new IT parks in Islamabad, Karachi, and Lahore, improved broadband 
connec�vity, and public-private partnerships for skills development are reinforcing the founda�ons for long-term growth. The 
increasing adop�on of cloud compu�ng, ar�ficial intelligence, and so�ware-as-a-service (SaaS) models is crea�ng addi�onal 
opportuni�es for export-oriented technology companies.
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The financial results for the year ended 30 June 2025 reflect another strong year of performance, primarily driven by the Company's 
con�nued focus on so�ware development and implementa�on projects, and business process outsourcing services to interna�onal 
clients. Total revenue increased by 30.28% to Rs. 441.52 million, compared to Rs. 338.90 million in the preceding year. The growth 
was largely a�ributable to higher export sales, which remain the dominant component of the Company's revenue mix.
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consul�ng services procured from external specialists to support complex overseas projects. Despite this increase, gross margins 
improved as revenue growth outpaced the rise in costs, reflec�ng efficient project execu�on and disciplined cost control.

Opera�ng expenses rose by 29.93% to Rs. 52.36 million (2024: Rs. 40.30 million), primarily due to one-off costs incurred during the 
year. These included the fee payable to the Securi�es and Exchange Commission of Pakistan in connec�on with the increase in 
authorized share capital from Rs. 200 million (20,000,000 ordinary shares of Rs. 10 each) to Rs. 1,200 million (120,000,000 ordinary 
shares of Rs. 10 each), as well as higher legal and professional charges related to the merger of ITANZ Technology (Private) Limited 
with the Company.

As a result of higher revenues and prudent financial management, profit before income tax grew by 64.80% to Rs. 268.21 million, 
while profit a�er tax more than doubled to Rs. 344.84 million, represen�ng an impressive 117.81% year-on-year increase. The 
significant rise in profitability reflects strong export performance and opera�onal leverage.

Future Outlook

In line with the na�onal trend, the Company con�nues to play an ac�ve role in strengthening Pakistan's IT export base through the 
development and delivery of customized so�ware solu�ons for interna�onal clients. By maintaining high technical standards, 
adop�ng agile development frameworks, and ensuring compliance with interna�onal quality benchmarks, the Company has built 
long-term rela�onships with stakeholders and contributed to the country's foreign exchange earnings.

Despite the challenging global environment, the outlook for Pakistan's IT exports remains highly posi�ve. Sustained government 
support, a growing freelancer community, and con�nued demand for digital solu�ons from interna�onal clients are expected to 
keep the upward trajectory intact.

The management remains commi�ed to further expanding export opera�ons by diversifying service offerings, targe�ng new 
industry ver�cals, and inves�ng in advanced technologies such as data analy�cs, AI-driven applica�ons, and automa�on pla�orms. 
These ini�a�ves are expected to enhance the Company's global compe��veness while aligning with Pakistan's broader vision of 
establishing itself as a regional hub for digital innova�on and technology exports.

Earnings per share

Basic earnings per share of the Company for the year ended 30 June 2025 amounts Rs. 34.97 per share. Diluted earnings per share 
a�er considering the impact of ordinary shares to be issued under the scheme of amalgama�on comes out to Rs. 3.20 per share.

Dividends

In line with the future business plans of the Company and resul�ng reinvestment of profits, the Board of Directors do not 
recommend any dividend.

Debt servicing

The Company remained current in its debt servicing the throughout the year ended 30 June 2025.

CORPORATE SOCIAL RESPONSIBILITY

The Company firmly believes that Corporate Social Responsibility (CSR) is an integral part of sustainable business prac�ce. It 
con�nuously strives to create a posi�ve impact on the communi�es directly or indirectly influenced by its opera�ons. Through its 
CSR ini�a�ves, the Company aims to contribute meaningfully to social development, promote educa�on and technology 
awareness, and support ini�a�ves that enhance the well-being of society at large.
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SUSTAINABILITY

The Board of Directors remains deeply commi�ed to ensuring the long-term sustainability of the Company's opera�ons by 
integra�ng environmental, social, and governance (ESG) principles into strategic and opera�onal decision-making. The 
management regularly evaluates sustainability-related risks and implements measures to mi�gate their poten�al impact on the 
business.

A comprehensive risk management framework has been established to iden�fy, assess, and address sustainability risks. This 
framework embeds ESG considera�ons into corporate planning and risk assessment processes, ensuring that sustainability issues 
are managed proac�vely and responsibly. The Company's ongoing commitment to sustainability reflects its dedica�on to crea�ng 
enduring value for shareholders, employees, and the broader community.

DIVERSITY, EQUITY AND INCLUSION

The Company is dedicated to fostering a diverse, equitable, and inclusive workplace that values individual differences and 
encourages mutual respect. It recognizes that diversity and inclusion are essen�al for s�mula�ng innova�on, enhancing decision-
making, and driving superior organiza�onal performance.

The Company promotes diversity across its Board and management structure, ensuring representa�on and equal opportuni�es for 
all employees, regardless of gender, ethnicity, culture, religion, or background. It maintains a work environment that is free from 
discrimina�on, harassment, and in�mida�on of any kind, reinforcing a culture built on fairness, respect, and integrity.

GENDER PAY GAP

Gender Pay Gap statement as required under SECP Circular 10 of 2024 is annexed.

PRINCIPAL RISKS AND UNCERTAINTIES

The Company operates in a dynamic technology environment and is therefore exposed to various business, opera�onal, and 
financial risks. The principal risks include foreign exchange vola�lity, which can affect the profitability of export revenues, and 
technological obsolescence, requiring con�nual investment in new tools, pla�orms, and upskilling of technical teams. Cybersecurity 
and data protec�on remain key priori�es given the nature of so�ware development and the handling of client informa�on, with 
mi�ga�on measures including robust IT controls, regular security audits, and compliance with global data protec�on standards.

Following the merger of ITANZ Technology (Private) Limited with the Company, integra�on-related risks such as the alignment of 
opera�onal systems, harmoniza�on of human resource policies, and consolida�on of legal and contractual obliga�ons have been 
carefully managed. The management con�nues to monitor post-merger integra�on to ensure that synergies are fully realized and 
that opera�ons remain seamless.

Furthermore, regulatory and compliance risks, par�cularly those rela�ng to taxa�on, export documenta�on, and corporate 
governance, are managed through proac�ve engagement with advisors and con�nuous monitoring of the evolving regulatory 
framework. The Board periodically reviews the Company's risk management framework to ensure �mely iden�fica�on, 
assessment, and mi�ga�on of emerging risks to protect shareholder value and sustain long-term business performance.

EVENTS AFTER THE REPORTING PERIOD

There are no material events a�er the repor�ng period that require disclosure in or adjustments to the annexed financial 
statements.

RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS

All related party transac�ons were on an arm's length basis which were in line with transfer pricing methods and the policy for 
related par�es approved by the Board. All related party transac�ons were duly approved by the audit commi�ee and placed before 
the Board for their considera�on and approval. 

CORPORATE BRIEFING SESSION

No corporate briefing sessions were held during the year ended 30 June 2025. The Company plans to hold such sessions regularly in 
future.

CORPORATE GOVERNANCE, FINANCIAL REPORTING AND INTERNAL CONTROL SYSTEM

Directors are pleased to report that:

a) The financial statements prepared by the management of the Company present fair state of Company's opera�ons, cash flows
and changes in equity.

b) Proper books of account of the Company have been maintained.

c) Appropriate accoun�ng policies have been consistently applied in the prepara�on of financial statements and accoun�ng
es�mates are based upon reasonable and prudent judgment.

d) Interna�onal Financial Repor�ng Standards (IFRS), as applicable in Pakistan, have been followed in the prepara�on of financial 
statements any departures therefrom have been adequately disclosed and explained.

e) The system of internal control is sound in design and has been effec�vely implemented and monitored. 

f) There are no doubts upon the Company's ability to con�nue as a going concern.

g) Key opera�ng and financial data for the last six years is annexed.

h) There are no statutory payments on account of taxes, du�es, levies and charges that are outstanding as on 30 June 2025 except 
for those disclosed in the financial statements.

BOARD OF DIRECTORS

The Company has seven (7) directors on its board, including the Chief Execu�ve Officer. The Board comprises four (4) male directors 
and three (3) female directors. The Composi�on of the Board is as follows:

1.

2.

3.

4.

5.

6.

7.

Mr. Imran Zaid

Ms. Javeria Malik

Syed Jawed Ali

Mr. Muhammad Sheraz

Mr. Muhammad Faheem Qureshi

Ms. Sana Malik

Ms. Azra Parveen

Chairperson / Execu�ve Director

Independent Director

Chief Execu�ve Officer

Execu�ve Director

Execu�ve Director

Non-Execu�ve Director

Non-Execu�ve Director

Board of Directors' Mee�ngs

During the year ended 30 June 2025, the Board convened five (5) �mes. Eligibility and a�endance of individual members of the 
Board was as follows:

Name of Directors Eligibility A�endance

Mr. Imran Zaid

Ms. Javeria Malik

Syed Jawed Ali

Mr. Muhammad Sheraz

Ms. Sana Malik

Mr. Muhammad Faheem Qureshi

Ms. Azra Parveen

5

5

5

5

5

5

5

5

5

5

5

5

5

5

Board Commi�ees

The Board has cons�tuted the following commi�ees in compliance with the Listed Companies (Code of Corporate Governance) 
Regula�ons, 2019.

1. Audit Commi�ee

2. Human Resources (HR) and Remunera�on Commi�ee

The composi�on of each of these commi�ees is as follows:

Audit Commi�ee

Chairperson
Ms. Javeria Malik
Members
Mr. Muhammad Sheraz
Mr. Muhammad Faheem Qureshi
Ms. Azra Parveen

HR and Remunera�on Commi�ee

Chairperson
Mr. Imran Zaid
Members
Syed Jawed Ali
Mr. Muhammad Sheraz
Ms. Sana Malik
Mr. Muhammad Faheem Qureshi
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Board Commi�ees' Mee�ngs

Mee�ngs of the Audit Commi�ee were held five (5) �mes during the year ended 30 June 2025. Eligibility and a�endance of 
individual members of Audit Commi�ee was as follows:

Ms. Javeria Malik

Mr. Muhammad Sheraz

Mr. Muhammad Faheem Qureshi

Ms. Azra Parveen

5

5

5

5

5

5

5

5

Mee�ng of the HR and Remunera�on Commi�ee was held once during the year ended 30 June 2025. Eligibility and a�endance of 
individual members of HR and Remunera�on Commi�ee was as follows:

1

1

1

1

1

1

1

1

1

1

Mr. Imran Zaid

Syed Jawed Ali

Mr. Muhammad Sheraz

Ms. Sana Malik

Mr. Muhammad Faheem Qureshi

Name of Commi�ee Members Eligibility A�endance

Name of Commi�ee Members Eligibility A�endance

Directors' Remunera�on

The Company has adopted a formal remunera�on policy for its Directors and members of senior management, duly approved by the 
Board of Directors. The policy forms an integral part of the Company's overall human resource and business strategy, ensuring 
alignment between organiza�onal performance and leadership rewards.

The Board considers the policy to be effec�ve in a�rac�ng, mo�va�ng, and retaining highly qualified execu�ves and Directors 
capable of steering the Company's long-term growth. It also promotes alignment of interests among Directors, management, and 
shareholders by linking compensa�on with performance and governance outcomes. The policy emphasizes accountability and 
transparency in the determina�on and payment of remunera�on, thereby reinforcing sound corporate governance prac�ces across 
all levels of leadership.

AUDITORS

The financial statements of the Company for the year ended 30 June 2025 were audited by Alam & Aulakh, Chartered Accountants, a 
QCR rated firm duly registered with Audit Oversight Board. The auditors have issued an unmodified opinion in their independent 
auditor's report. 

Alam & Aulakh, Chartered Accountants are due to re�re at the conclusion of upcoming annual general mee�ng and being eligible, 
have offered themselves for re-appointment as Auditors for the financial year ending 30 June 2026. As proposed by the Audit 
Commi�ee, the Board recommends their appointment as auditors of the Company for the year ending 30 June 2026.

INTERNAL FINANCIAL CONTROLS

The Board of Directors has established and implemented a comprehensive system of internal financial controls across all levels of 
the Company. The framework is designed to ensure the achievement of the Company's strategic and opera�onal objec�ves, 
promote efficiency and effec�veness in opera�ons, ensure the reliability and accuracy of financial repor�ng, and ensure compliance 
with applicable laws, regula�ons, and internal policies. The system is regularly reviewed and strengthened to maintain its 
effec�veness and responsiveness to evolving business needs.

SHAREHOLDING PATTERN

The shareholding pa�ern of the Company as of 30 June 2025 is annexed to this report.

WEB PRESENCE

The Company maintains an ac�ve web presence, where its annual and periodic financial reports are made available for the 
informa�on of shareholders, investors, and other stakeholders. The Company's website serves as a transparent communica�on 
pla�orm and reflects its commitment to �mely disclosure and corporate governance best prac�ces.

ACKNOWLEDGEMENT

The Board of Directors places on record its apprecia�on for the con�nued commitment, diligence, and dedica�on of the Company's 
employees at all levels. The Board also extends its sincere thanks to all the stakeholders for their unwavering trust and support, 
which have been instrumental in the Company's con�nued success.

Chief Execu�ve Officer
Lahore
27 October 2025

Chairperson
Lahore
27 October 2025
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the Company. The framework is designed to ensure the achievement of the Company's strategic and opera�onal objec�ves, 
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Statement of Compliance
WITH LISTED COMPANIES (CODE OF CORPORATE GOVERNANCE) REGULATIONS,
2019 OF ITANZ TECHNOLOGIES LIMITED FOR THE YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2025

The company has complied with the requirements of the Regula�ons in the following manner:-

1. The total number of directors are 7 as per the following,-

Total number of Directors :

a) Male

b) Female

4

3

2. The composi�on of the Board is as follows:-

Composi�on

a) Independent Directors

b) Non-Execu�ve Directors

c) Execu�ve Directors

d) Females Directors

2

3

2

3

2.1  Frac�on (0.33) related to the requirement for number of independent directors is less than 0.5 and therefore, has not rounded 
up as one.

2.2  Independent directors are not selected in the manner as prescribed

3. The directors have confirmed that none of them is serving as a director on more than seven listed companies, including this
company.

4. The company has not prepared a code of conduct therefore has not ensured that appropriate steps have been taken to
disseminate it throughout the company along with its suppor�ng policies and procedures;

5. The Board has developed a vision/mission statement however not overall corporate strategy and significant policies of the
company. The complete record of par�culars of the significant policies along with their date of approval or upda�ng has not
been maintained by the company;

6. All the powers of the Board have been duly exercised and decisions on relevant ma�ers have been taken by the Board/
shareholders as empowered by the relevant provisions of the Act and these Regula�ons;

7. The mee�ngs of the Board were presided over by the Chairman and, in his absence, by a director elected by the Board for this
purpose. The Board has complied with the requirements of Act and the Regula�ons with respect to frequency, recording and
circula�ng minutes of mee�ng of the Board;

8. The Board have not a formal policy and transparent procedures for remunera�on of directors in accordance with the Act and
these Regula�ons.

9.  The Board of the company has not arranged Directors' Training program.

9.1  No director has a�ained directors' training cer�fica�on.

10. The Board has approved appointment of chief financial officer and company secretary including their remunera�on and terms
and condi�ons of employment however not complied with relevant requirements of the Regula�ons. The head of internal audit
has not been appointed.

11. Chief financial officer and chief execu�ve officer duly endorsed the financial statements before approval of the Board;

12. The Board has formed commi�ees comprising of members given below.-

a) Audit Commi�ee

Ms. Javeria Malik

Mr. Muhammad Faheem Qureshi

Ms. Azra Perveen

Mr. Muhammad Sheraz

Chairperson/Independent Director

Member/Non-Execu�ve Director

Member/Non-Execu�ve Director

Secretary

b) HR & Remunera�on Commi�ee

Mr. Imran Zahid

Ms Sana Malik

Mr. Muhammad Faheem Qureshi

Mr. Syed Jawed Ali

Mr. Muhammad Sheraz

Chairperson/Independent Director

Member/Non-Execu�ve Director

Member/Non-Execu�ve Director

Member/Execu�ve Director

Secretary

13.  The terms of reference of the aforesaid commi�ees have not been properly formed, documented and advised to the 
commi�ee for compliance;

14.  The frequency of mee�ngs of the commi�ee were as per following, -

a)Audit Commi�ee: 05

b) HR and Remunera�on Commi�ee: 01

15. The Board has not set up an effec�ve Internal Audit Func�on or has not outsourced the internal audit func�on to who are 
considered suitably qualified and experienced for the purpose and are conversant with the policies and procedures of the 
company;

16.  The statutory auditors of the company have confirmed that they have been given a sa�sfactory ra�ng under the Quality Control 
Review program of the Ins�tute of Chartered Accountants of Pakistan and registered with Audit Oversight Board of Pakistan, 
that they and all their partners are in compliance with Interna�onal Federa�on of Accountants (IFAC) guidelines on code of 
ethics as adopted by the Ins�tute of Chartered Accountants of Pakistan and that they and the partners of the firm involved in 
the audit are not a close rela�ve (spouse, parent, dependent and non-dependent children) of the chief execu�ve officer, chief 
financial officer, head of internal audit, company secretary or director of the company;

17. The statutory auditors or the persons associated with them have not been appointed to provide other services except in 
accordance with the Act, these Regula�ons or any other regulatory requirement and the auditors have confirmed that they 
have observed IFAC guidelines in this regard;

18.  We confirm that all requirements of regula�ons 3, 7, 8,32, 33 and 36 of the Regula�ons have been complied with and regula�on 
6 and 27 have not been complied with.

Basis of Non-compliances

For Regula�on 6

18.1 Independent directors were not selected as prescribed under the provisions of the Companies Act, 2017 and regula�ons issued 
thereunder

For Regula�on 27 

18.1 The head of internal audit has not been appointed.
18.2 The term of reference of audit commi�ee has not been defined.
18.3 No mee�ng of internal auditor was held with audit commi�ee 
18.4 No mee�ng of audit commi�ee was held a�er comple�on of external audit.

19. Explana�on for non-compliance with requirements, other than regula�ons 3, 6, 7, 8, 27, 32, 33 and 36 are below (if applicable):

19.  Non-compliance

Regula�on No. Non-compliance Reasons

10 The board has not fulfilled its responsibili�es

1. For adop�on of corporate governance 
prac�ce by the company and monitoring of 
effec�veness of such prac�ces

2. For prepara�on, adop�on and monitoring 
of overall corporate strategy, formal code of 
conduct and dissemina�on thereof

3. For governance of risk and its management 
policy and procedure

The prime reason of non-compliance is the 
cessa�on of business and disposal of all assets 
including factory during year 2022. Further new 
management is commi�ed to comply with and 
maintain all regula�ons as the merger is 
implemented. 
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Statement of Compliance
WITH LISTED COMPANIES (CODE OF CORPORATE GOVERNANCE) REGULATIONS,
2019 OF ITANZ TECHNOLOGIES LIMITED FOR THE YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2025

The company has complied with the requirements of the Regula�ons in the following manner:-

1.  The total number of directors are 7 as per the following,-
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b) Non-Execu�ve Directors
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2.1  Frac�on (0.33) related to the requirement for number of independent directors is less than 0.5 and therefore, has not rounded 
up as one.

2.2  Independent directors are not selected in the manner as prescribed

3.  The directors have confirmed that none of them is serving as a director on more than seven listed companies, including this 
company.

4.  The company has not prepared a code of conduct therefore has not ensured that appropriate steps have been taken to 
disseminate it throughout the company along with its suppor�ng policies and procedures;

5.  The Board has developed a vision/mission statement however not overall corporate strategy and significant policies of the 
company. The complete record of par�culars of the significant policies along with their date of approval or upda�ng has not 
been maintained by the company;

6.  All the powers of the Board have been duly exercised and decisions on relevant ma�ers have been taken by the Board/ 
shareholders as empowered by the relevant provisions of the Act and these Regula�ons;

7.  The mee�ngs of the Board were presided over by the Chairman and, in his absence, by a director elected by the Board for this 
purpose. The Board has complied with the requirements of Act and the Regula�ons with respect to frequency, recording and 
circula�ng minutes of mee�ng of the Board;

8.  The Board have not a formal policy and transparent procedures for remunera�on of directors in accordance with the Act and 
these Regula�ons.

9. The Board of the company has not arranged Directors' Training program.

9.1  No director has a�ained directors' training cer�fica�on.

10.  The Board has approved appointment of chief financial officer and company secretary including their remunera�on and terms 
and condi�ons of employment however not complied with relevant requirements of the Regula�ons. The head of internal audit 
has not been appointed.

11.  Chief financial officer and chief execu�ve officer duly endorsed the financial statements before approval of the Board;

12.  The Board has formed commi�ees comprising of members given below.-

a) Audit Commi�ee

Ms. Javeria Malik
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13. The terms of reference of the aforesaid commi�ees have not been properly formed, documented and advised to the
commi�ee for compliance;

14. The frequency of mee�ngs of the commi�ee were as per following, -

a)Audit Commi�ee: 05

b) HR and Remunera�on Commi�ee: 01

15. The Board has not set up an effec�ve Internal Audit Func�on or has not outsourced the internal audit func�on to who are
considered suitably qualified and experienced for the purpose and are conversant with the policies and procedures of the
company;

16. The statutory auditors of the company have confirmed that they have been given a sa�sfactory ra�ng under the Quality Control
Review program of the Ins�tute of Chartered Accountants of Pakistan and registered with Audit Oversight Board of Pakistan,
that they and all their partners are in compliance with Interna�onal Federa�on of Accountants (IFAC) guidelines on code of
ethics as adopted by the Ins�tute of Chartered Accountants of Pakistan and that they and the partners of the firm involved in
the audit are not a close rela�ve (spouse, parent, dependent and non-dependent children) of the chief execu�ve officer, chief
financial officer, head of internal audit, company secretary or director of the company;

17. The statutory auditors or the persons associated with them have not been appointed to provide other services except in
accordance with the Act, these Regula�ons or any other regulatory requirement and the auditors have confirmed that they
have observed IFAC guidelines in this regard;

18. We confirm that all requirements of regula�ons 3, 7, 8,32, 33 and 36 of the Regula�ons have been complied with and regula�on
6 and 27 have not been complied with.

Basis of Non-compliances

For Regula�on 6

18.1 Independent directors were not selected as prescribed under the provisions of the Companies Act, 2017 and regula�ons issued 
thereunder

For Regula�on 27 

18.1 The head of internal audit has not been appointed.
18.2 The term of reference of audit commi�ee has not been defined.
18.3 No mee�ng of internal auditor was held with audit commi�ee 
18.4 No mee�ng of audit commi�ee was held a�er comple�on of external audit.

19. Explana�on for non-compliance with requirements, other than regula�ons 3, 6, 7, 8, 27, 32, 33 and 36 are below (if applicable):

19. Non-compliance

Regula�on No. Non-compliance Reasons

10 The board has not fulfilled its responsibili�es

1. For adop�on of corporate governance
prac�ce by the company and monitoring of
effec�veness of such prac�ces

2. For prepara�on, adop�on and monitoring
of overall corporate strategy, formal code of
conduct and dissemina�on thereof

3. For governance of risk and its management
policy and procedure

The prime reason of non-compliance is the 
cessa�on of business and disposal of all assets 
including factory during year 2022. Further new 
management is commi�ed to comply with and 
maintain all regula�ons as the merger is 
implemented. 
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Regula�on No. Non-compliance Reasons

4. Adequate system and controls  for
iden�fica�on and redressal of grievance
arising from unethical prac�ces

5. Appointment of head of internal auditor

6. For formal and effec�ve mechanism of
a n n u a l  a p p ra i s a l  o f  B o a r d s '  o w n
performance, members of the board and its
commi�ee.

7. For complete records of par�culars of
significant polices along with their dates of
approval or upda�ng thereof for significant
ma�ers/ issues/ risks.

10A The board has not fulfilled its responsibili�es

1. Fo r  g o v e r n a n c e  a n d  o v e rs i g h t  o f
sustainability risks and opportuni�es,
which includes the environmental, social
and governance considera�ons, within the
company by se�ng the company's
sustainability strategies, priori�es and
targets to create long term corporate value

2. That the policies to promote diversity,
equity and inclusion (DE&I) are in place to
encourage gender mainstreaming, gender
equality and the par�cipa�on of women on
the board, management and workforce of
the company.

3. Appropriate measures to proac�vely
understand and address the principal as
well as emerging sustainability risks and
opportuni�es relevant to the company and
its business, including climate-related risks
and opportuni�es, assess their poten�al
financial and opera�onal impacts and
implement strategies for management and
mi�ga�on thereof.

4. The company's sustainability and DE&I
related strategies, priori�es and targets as
well as performance against these targets
are periodically reviewed and monitored.

5. Establish a dedicated sustainability
commi�ee having at least one female
d i r e c t o r ,  o r  a s s i g n  a d d i � o n a l
responsibili�es to an exis�ng board
commi�ee.

6. That the directors report shall provide
adequate disclosures regarding the
assessment of sustainability related risks,
how these are managed or mi�gated, and
measures taken to promote DE&I in the
Company.

Regula�on No. Non-compliance Reasons

1. The board has not a formal policy and 
transparent procedures for fixing the 
remunera�on packages of individual 
directors including a�ending mee�ngs of 
the board and its commi�ees.

2. No director was paid any remunera�on.

16 & 17

1. The company has neither made an 
appropriate arrangement to carry out 
orienta�on for their directors nor any 
director got any training program.

18 & 19

1. The company secretary do not hold 
prescribed qualifica�ons 

2. Head of internal audit func�on and its 
resources / staff were not appointed 
therefore all other related regula�ons were 
not complied with.

3. The Board has not determined roles and 
responsibili�es of CFO, Internal Auditor and 
Company Secretary. 

20, 22, 23 & 24, 31

1. T h e  te r m  o f  refe re n c e  o f  H R  a n d 
remunera�on commi�ee has not been 
prepared and maintained.

28

1. The board has not setup nominee and Risk 
Management commi�ee and determined 
term of references.

29 & 30 

1. The directors' report on quarterly financial 
s t a t e m e n t s  d i d  n o  m e n � o n  t h e 
remunera�on pol icy along with its 
significant features of non -execu�ve 
directors including independent directors.

34

1. The company has not complied with 
requirement of pos�ng its key elements of 
significant policies including:

a. Communica�on and disclosure policies
b. Code of conduct for members of board, 

senior  management  and other 
employees

c. Risk management policy
d. Internal control policy
e. Whistle blowing policy
f. Social responsibili�es
g. Policies for promo�ng DE&I and 

protec�on against harassment at 
workplaces.

h. Brief synopsis of term of reference of 
a u d i t  c o m m i � e e  a n d  H R  a n d 
Remunera�on commi�ee, Nominee 
commi�ee and Risk management 
Commi�ee.

i.  The Directors' remunera�on policy

35
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Regula�on No. Non-compliance Reasons
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protec�on against harassment at
workplaces.

h. Brief synopsis of term of reference of
a u d i t  c o m m i � e e  a n d  H R  a n d
Remunera�on commi�ee, Nominee
commi�ee and Risk management
Commi�ee.

i. The Directors' remunera�on policy

35
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Annual General Meeting (AGM)

The Annual General Mee�ng of the Members of ITANZ Technologies Limited, formerly Zahur Co�on Mills Limited (the "Company") 
will be held on Tuesday, 25 November 2025 at 10:00 a.m. at LSE Auditorium, Basement-2, LSE Plaza, 19 Khayaban-e-Aiwan-e-Iqbal, 
Lahore, Pakistan.

Eligible shareholders are encouraged to participate and vote.

Participation in AGM through video link facility

The Shareholders can also participate in the General Meeting through video link facility

To attend the Annual General meeting through video link, members and their proxies are requested to register their following 
particulars by sending an e-mail at amin.shakir@itanzgroup.com

SHAREHOLDERS’ INFORMATION

The video link and login credentials will be shared with the shareholders whose e-mails, containing all the requested particulars, are 
received at the given e-mail address by or before the close of business hours (5:00 p.m.) on 24 November 2025. 

Eligible shareholders are encouraged to participate and vote.

Ownership

On 30 June 2025, the Company has 6129 Shareholders.

Web Reference

The Company maintains a functional website. Annual, half-yearly and quarterly reports are regularly posted at the Company's 
website: http://www.itanztechnologies.com

Dividend

In line with the future business plans of the Company and resul�ng reinvestment of profits, the Board of Directors do not 
recommend any dividend.

Closure of Share Transfer Books

The Share Transfer Books of the Company will remain closed from 19 November 2025 to 25 November 2025 (both days 
inclusive). Transfers received in order by our Shares Registrar, M/s F.D. Registrar Services (Private) Limited, 17th Floor, Saima 
Trade Tower-A, I.I. Chundrigar Road, Karachi. by the close of business on November 18, 2025 will be considered in time to 
entitle the transferees for payment of dividend and to attend the AGM.

PAYMENT OF CASH DIVIDEND ELECTRONICALLY (E DIVIDEND MECHANISM)

As per the provisions of Section 242 of the Companies Act, 2017 and Companies (Distribution of Dividends) Regulation 2017, it is 
mandatory for a listed company to pay cash dividend to its shareholders only through electronic mode directly into their bank 
account designated by the entitled shareholders instead of issuing physical dividend warrants. Therefore, shareholders are 
requested to provide the following particulars directly to the Company's Share Registrar in case of physical shareholders and directly 
to the relevant Participant / CDC Investor Account Service in case of maintaining shareholding under Central Depository System 
(CDS):

In case of non-receipt of the above information, the dividend shall be withheld.

Restriction on Distribution of Gifts to Members:

The Securities and Exchange Commission of Pakistan (the “SECP”), through its Circular 2 of 2018, dated February 9, 2018, has strictly 
prohibited companies from providing gifts or incentives, in lieu of gifts (tokens/coupons/lunches/takeaway packages) in any form or 
manner, to shareholders at or in connection with general meetings. Under Section 185 of the Act, any violation of this directive is 
considered an offense, and companies failing to comply may face penalties and in accordance with the directive issued by the SECP, 
vide its S.R.O. 452(I)/2025 dated 17 March 2025 the Company would like to inform all the shareholders that no gifts will be 
distributed at the AGM.

Requirement of CNIC Number / National Tax Number (NTN) Certificate.

Individual Members who have not yet submitted a copy of their valid Computerized Identity Card (CNIC) to the Company are once 
again requested to send a copy of their valid CNIC at the earliest directly to the office of Share Registrar of the Company, M/s. 
Corplink (Private) Limited, Wings Arcade, 1-K Commercial Model Town, Lahore. Corporate Members are requested to provide their 
Na�onal Tax Number (NTN) and folio number thereon while sending the copies to the Share Registrar of the Company. In case of 
non-receipt of the copy of a valid CNIC or NTN (as the case may be), the Company would be unable to comply with the requirements 
of the Companies Act, 2017 and SROs issued there under.

Signature of the Shareholder

It is stated that the above-mentioned information is correct, that I will intimate the changes in the above-mentioned information to 
the Company and the concerned Share Registrar as soon as these occur.

Detail of Bank Mandate

Name of Shareholder

Folio No. / CDC Account No.

Cell Number of Shareholder

Landline Number of Shareholder

E-mail address

Title of Bank Account of shareholder

International Bank Account Number (IBAN) “Mandatory” PK _________________________ ( 24 digits)
(kindly provide your accurate IBAN after consulting with 
your respective bank branch, in case of any error or 
omission in given IBAN, the company will not be held 
responsible in any manner for any loss or delay in your 
cash dividend payment).

Bank’s Name

Branch Name and Address

Branch Code

CNIC No. (copy attached)

NTN (in case of Corporate Entity)

Name
CNIC no. / Passport no. (in case of
foreigner)*

Folio no. /CDC
Account no.

Mobile no. and
email address

No. of shares held
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to the relevant Participant / CDC Investor Account Service in case of maintaining shareholding under Central Depository System 
(CDS):
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prohibited companies from providing gifts or incentives, in lieu of gifts (tokens/coupons/lunches/takeaway packages) in any form or 
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Deposit of Physical Shares into CDC Accounts

As per Section 72 of the Companies Act, 2017, every existing listed company shall be required to replace its physical shares with 
book-entry form in a manner as may be specified and from the date notified by the Commission, within a period not exceeding four 
years from the commencement of this Act, i.e. 30 May 2017.

The shareholders having physical shareholding are encouraged to open CDC sub-account with any of the brokers or Investor Account 
directly with CDC to place their physical shares into scrip less form, this will facilitate them in many ways, including safe custody and 
sale of shares, any time they want, as the trading of physical shares is not permitted as per existing regulations of the Pakistan Stock 
Exchange Ltd.

Deduction of Withholding Tax on Dividend

1. The rates of deduction of income tax from dividend payments under Section 150 of the Income Tax Ordinance, 2001 shall be as
follows:

To enable the company to make tax deduction on the amount of cash dividend @ 15% instead of 30%, shareholders whose 
names are not appearing on Active Taxpayers' List (ATL) available on the website of FBR are advised to immediately make sure 
that their names are entered in ATL, otherwise tax on their cash dividend will be deducted @ 30% instead of 15%.

2. Withholding tax will be determined separately on 'persons names appearing on ATL/persons names not appearing on ATL'
status of Principal Shareholder as well as Joint-holder(s) based on their shareholding proportions, in case of joint accounts. In
this regard, all shareholders who hold shares jointly are requested to provide shareholding proportions of Principal
Shareholder and Joint-holder(s) in respect of shares held by them to our Share Registrar, in writing within 10 days of this notice;
otherwise it will be assumed that the shares are equally held by Principal Shareholder and Joint-holder(s).

3. As per FBR Circulars C.No.1(29)WHT/2006 dated 30 June 2010 and C.No. 1(43)DG(WHT)/2008-VoI.II-66417-R dated May 12,
2015, the valid exemption certificate is mandatory to claim exemption of withholding tax U/S 150 of the Income Tax Ordinance,
2001 (tax on dividend amount) where the statutory exemption under Clause 47B of Part-IV of Second Schedule is available. The
shareholders who fall in the category mentioned in above clause and want to avail exemption U/S 150 of the Ordinance, must
provide valid Tax Exemption Certificate to our Share Registrar before book closure otherwise tax will be deducted on dividend
as per applicable rates.

Zakat Declaration (Form CZ-50)

The Shareholders claiming exemption from deduction of Zakat are advised to submit their Zakat Declaration Form CZ-50 under 
Zakat and Usher Ordinance, 1980 & Rule 4 of Zakat (Deduction & Refund Rules), 1981 to our Share Registrar, M/s  F.D. Registrar 
Services (Private) Limited, 17th Floor, Saima Trade Tower-A, I.I. Chundrigar Road, Karachi. The Shareholders while sending the 
Zakat Declara�ons must quote the company name and their respec�ve Folio Nos and /or CDC A/c Nos.

Delivery of the Unclaimed / Undelivered Shares & Dividend

Shareholders, whose dividends still remain unclaimed and / or undelivered share certificates, are hereby once again requested 
to approach the Company's Share Registrar, M/s  F.D. Registrar Services (Private) Limited, 17th Floor, Saima Trade Tower-A, I.I. 
Chundrigar Road, Karachi to claim their outstanding dividend amounts and/ or undelivered share cer�ficates.

Consent For Video Conference Facility

Pursuant to Section 134(1)(b) of the Act, shareholders residing in a city holding aggregate 10% or more shareholding may demand to 
participate in the meeting through video conference. The request for video-link facility shall be shall be received by the Share 
Registrar at their address  at least seven days prior to the date of the meeting on the Standard Form available on the website of the 
Company.

Investor Relations Contact

For any query / problem / information, the investors may contact Mr. Muhammad Amin Shakir, Phone No. 92 300 8416505, email 
address: amin.shakir@itanzgroup.com.

i) Rate of Withholding Income Tax deduction for the persons

whose names are ap pearing on ATL. 15%

ii) Rate of Withholding Income Tax deduction for the persons

whose names are not appearing on ATL. 30%
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PATTERN OF SHAREHOLDING
AS AT 30 JUNE 2025

 Categories of shareholders Share held Percentage

Directors, Chief Execu�ve Officers, and their spouse and minor 

children
3,500 0.04%

Associated Companies, undertakings and related par�es. 0 0.00%

NIT and ICP 637,000 6.46%

Banks Development Financial Ins�tu�ons, Non 149,500 1.5162%

Banking Financial Ins�tu�ons.

500 0.0051%

Insurance Companies

Modarabas and Mutual Funds 0 --

Share holders holding 10% or more 5,077,800 51.4990%

9,059,500 91.8813%

General Public

a. Local

b. Foreign 0 0.00%

Others (to be specified)

Joint Stock Companies

10,000 0.1014%

No. of Shareholders From To Total Shares Held

1 100 18,200

101 500 2,756,100

501 1000 128,600

1001 5000 92,100

5001 10000 41,400

10001 15000 23,000

20001 25000 21,700

25001 30000 30,000

45001 50000 50,000

50001 55000 52,300

110001 115000 110,140

120001 125000 241,560

145001 150000 149,500

430001 435000 432,100

635001 640000 635,500

5075001 5080000 5,077,800

182

5758

133

38

5

2

1

1

1

1

1

2

1

1

1

1

6129 9,860,000

Their Spouse and Minor Children (Name Wise Detail):

SYED JAWED ALI 500 0.0051%

MR. IMRAN ZAID 500 0.0051%

MS. SANA MALIK 500 0.0051%

MRS. JAVERIA MALIK 500 0.0051%

MR. MUHAMMAD SHERAZ 500 0.0051%

MRS. AZRA PARVEEN 500 0.0051%

MR. MUHAMMAD FAHEEM QURESHI 500 0.0051%

Execu�ves: - -

Public Sector Companies & Corpora�ons: - -

Banks, Development Finance Ins�tu�ons, Non Banking Finance 150,000 1.52%

Companies, Insurance Companies, Takaful, Modarabas and Pension Funds:

Shareholders holding five percent or more vo�ng interest in the listed company (Name Wise Detail)

1 MR. JAVED ZAHUR 5,077,800 51.4990%

2 NATIONAL BANK OF PAKISTAN 635,500 6.4452%

All trades in the shares of the listed company, carried out by its Directors, Execu�ves and their spouses and minor children shall 
also be disclosed:

S. No NAME SALE PURCHASE

None Nil Nil

Share held Percentage
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Following is gender pay gap calculated for the year ended 30 June, 2025.

GENDER PAY GAP STATEMENT UNDER
CIRCULAR 10 OF 2024

(i)

(ii)

(iii)

Mean Gender Pay Gap

Median Gender Pay Gap

The mean and median gender pay gaps of 74% and 72% primarily reflect the overall workforce composition, as the 
number of female employees is comparatively lower than male employees. While the Company has female 
representation in key leadership and specialized roles with competitive pay scales, the overall proportion of women in the 
workforce remains limited. The gap therefore arises from employee distribution across levels, not from any inequality in 
pay for equal work. The Company remains committed to further enhancing gender diversity and equal opportunity across 
all functions.

74%

72%

KEY FINANCIAL INFORMATION

2025 2024 2023 2022 2021 2020

Sales Rs. 441,520,529 338,903,402 - - - -

Gross profit Rs. 298,689,719 208,308,354 - - - -

Opera�ng profit/(loss) Rs. 281,288,736 170,908,173 (745,250) 34,056,577 (5,016,581) (5,757,713)

Profit/(loss) before tax / levies Rs. 272,221,391 163,637,429 (745,763) 34,056,225 (5,016,955) (5,758,276)

Profit a�er tax Rs. 344,836,478 158,320,505 (745,763) 40,693,901 (4,625,218) (5,366,539)

Share capital - paid up Rs. 98,600,000 98,600,000 98,600,000 98,600,000 98,600,000 98,600,000

Shareholder's equity Rs. 626,640,853 281,276,076 (39,086,211) (38,340,448) (67,552,431) (62,927,213)

Total assets Rs. 933,162,114 517,434,639 81,035 93,548 69,120,923 72,254,380

Earnings/(loss) per share - pre tax / levies Rs. 27.61 16.60 (0.08) 3.45 (0.51) (0.58)

Earnings per share - a�er tax Rs. 34.97 16.06 (0.08) 4.13 (0.47) (0.54)

Gross profit to sales % 67.65 61.47 - - - -

Opera�ng profit/(loss) to sales % 63.71 50.43 - - - -

Profit/(loss) before tax / levies to sales % 61.66 48.28 - - - -

Profit/(loss) a�er tax to sales % 78.10 46.72 - - - -

Current ra�o 2.63:1 1.90:1 0.00:1 0.00:1 0.00:1 0.01:1

YEAR ENDED 30TH JUNE
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(0.58)

Earnings per share - a�er tax Rs. 34.97

                       

16.06

                   

(0.08)

                    

4.13

                      

(0.47)

                    

(0.54)

Gross profit to sales % 67.65 61.47 -

                         

-

                         

-

                         

-

Opera�ng profit/(loss) to sales % 63.71 50.43 -

                         

-

                         

-

                         

-

Profit/(loss) before tax / levies to sales % 61.66 48.28 -

                         

-

                         

-

                         

-

Profit/(loss) a�er tax to sales % 78.10 46.72 -

                         

-

                         

-

                         

-

                          

Current ra�o 2.63:1 1.90:1 0.00:1 0.00:1 0.00:1 0.01:1

YEAR ENDED 30TH JUNE



INDEPENDENT AUDITOR'S REVIEW REPORT
To the members of ITANZ Technologies Limited (formerly Zahur Co�on Mills Limited)

Review Report on the Statement of Compliance contained in Listed Companies
(Code of Corporate Governance) Regula�ons, 2019

We have reviewed the enclosed Statement of Compliance with the Listed Companies (Code of Corporate Governance) Regula�ons. 
2019 (the Regula�ons) prepared by the Board of Directors of ITANZ Technologies Limited (formerly Zahur Co�on Mills Limited) for 
the year ended 30 June 2025 in accordance with the requirements of Regula�on No. 36 of the Regula�ons.

The responsibility for compliance with the Regula�ons is that of the Board of Directors of the Company. Our responsibility is to 
review whether the Statement of Compliance reflects the status of the Company's compliance with the provisions of the 
Regula�ons and report if it does not and to highlight any non-compliance with the requirements of the Regula�ons. A review is 
limited primarily to inquiries of the Company's personnel and review of various documents prepared by the Company to comply 
with the Regula�ons.

As a part of our audit of the financial statements we are required to obtain an understanding of the accoun�ng and internal control 
systems sufficient to plan the audit and develop an effec�ve audit approach. We are not required to consider whether the Board of 
Director's statement on internal control covers all risks and controls or to form an opinion on the effec�veness of such internal 
controls, the Company's corporate governance procedures and risks.

The Regula�ons require the Company to place before the Audit Commi�ee, and upon recommenda�on of the Audit Commi�ee, 
place before the Board of Directors for their review and approval, its related party transac�ons. We are only required and have 
ensured compliance of this requirement to the extent of the approval of the related party transac�ons by the Board of Directors 
upon recommenda�on of the Audit Commi�ee.

Based on our review, nothing has come to our a�en�on which causes us to believe that the Statement of Compliance does not 
appropriately reflect the Company's compliance, in all material respects, with the requirements contained in the Regula�ons as 
applicable to the Company for the year ended 30 June 2025.

Further, we highlight below instances of non-compliance with the requirements of the Regula�ons as reflected in paragraph 
reference 18 and 19 where these are stated in the Statement of Compliance.
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Regula�on No. Non – Compliance

6 1. Independent directors were not selected as prescribed under the provisions of the Companies 
Act, 2017 and regula�ons issued thereunder.

27 1. The head of internal audit has not been appointed.
2. The term of reference of audit commi�ee has not been defined.
3. No mee�ng of internal auditor was held with audit commi�ee.
4. No mee�ng of audit commi�ee was held a�er comple�on of external audit.

10 The board has not fulfilled its responsibili�es;
1. For adop�on of corporate governance prac�ce by the company and monitoring of effec�veness of 

such prac�ces.
2. For prepara�on, adop�on and monitoring of overall corporate strategy formal code of conduct 

and dissemina�on thereof.
3. For governance of risk and its management policy and procedure.
4. Adequate system and controls for iden�fica�on and redressal of grievance arising from unethical 

prac�ces.
5. Appointment of head of internal auditor.
6. For format and effec�ve mechanism of annual appraisal of Boards own performance, members of 

the board and its commi�ee.
7. For complete records of par�culars of significant polices along with their dates of approval or 

upda�ng thereof for significant ma�ers/issues/risks.

10A The board has not fulfilled its responsibili�es;
1. For governance and oversight of sustainability risks and opportuni�es, which includes the 

environmental, social and governance considera�ons, within the company by se�ng the 
company's sustainability strategies, priori�es and targets to create long term corporate value.

10A 2. That the policies to promote diversity, equity and inclusion (DE&I) are in place to encourage 
gender mainstreaming, gender equally and the par�cipa�on of women on the board, 
management and workforce of the company.

3. Appropriate measures to proac�vely understand and address the principal as well as emerging 
sustainability risks and opportuni�es relevant to the company and its business, including climate-
related risks and opportuni�es, assess their poten�al financial and opera�onal impacts and 
implement strategies for management and mi�ga�on thereof.

4. The company's sustainability and DE&I related strategies. priori�es and targets as well as 
performance against these targets are periodically reviewed and monitored.

5. Establish a dedicated sustainability commi�ee having at least one female director, or assign 
addi�onal responsibili�es to an exis�ng board commi�ee.

6. That the directors report shall provide adequate disclosures regarding the assessment of 
sustainability related risks, how these are managed or mi�gated, and measures taken to promote 
DE&I in the Company.

Regula�on No. Non – Compliance

16 & 17 1. The board has not a formal policy and transparent procedures for fixing the remunera�on 
packages of individual directors including a�ending mee�ngs of the board and its commi�ees.

18 & 19 1. The company has neither made an appropriate arrangement to carry out orienta�on for their 
directors nor any director got any training program.

20, 22, 23 & 24, 31 1. The company secretary do not hold prescribed qualifica�ons.
2. Head of internal audit func�on and its resources/staff were not appointed therefore all other 

related regula�ons were not compiled with.
3. The Board has not determined roles and responsibili�es of CFO. Internal Auditor and Company 

Secretary.

28 1. The term of reference of HR and remunera�on commi�ee has not been prepared and maintained.

29 & 30 1. The board has not setup nominee and Risk Management commi�ee and determined form of 
references.

34 1. The director's report on quarterly financial statements did not men�on the remunera�on policy 
along with its significant features of non-execu�ve directors including independent directors.

35 1. The company has not compiled with requirement of pos�ng its key elements of significant policies 
including:

 a) Communica�on and disclosure policies.
 b) Code of conduct for members of board senior management and other employees.
 c) Risk management policy.
 d) Internal control policy.
 e) Whistle blowing policy.
 f) Social responsibili�es.
 g) Policies for promo�ng DE&I and protec�on against harassment at workplaces.
 h) Brief synopsis of term of reference of audit commi�ee and HR and remunera�on commi�ee, 

Nominee commi�ee and Risk management Commi�ee.
 i) The Director's remunera�on policy.

ALAM & AULAKH
Chartered Accountants
Lahore

03 November 2025
UDIN: CR202510041G2kqrQs4e
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were subsequently issued a�er year-end.

We iden�fied reverse acquisi�on under common 
control as a key audit ma�er as the accoun�ng 
for this transac�on required significant 
management judgment in determining the 
accoun�ng acquirer, establishing the appropriate 
accoun�ng treatment for a common control 
transac�on, and ensuring that the related 
disclosures appropriately reflect the nature and 
substance of the arrangement.

Ÿ Examining documenta�on rela�ng to the issuance of shares 
subsequent to year-end and verifying that related 
disclosures as subsequent events were appropriately made; 
and

Ÿ Evalua�ng the adequacy, accuracy, and transparency of the 
disclosures made in the financial statements in respect of 
this transac�on.

Sr. No. Key audit ma�er How our audit addressed the Key Audit Ma�er

2. Revenue recogni�on

Refer to notes 5.11.1 and 24 to the annexed 
financial statements.

The amount of revenue is the most significant 
class of transac�on on the statement of profit or 
loss. Net revenue is reported at Rs. 441.52 
million.

We iden�fied revenue recogni�on as a key audit 
ma�er since it is a key performance measure for 
the Company and gives rise to the risk associated 
with the judgement in determining the �ming of 
sa�sfac�on of performance obliga�ons as well as 
creates an incen�ve for fraudulently oversta�ng 
revenue by recognizing revenue before such 
performance obliga�ons are sa�sfied.

Our audit procedures in respect of recogni�on of revenue, 
amongst others, included the following:

Ÿ Assessing the appropriateness of the Company's revenue 
recogni�on accoun�ng policies by comparing with 
accoun�ng standards;

Ÿ Obtaining understanding of and tes�ng the design and 
opera�ng effec�veness of controls design to ensure that 
revenue is recognized in the appropriate accoun�ng period 
and tes�ng, on a sample basis, invoices and credit notes, 
recorded before and a�er the repor�ng period with 
underlying documenta�on to assess whether revenue has 
been recognized in the appropriate accoun�ng period; and

Ÿ Cri�cally assessing manual journals posted to revenue to 
iden�fy unusual or irregular items.

3. Deferred taxa�on

Refer to notes 5.15.2 and 19 to the annexed 
financial statements.

Under Interna�onal Accoun�ng Standard 12 
“Income Taxes”, the Company is required to 
review recoverability of the deferred tax assets 
recognized in the statement of financial posi�on 
at each repor�ng period.

Recogni�on of deferred tax asset is dependent 
on management's es�mate of availability of 
sufficient future taxable profits against which 
carried forward losses and tax credits can be 
u�lized. This es�ma�on involves a degree of 
uncertainty and requires judgement in rela�on 
to the future cash flows and also involves 
assessment of �ming of reversals of unused tax 
losses and tax credits.

The Company has recognized deferred tax asset 
of Rs. 76.824 million as at June 30, 2025 that 
includes carry forward losses and tax credit 
a m o u n� n g  to  R s .  7 5 . 2 1 4  m i l l i o n .  T h e 
recoverability of these benefits has been 
assessed based on the financial projec�ons of 
the Company for future years. The determina�on  
of future taxable profit is based on certain key

Our audit procedures in respect of recogni�on and valua�on of 
deferred tax asset, amongst others, included the following:

Ÿ Assessing the appropriateness of the Company's accoun�ng 
policies by comparing with accoun�ng standards;

Ÿ Obtaining understanding of the Company's process of 
preparing financial projec�ons;

Ÿ Obtaining financial projec�ons from management as 
approved by the Board of Directors;

Ÿ Evalua�ng the reasonableness of key assump�ons and 
es�mates used by management to prepare financial 
projec�ons;

Ÿ Considering the expected �ming of u�liza�on of the 
Deferred Tax Assets (DTA) keeping in view the relevant 
provision of Income Tax Ordinance 2001 that apply to the 
u�liza�on of tax losses;

Ÿ Determining the extent to which taxable profits would arise 
in the period within which the related losses would be 
available for u�liza�on;

Ÿ Ensuring that the deferred tax asset is computed using the 
rates that are enacted or substan�vely enacted at the 
repor�ng date; and

INDEPENDENT AUDITOR'S REPORT
To the members of ITANZ Technologies Limited
Report on the audit of the Financial Statements

Opinion

We have audited the annexed financial statements of ITANZ Technologies Limited (formerly Zahur Co�on Mills Limited) ('the 
Company'), which comprise the statement of financial posi�on as at 30 June 2025, the statement of profit or loss, the statement of 
comprehensive income, the statement of changes in equity, the statement of cash flows for the year then ended, and notes to the 
financial statements, including a summary of significant accoun�ng policies and other explanatory informa�on, and we state that 
we have obtained all the informa�on and explana�ons which, to the best of our knowledge and belief, were necessary for the 
purposes of the audit.

In our opinion and to the best of our informa�on and according to the explana�ons given to us, the statement of financial posi�on, 
the statement of profit or loss, the statement of comprehensive income, the statement of changes in equity and the statement of 
cash flows together with the notes forming part thereof conform with the accoun�ng and repor�ng standards as applicable in 
Pakistan and give the informa�on required by the Companies Act, 2017 (XIX of 2017), in the manner so required and respec�vely 
give a true and fair view of the state of the Company's affairs as at 30 June 2025 and of the profit, other comprehensive income, the 
changes in equity and its cash flows for the year then ended.

Basis for Opinion

We conducted our audit in accordance with Interna�onal Standards on Audi�ng ['ISAs'] as applicable in Pakistan. Our 
responsibili�es under those standards are further described in the Auditor's Responsibili�es for the Audit of the Financial 
Statements sec�on of our report. We are independent of the Company in accordance with the Interna�onal Ethics Standards Board 
for Accountants' Code of Ethics for Professional Accountants as adopted by the Ins�tute of Chartered Accountants of Pakistan ['the 
Code'] and we have fulfilled our other ethical responsibili�es in accordance with the Code. We believe that the audit evidence we 
have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion.

Key Audit Ma�ers

Key audit ma�ers are those ma�ers that, in our professional judgment, were of most significance in our audit of the financial 
statements of the current period. These ma�ers were addressed in the context of our audit of the financial statements as a whole, 
and in forming our opinion thereon, and we do not provide a separate opinion on these ma�ers.

1. Reverse acquisi�on under common control

Refer to notes 1.2, 5.1 and 50 to the annexed 
financial statements.

During the year, the Honourable High Court 
approved the scheme of arrangement between 
the Company and ITANZ Technology (Private) 
Limited, under which the en�re undertaking of 
ITANZ Technology (Private) Limited vested in the 
Company with effect from 30 September 2023. 
For accoun�ng purposes, ITANZ Technology 
(Private) Limited has been iden�fied as the 
accoun�ng acquirer, while the listed en�ty has 
been treated as the accoun�ng acquiree.

The transac�on represents a reverse acquisi�on 
between en��es under common control and has 
been accounted for using the predecessor 
carrying amounts method. As the deemed 
considera�on equalled the fair value of the 
accoun�ng acquiree, no goodwill or bargain 
purchase gain was recognized. The shares to be 
issued under the scheme of arrangement were 
pending issuance as at the repor�ng date and 

Our audit procedures in respect of common control 
transac�on, amongst others, included the following:

Ÿ Assessing the appropriateness of the Company's common 
control accoun�ng policies by comparing with accoun�ng 
standards;

Ÿ Reviewing the scheme of arrangement sanc�oned by the 
Honourable High Court to understand the legal form and 
effec�ve date of the transac�on;

Ÿ Evalua�ng management's assessment and conclusion 
regarding the iden�fica�on of the accoun�ng acquirer in 
light of the control principles under IFRS 10 Consolidated 
Financial Statements and the guidance in IFRS 3 Business 
Combina�ons;

Ÿ Assessing the appropriateness of applying the predecessor 
method of accoun�ng for a common control transac�on;

Ÿ Reviewing management's determina�on that no goodwill or 
bargain purchase gain arose as the deemed considera�on 
equalled the fair value of the accoun�ng acquiree;

Sr. No. Key audit ma�er How our audit addressed the Key Audit Ma�er
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were subsequently issued a�er year-end.
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Key Audit Ma�ers

Key audit ma�ers are those ma�ers that, in our professional judgment, were of most significance in our audit of the financial 
statements of the current period. These ma�ers were addressed in the context of our audit of the financial statements as a whole, 
and in forming our opinion thereon, and we do not provide a separate opinion on these ma�ers.

1. Reverse acquisi�on under common control

Refer to notes 1.2, 5.1 and 50 to the annexed 
financial statements.

During the year, the Honourable High Court 
approved the scheme of arrangement between 
the Company and ITANZ Technology (Private) 
Limited, under which the en�re undertaking of 
ITANZ Technology (Private) Limited vested in the 
Company with effect from 30 September 2023. 
For accoun�ng purposes, ITANZ Technology 
(Private) Limited has been iden�fied as the 
accoun�ng acquirer, while the listed en�ty has 
been treated as the accoun�ng acquiree.

The transac�on represents a reverse acquisi�on 
between en��es under common control and has 
been accounted for using the predecessor 
carrying amounts method. As the deemed 
considera�on equalled the fair value of the 
accoun�ng acquiree, no goodwill or bargain 
purchase gain was recognized. The shares to be 
issued under the scheme of arrangement were 
pending issuance as at the repor�ng date and 

Our audit procedures in respect of common control 
transac�on, amongst others, included the following:

Ÿ Assessing the appropriateness of the Company's common 
control accoun�ng policies by comparing with accoun�ng 
standards;

Ÿ Reviewing the scheme of arrangement sanc�oned by the 
Honourable High Court to understand the legal form and 
effec�ve date of the transac�on;

Ÿ Evalua�ng management's assessment and conclusion 
regarding the iden�fica�on of the accoun�ng acquirer in 
light of the control principles under IFRS 10 Consolidated 
Financial Statements and the guidance in IFRS 3 Business 
Combina�ons;

Ÿ Assessing the appropriateness of applying the predecessor 
method of accoun�ng for a common control transac�on;

Ÿ Reviewing management's determina�on that no goodwill or 
bargain purchase gain arose as the deemed considera�on 
equalled the fair value of the accoun�ng acquiree;

Sr. No. Key audit ma�er How our audit addressed the Key Audit Ma�er
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Sr. No. Key audit ma�er How our audit addressed the Key Audit Ma�er

assump�ons such as capacity u�liza�on, gross 
margin percentage, infla�on and interest rates.

Deferred tax asset valua�on is considered a key 
audit ma�er because the amounts involved are 
material, the complexi�es of the calcula�on of 
future taxable profits and the inherent 
uncertainty involved in forecas�ng taxable 
profits available in future periods.

Ÿ Reviewing the adequacy of the disclosures made by the 
Company with regard to applicable accoun�ng and 
repor�ng standards.

Informa�on other than the Financial Statements and Auditor's Report Thereon

Management is responsible for the other informa�on. The other informa�on comprises the informa�on included in the annual 
report, but does not include the financial statements and our auditor's report thereon.

Our opinion on the financial statements does not cover the other informa�on and we do not express any form of assurance 
conclusion thereon.

In connec�on with our audit of the financial statements, our responsibility is to read the other informa�on and, in doing so, consider 
whether the other informa�on is materially inconsistent with the financial statements or our knowledge obtained in the audit or 
otherwise appears to be materially misstated.

If, based on the work we have performed, we conclude that there is a material misstatement of this other informa�on, we are 
required to report that fact. We have nothing to report in this regard.

Responsibili�es of Management and Board of Directors for the Financial Statements

Management is responsible for the prepara�on and fair presenta�on of the financial statements in accordance with the accoun�ng 
and repor�ng standards as applicable in Pakistan and the requirements of Companies Act, 2017(XIX of 2017) and for such internal 
control as management determines is necessary to enable the prepara�on of financial statements that are free from material 
misstatement, whether due to fraud or error.

In preparing the financial statements, management is responsible for assessing the Company's ability to con�nue as a going 
concern, disclosing, as applicable, ma�ers related to going concern and using the going concern basis of accoun�ng unless 
management either intends to liquidate the Company or to cease opera�ons, or has no realis�c alterna�ve but to do so.

The Board of directors is responsible for overseeing the Company's financial repor�ng process.

Auditor's Responsibili�es for the Audit of the Financial Statements

Our objec�ves are to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the financial statements as a whole are free from material 
misstatement, whether due to fraud or error, and to issue an auditor's report that includes our opinion. Reasonable assurance is a 
high level of assurance, but is not a guarantee that an audit conducted in accordance with ISAs as applicable in Pakistan will always 
detect a material misstatement when it exists. Misstatements can arise from fraud or error and are considered material if, 
individually or in the aggregate, they could reasonably be expected to influence the economic decisions of user taken on the basis of 
these financial statements.

As part of an audit in accordance with ISAs as applicable in Pakistan, we exercise professional judgment and maintain professional 
skep�cism throughout the audit. We also:

Ÿ Iden�fy and assess the risks of material misstatement of the financial statements, whether due to fraud or error, design and 
perform audit procedures responsive to those risks, and obtain audit evidence that is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis 
for our opinion. The risk of not detec�ng a material misstatement resul�ng from fraud is higher than for one resul�ng from error, 
as fraud may involve collusion, forgery, inten�onal omissions, misrepresenta�ons, or the override of internal control.

Ÿ Obtain an understanding of internal control relevant to the audit in order to design audit procedures that are appropriate in the 
circumstances, but not for the purpose of expressing an opinion on the effec�veness of the Company's internal control.

Ÿ Evaluate the appropriateness of accoun�ng policies used and the reasonableness of accoun�ng es�mates and related 
disclosures made by management.

Ÿ Conclude on the appropriateness of management's use of the going concern basis of accoun�ng and, based on the audit 
evidence obtained, whether a material uncertainty exists related to events or condi�ons that may cast significant doubt on the 
Company's ability to con�nue as a going concern. If we conclude that a material uncertainty exists, we are required to draw 
a�en�on in our auditor's report to the related disclosures in the financial statements or, if such disclosures are inadequate, to 
modify our opinion. Our conclusions are based on the audit evidence obtained up to the date of our auditor's report. However, 
future events or condi�ons may cause the Company to cease to con�nue as a going concern.

Ÿ Evaluate the overall presenta�on, structure and content of the financial statements, including the disclosures, and whether the 
financial statements represent the underlying transac�ons and events in a manner that achieves fair presenta�on.

We communicate with the board of directors regarding, among other ma�ers, the planned scope and �ming of the audit and 
significant audit findings, including any significant deficiencies in internal control that we iden�fy during our audit.

We also provide the board of directors with a statement that we have complied with relevant ethical requirements regarding 
independence, and to communicate with them all rela�onships and other ma�ers that may reasonably be thought to bear on our 
independence, and where applicable, related safeguards.

From the ma�ers communicated with the board of directors, we determine those ma�ers that were of most significance in the audit 
of the financial statements of the current period and are therefore the key audit ma�ers. We describe these ma�ers in our auditor's 
report unless law or regula�on precludes public disclosure about the ma�er or when, in extremely rare circumstances, we 
determine that a ma�er should not be communicated in our report because the adverse consequences of doing so would 
reasonably be expected to outweigh the public interest benefits of such communica�on.

Report on Other Legal and Regulatory Requirements

Based on our audit, we further report that in our opinion:

a) proper books of account have been kept by the Company as required by the Companies Act, 2017 (XIX of 2017);

b) the statement of financial posi�on, the statement of profit or loss, the statement of comprehensive income, the statement of 
changes in equity and the statement of cash flows together with the notes thereon have been drawn up in conformity with the 
Companies Act, 2017 (XIX of 2017) and are in agreement with the books of account and returns;

c) investments made, expenditure incurred and guarantees extended during the year were for the purpose of the Company's 
business; and

d) zakat deduc�ble at source under the Zakat and Ushr Ordinance, 1980 (XVIII of 1980), was deducted by the Company and 
deposited in the Central Zakat Fund established under sec�on 7 of that ordinance.

Other Ma�ers

The financial statements of the Company for the year ended 30 June 2024 were audited by another auditor who in their report dated 
07 October 2024 expressed a Qualified Opinion on those financial statements.

The engagement partner on the audit resul�ng in this independent auditor's report is Aqeel Alam.

ALAM & AULAKH
Chartered Accountants

Lahore

27 October 2025

UDIN: AR202510041gojOBpwYR
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Sr. No. Key audit ma�er How our audit addressed the Key Audit Ma�er

assump�ons such as capacity u�liza�on, gross 
margin percentage, infla�on and interest rates.

Deferred tax asset valua�on is considered a key 
audit ma�er because the amounts involved are 
material, the complexi�es of the calcula�on of 
future taxable profits and the inherent 
uncertainty involved in forecas�ng taxable 
profits available in future periods.

Ÿ Reviewing the adequacy of the disclosures made by the 
Company with regard to applicable accoun�ng and 
repor�ng standards.

Informa�on other than the Financial Statements and Auditor's Report Thereon

Management is responsible for the other informa�on. The other informa�on comprises the informa�on included in the annual 
report, but does not include the financial statements and our auditor's report thereon.

Our opinion on the financial statements does not cover the other informa�on and we do not express any form of assurance 
conclusion thereon.

In connec�on with our audit of the financial statements, our responsibility is to read the other informa�on and, in doing so, consider 
whether the other informa�on is materially inconsistent with the financial statements or our knowledge obtained in the audit or 
otherwise appears to be materially misstated.

If, based on the work we have performed, we conclude that there is a material misstatement of this other informa�on, we are 
required to report that fact. We have nothing to report in this regard.

Responsibili�es of Management and Board of Directors for the Financial Statements

Management is responsible for the prepara�on and fair presenta�on of the financial statements in accordance with the accoun�ng 
and repor�ng standards as applicable in Pakistan and the requirements of Companies Act, 2017(XIX of 2017) and for such internal 
control as management determines is necessary to enable the prepara�on of financial statements that are free from material 
misstatement, whether due to fraud or error.

In preparing the financial statements, management is responsible for assessing the Company's ability to con�nue as a going 
concern, disclosing, as applicable, ma�ers related to going concern and using the going concern basis of accoun�ng unless 
management either intends to liquidate the Company or to cease opera�ons, or has no realis�c alterna�ve but to do so.

The Board of directors is responsible for overseeing the Company's financial repor�ng process.

Auditor's Responsibili�es for the Audit of the Financial Statements

Our objec�ves are to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the financial statements as a whole are free from material 
misstatement, whether due to fraud or error, and to issue an auditor's report that includes our opinion. Reasonable assurance is a 
high level of assurance, but is not a guarantee that an audit conducted in accordance with ISAs as applicable in Pakistan will always 
detect a material misstatement when it exists. Misstatements can arise from fraud or error and are considered material if, 
individually or in the aggregate, they could reasonably be expected to influence the economic decisions of user taken on the basis of 
these financial statements.

As part of an audit in accordance with ISAs as applicable in Pakistan, we exercise professional judgment and maintain professional 
skep�cism throughout the audit. We also:

Ÿ Iden�fy and assess the risks of material misstatement of the financial statements, whether due to fraud or error, design and 
perform audit procedures responsive to those risks, and obtain audit evidence that is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis 
for our opinion. The risk of not detec�ng a material misstatement resul�ng from fraud is higher than for one resul�ng from error, 
as fraud may involve collusion, forgery, inten�onal omissions, misrepresenta�ons, or the override of internal control.

Ÿ Obtain an understanding of internal control relevant to the audit in order to design audit procedures that are appropriate in the 
circumstances, but not for the purpose of expressing an opinion on the effec�veness of the Company's internal control.

Ÿ Evaluate the appropriateness of accoun�ng policies used and the reasonableness of accoun�ng es�mates and related 
disclosures made by management.

Ÿ Conclude on the appropriateness of management's use of the going concern basis of accoun�ng and, based on the audit 
evidence obtained, whether a material uncertainty exists related to events or condi�ons that may cast significant doubt on the 
Company's ability to con�nue as a going concern. If we conclude that a material uncertainty exists, we are required to draw 
a�en�on in our auditor's report to the related disclosures in the financial statements or, if such disclosures are inadequate, to 
modify our opinion. Our conclusions are based on the audit evidence obtained up to the date of our auditor's report. However, 
future events or condi�ons may cause the Company to cease to con�nue as a going concern.

Ÿ Evaluate the overall presenta�on, structure and content of the financial statements, including the disclosures, and whether the 
financial statements represent the underlying transac�ons and events in a manner that achieves fair presenta�on.

We communicate with the board of directors regarding, among other ma�ers, the planned scope and �ming of the audit and 
significant audit findings, including any significant deficiencies in internal control that we iden�fy during our audit.

We also provide the board of directors with a statement that we have complied with relevant ethical requirements regarding 
independence, and to communicate with them all rela�onships and other ma�ers that may reasonably be thought to bear on our 
independence, and where applicable, related safeguards.

From the ma�ers communicated with the board of directors, we determine those ma�ers that were of most significance in the audit 
of the financial statements of the current period and are therefore the key audit ma�ers. We describe these ma�ers in our auditor's 
report unless law or regula�on precludes public disclosure about the ma�er or when, in extremely rare circumstances, we 
determine that a ma�er should not be communicated in our report because the adverse consequences of doing so would 
reasonably be expected to outweigh the public interest benefits of such communica�on.

Report on Other Legal and Regulatory Requirements

Based on our audit, we further report that in our opinion:

a) proper books of account have been kept by the Company as required by the Companies Act, 2017 (XIX of 2017);

b) the statement of financial posi�on, the statement of profit or loss, the statement of comprehensive income, the statement of
changes in equity and the statement of cash flows together with the notes thereon have been drawn up in conformity with the
Companies Act, 2017 (XIX of 2017) and are in agreement with the books of account and returns;

c) investments made, expenditure incurred and guarantees extended during the year were for the purpose of the Company's
business; and

d) zakat deduc�ble at source under the Zakat and Ushr Ordinance, 1980 (XVIII of 1980), was deducted by the Company and
deposited in the Central Zakat Fund established under sec�on 7 of that ordinance.

Other Ma�ers

The financial statements of the Company for the year ended 30 June 2024 were audited by another auditor who in their report dated 
07 October 2024 expressed a Qualified Opinion on those financial statements.

The engagement partner on the audit resul�ng in this independent auditor's report is Aqeel Alam.

ALAM & AULAKH
Chartered Accountants

Lahore

27 October 2025

UDIN: AR202510041gojOBpwYR
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STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION
AS AT 30 JUNE 2025

EQUITY AND LIABILITIES

EQUITY

Authorized share capital

Issued ordinary share capital

Shares to be issued under scheme of arrangement

Discount on issue of ordinary shares

Reserve on merger

Retained earnings

TOTAL EQUITY

LIABILITIES

NON-CURRENT LIABILITIES

Employees re�rement benefits

CURRENT LIABILITIES

Trade and other payables

Short term borrowings

Accrued interest

Income tax payable

CONTINGENCIES AND COMMITMENTS

TOTAL EQUITY AND LIABILITIES

The annexed notes from 1 to 54 form an integral part of these financial statements

RUPEES RUPEES

Note 30-Jun-25 30-Jun-24

[restated]

6 1,200,000,000        200,000,000           

7 98,600,000             98,600,000             
8 76,324,000             76,324,000             
9 (98,100,000)           (98,100,000)           

10 (116,045,831)         (116,045,831)         
665,862,684           320,497,907           

626,640,853           281,276,076           

11 4,411,746
               

3,450,851
               

4,411,746
               

3,450,851
               

12 195,283,006
           

160,177,218
           

13 97,950,501
             

66,001,489
             

4,452,803
               

2,105,800
               

14 4,423,205
               

4,423,205
               

302,109,515
           

232,707,712
           

15

933,162,114
           

517,434,639
           

ASSETS

NON-CURRENT ASSETS

Property and equipment

Intangible assets

Long term deposits

Deferred taxa�on

CURRENT ASSETS

Trade receivables

Deposits and prepayments

Advances and other receivables

Income tax refundable/adjustable

Cash and bank balances

The annexed notes from 1 to 54 form an integral part of these financial statements

RUPEES RUPEES

Note 30-Jun-25 30-Jun-24

[restated]

16 1,764,976
 

1,674,959
               

17 58,437,289
 

73,046,611
             

18 1,231,650
 

1,531,760
               

19 76,619,541
 

-
                         

138,053,456
 

76,253,330
             

20 748,835,856
 

426,130,848
           

21 9,069,790
 

9,103,581
               

22 9,323,748
 

5,123,431
               

892,142
 

788,182
                  

23 26,987,122
 

35,267
                    

795,108,658
 

441,181,309
           

            

          

              

              

                 

                   

          

TOTAL ASSETS 933,162,114
           

517,434,639
                     

CHIEF EXECUTIVE OFFICER DIRECTOR CHIEF FINANCIAL OFFICER CHIEF EXECUTIVE OFFICER DIRECTOR CHIEF FINANCIAL OFFICER
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STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION
AS AT 30 JUNE 2025

EQUITY AND LIABILITIES

EQUITY

Authorized share capital

Issued ordinary share capital

Shares to be issued under scheme of arrangement

Discount on issue of ordinary shares

Reserve on merger

Retained earnings

TOTAL EQUITY

LIABILITIES

NON-CURRENT LIABILITIES

Employees re�rement benefits

CURRENT LIABILITIES

Trade and other payables

Short term borrowings

Accrued interest

Income tax payable

CONTINGENCIES AND COMMITMENTS

TOTAL EQUITY AND LIABILITIES

The annexed notes from 1 to 54 form an integral part of these financial statements

RUPEES RUPEES

Note 30-Jun-25 30-Jun-24

[restated]

6 1,200,000,000        200,000,000           

7 98,600,000             98,600,000             
8 76,324,000             76,324,000             
9 (98,100,000)           (98,100,000)           

10 (116,045,831)         (116,045,831)         
665,862,684           320,497,907           

626,640,853           281,276,076           

11 4,411,746
               

3,450,851
               

4,411,746
               

3,450,851
               

12 195,283,006
           

160,177,218
           

13 97,950,501
             

66,001,489
             

4,452,803
               

2,105,800
               

14 4,423,205
               

4,423,205
               

302,109,515
           

232,707,712
           

15

933,162,114
           

517,434,639
           

ASSETS

NON-CURRENT ASSETS

Property and equipment

Intangible assets

Long term deposits

Deferred taxa�on

CURRENT ASSETS

Trade receivables

Deposits and prepayments

Advances and other receivables

Income tax refundable/adjustable

Cash and bank balances

The annexed notes from 1 to 54 form an integral part of these financial statements

RUPEES RUPEES

Note 30-Jun-25 30-Jun-24

[restated]

16 1,764,976
 

1,674,959
               

17 58,437,289
 

73,046,611
             

18 1,231,650
 

1,531,760
               

19 76,619,541
 

-
                         

138,053,456
 

76,253,330
             

20 748,835,856
 

426,130,848
           

21 9,069,790
 

9,103,581
               

22 9,323,748
 

5,123,431
               

892,142
 

788,182
                  

23 26,987,122
 

35,267
                    

795,108,658
 

441,181,309
           

            

          

              

              

                 

                   

          

TOTAL ASSETS 933,162,114
           

517,434,639
                     

CHIEF EXECUTIVE OFFICER DIRECTOR CHIEF FINANCIAL OFFICER CHIEF EXECUTIVE OFFICER DIRECTOR CHIEF FINANCIAL OFFICER
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STATEMENT OF PROFIT OR LOSS STATEMENT OF COMPREHENSIVE INCOME
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 30 JUNE 2025 FOR THE YEAR ENDED 30 JUNE 2025

Revenue from contracts with customers - net

Direct cost

Gross profit

Other income

Administra�ve expenses

Other expenses

Impairment allowance for expected credit losses

Opera�ng profit

Finance cost

Profit before levies and income taxes

Provision for levies

Profit before income taxes

Provision for income taxes

Profit a�er income taxes

Basic earnings per share

Diluted earnings per share

The annexed notes from 1 to 54 form an integral part of these financial statements

RUPEES RUPEES

Note 30-Jun-25 30-Jun-24

[restated]

24 441,520,529        338,903,402        

25 (142,830,810)      (130,595,048)      

298,689,719        208,308,354        

26 50,496,561          2,902,794            

27 (52,064,296)        (40,302,975)        
28 (300,110)             -                     

(52,364,406)        (40,302,975)        

39.1.6 (15,533,138)        -                      

281,288,736
        

170,908,173
        

29 (9,067,345)
          

(7,270,744)
          

272,221,391
        

163,637,429
        

30 (4,015,228)
          

(893,719)
             

268,206,163
        

162,743,710
        

31 76,630,315
          

(4,423,205)
          

344,836,478
        

158,320,505
        

32 34.97
                   

16.06
                   

33 3.20
                     

1.47
                     

Profit a�er income taxes

Other comprehensive income:

Items that will not be reclassified subsequently to profit or loss

Remeasurements of defined benefit obliga�on

Income tax rela�ng to items that will not be reclassified

Items that may be reclassified subsequently to profit or loss

Other comprehensive income a�er income taxes

Total comprehensive income

The annexed notes from 1 to 54 form an integral part of these financial statements

RUPEES RUPEES

Note 30-Jun-25 30-Jun-24

[restated]

344,836,478      158,320,505      

11.1 539,073 -                     
19.1 (10,774) -

528,299             -                     

- -

528,299
             

-
                     

345,364,777
      

158,320,505
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STATEMENT OF PROFIT OR LOSS STATEMENT OF COMPREHENSIVE INCOME
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 30 JUNE 2025 FOR THE YEAR ENDED 30 JUNE 2025

Revenue from contracts with customers - net

Direct cost

Gross profit

Other income

Administra�ve expenses

Other expenses

Impairment allowance for expected credit losses

Opera�ng profit

Finance cost

Profit before levies and income taxes

Provision for levies

Profit before income taxes

Provision for income taxes

Profit a�er income taxes

Basic earnings per share

Diluted earnings per share

The annexed notes from 1 to 54 form an integral part of these financial statements

RUPEES RUPEES

Note 30-Jun-25 30-Jun-24

[restated]

24 441,520,529        338,903,402        

25 (142,830,810)      (130,595,048)      

298,689,719        208,308,354        

26 50,496,561          2,902,794            

27 (52,064,296)        (40,302,975)        
28 (300,110)             -                     

(52,364,406)        (40,302,975)        

39.1.6 (15,533,138)        -                      

281,288,736
        

170,908,173
        

29 (9,067,345)
          

(7,270,744)
          

272,221,391
        

163,637,429
        

30 (4,015,228)
          

(893,719)
             

268,206,163
        

162,743,710
        

31 76,630,315
          

(4,423,205)
          

344,836,478
        

158,320,505
        

32 34.97
                   

16.06
                   

33 3.20
                     

1.47
                     

Profit a�er income taxes

Other comprehensive income:

Items that will not be reclassified subsequently to profit or loss

Remeasurements of defined benefit obliga�on

Income tax rela�ng to items that will not be reclassified

Items that may be reclassified subsequently to profit or loss

Other comprehensive income a�er income taxes

Total comprehensive income

The annexed notes from 1 to 54 form an integral part of these financial statements

RUPEES RUPEES

Note 30-Jun-25 30-Jun-24

[restated]

344,836,478      158,320,505      

11.1 539,073 -                     
19.1 (10,774) -

528,299             -                     

- -

528,299
             

-
                     

345,364,777
      

158,320,505
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STATEMENT OF CHANGES IN EQUITY STATEMENT OF CASH FLOWS
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 30 JUNE 2025 FOR THE YEAR ENDED 30 JUNE 2025

Shares to be (Accumulated

Issued issued under Discount losses)/

ordinary scheme of on issue of Reserve on Retained Total

Note share capital arrangement ordinary shares merger earnings equity

Rupees Rupees Rupees Rupees Rupees Rupees

[restated]

Balance as at 01 July 2023 98,600,000

            

-

                         

-

                         

-

                         

(137,926,211)

         

(39,326,211)

           

Total comprehensive income for the year

Profit a�er income taxes -

 

-

 

-

 

-

 

158,320,505

 

158,320,505

 

Other comprehensive income a�er income taxes -

 

-

 

- -

 

-

 

-

 

-

                         

-

 

-

                         

-

                         

158,320,505

          

158,320,505

          

Other transac�ons

Effects of scheme of arrangement 1.2 -

                         

76,324,000

            

(98,100,000)

           

(116,045,831)

         

300,103,613

          

162,281,782

          

Balance as at 30 June 2024 - as restated 98,600,000 76,324,000 (98,100,000) (116,045,831) 320,497,907 281,276,076

Balance as at  01 July 2024 98,600,000

            

76,324,000

            

(98,100,000)

           

(116,045,831)

         

320,497,907

          

281,276,076

          

Total comprehensive income for the year

Profit a�er income taxes - - - - 344,836,478 344,836,478

Other comprehensive loss a�er income taxes - - - - 528,299 528,299

- - - - 345,364,777 345,364,777

Other transac�ons - - - - - -

Balance as at 30 June 2025 98,600,000 76,324,000 (98,100,000) (116,045,831) 665,862,684 626,640,853

The annexed notes from 1 to 54 form an integral part of these financial statements

                                                                

CASH FLOWS FROM OPERATING ACTIVITIES

Cash (used in)/generated from opera�ons

Payments for:

Interest on borrowings

Employees re�rement benefit

Income taxes and levies under ITO, 2001

Net cash (used in)/generated from opera�ng ac�vi�es

CASH FLOWS FROM INVESTING ACTIVITIES

Purchase of property, plant and equipment

Proceeds from disposal of property, plant and equipment

Purchase of intangible assets

Net cash used in inves�ng ac�vi�es

CASH FLOWS FROM FINANCING ACTIVITIES

Net increase/(decrease) in short term borrowings

Net cash generated from/(used in) financing ac�vi�es

NET INCREASE/(DECREASE) IN CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS

CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS AT BEGINNING OF THE YEAR

CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS ACQUIRED UNDER SCHEME OF ARRANGEMENT

CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS AT END OF THE YEAR

The annexed notes from 1 to 54 form an integral part of these financial statements

RUPEES RUPEES

Note 30-Jun-25 30-Jun-24

[restated]

35 2,752,300        78,418,859       

(6,650,980)       (5,101,607)       
-                   -                   

(237,169)          (176,409)          

(4,135,849)       73,140,843       

(1,801,832)       (6,817,170)       
940,524           7,292,862         

-
                   

(800,000)
         

         

 

(861,308)
          

(324,308)
          

31,949,012
      

(72,858,171)
     

31,949,012
      

(72,858,171)
     

26,951,855
      

(41,636)
            

35,267
             

10,913
              

-
                   

65,990
              

26,987,122
      

35,267
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STATEMENT OF CHANGES IN EQUITY STATEMENT OF CASH FLOWS
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 30 JUNE 2025 FOR THE YEAR ENDED 30 JUNE 2025

Shares to be (Accumulated

Issued issued under Discount losses)/

ordinary scheme of on issue of Reserve on Retained Total

Note share capital arrangement ordinary shares merger earnings equity

Rupees Rupees Rupees Rupees Rupees Rupees

[restated]

Balance as at 01 July 2023 98,600,000 - - - (137,926,211) (39,326,211)

Total comprehensive income for the year

Profit a�er income taxes - - - - 158,320,505 158,320,505

Other comprehensive income a�er income taxes - - - - - -

- - - - 158,320,505 158,320,505

Other transac�ons

Effects of scheme of arrangement 1.2 - 76,324,000 (98,100,000) (116,045,831) 300,103,613 162,281,782

Balance as at 30 June 2024 - as restated 98,600,000 76,324,000 (98,100,000) (116,045,831) 320,497,907 281,276,076

Balance as at  01 July 2024 98,600,000 76,324,000 (98,100,000) (116,045,831) 320,497,907 281,276,076

Total comprehensive income for the year

Profit a�er income taxes - - - - 344,836,478 344,836,478

Other comprehensive loss a�er income taxes - - - - 528,299 528,299

- - - - 345,364,777 345,364,777

Other transac�ons - - - - - -

Balance as at 30 June 2025 98,600,000 76,324,000 (98,100,000) (116,045,831) 665,862,684 626,640,853

The annexed notes from 1 to 54 form an integral part of these financial statements

   

CASH FLOWS FROM OPERATING ACTIVITIES

Cash (used in)/generated from opera�ons

Payments for:

Interest on borrowings

Employees re�rement benefit

Income taxes and levies under ITO, 2001

Net cash (used in)/generated from opera�ng ac�vi�es

CASH FLOWS FROM INVESTING ACTIVITIES

Purchase of property, plant and equipment

Proceeds from disposal of property, plant and equipment

Purchase of intangible assets

Net cash used in inves�ng ac�vi�es

CASH FLOWS FROM FINANCING ACTIVITIES

Net increase/(decrease) in short term borrowings

Net cash generated from/(used in) financing ac�vi�es

NET INCREASE/(DECREASE) IN CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS

CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS AT BEGINNING OF THE YEAR

CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS ACQUIRED UNDER SCHEME OF ARRANGEMENT

CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS AT END OF THE YEAR

The annexed notes from 1 to 54 form an integral part of these financial statements

RUPEES RUPEES

Note 30-Jun-25 30-Jun-24

[restated]

35 2,752,300        78,418,859       

(6,650,980)       (5,101,607)       
-                  -                  

(237,169)          (176,409)          

(4,135,849)       73,140,843       

(1,801,832)       (6,817,170)       
940,524           7,292,862         

-
                  

(800,000)
         

         

 

(861,308)
          

(324,308)
          

31,949,012
      

(72,858,171)
     

31,949,012 (72,858,171)

26,951,855 (41,636)
            

35,267 10,913
              

- 65,990

26,987,122 35,267
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 30 JUNE 2025
1. LEGAL STATUS AND OPERATIONS

ITANZ Technologies Limited (formerly, Zahur Co�on Mills Limited) ['the Company'] was incorporated under the repealed
Companies Act, 1913 Ordinance, 1984 on 21 April 1990. The Company is a 'Public Company Limited by Shares' and is listed
on Pakistan Stock Exchange Limited. The principal ac�vity of the Company is manufacturing and sale of greige fabric.
Consequent to approval of scheme of arrangement as discussed in note 1.2, the principal line of business has been
amended to include rendering/providing consultancy services in the field of Informa�on Technology (IT) and IT enabled
services including so�ware development, installa�on and implementa�on and other IT related supplies and services.

The Company is presently placed under the Defaulters/Suspension Counter of the Pakistan Stock Exchange ['PSX'] due to
certain non-compliances specified under Sec�on 5.11.1 of the PSX Regula�ons. The primary reasons include: (a) non-
opera�onal status of the Company’s principal line of business; and (b) non-induc�on of shares into the Central Depository
Company (CDC) system.

However, the Company has since resumed its business opera�ons in its principal line of ac�vity as an Informa�on
Technology enterprise and has obtained CDC eligibility. All major corporate and legal compliances, inter alia, have been duly
addressed.

The Company has also increased its authorized and paid-up share capital and is currently in the process of issuing new
shares to the incoming major sponsors through the CDC. The impact of this share issuance will be reflected in the Company’s
financial statements for the first quarter of the upcoming period.

1.1 Loca�on of business unit

Registered Office 623-B, PCSIR, Phase II, Lahore, Pakistan.

1.2 Amalgama�on under Scheme Of Arrangement

The Honourable Lahore High Court ['LHC'] vide its order dated 24 March 2025, has approved the Scheme of Arrangement for 
merger of the Company and ITANZ Technology (Private) Limited ['ITANZ'], wherein it was proposed to merge ITANZ with and 
into the Company with effect from 01 October 2023. Consequently, all assets, liabili�es, contracts, licenses, obliga�ons, and 
undertakings of ITANZ stand transferred to and vested in the Company as at the effec�ve date against allotment and issue of 
ordinary shares in the Company to shareholders of ITANZ with ITANZ dissolved without winding up. The merger is a reverse 
acquisi�on in terms of paragraph B19 of IFRS 3 Business Combina�ons. Accordingly, ITANZ is the accoun�ng acquirer (legal 
acquiree) while the Company is the accoun�ng acquiree (legal acquirer).

In accordance with the scheme, the authorized share capital of the Company has increased from Rs. 200 million comprising 
20,000,000 ordinary shares of Rs. 10 each to Rs. 1,200 million, comprising 120,000,000 ordinary shares of Rs. 10 each, to 
accommodate the shares to be issued under the share swap arrangement.

 As considera�on for the merger, the Company will issue 97,961,500 fully paid ordinary shares to the shareholders of ITANZ. 
Following the issuance, the Company's paid-up share capital will increase to 107,821,500 ordinary shares. The valua�on and 
share exchange ra�o were determined based on a valua�on report issued by an independent valuer, Aamir Salman Rizwan 
Chartered Accountants, using fair value assessments of both en��es.

Post-merger, the business ac�vi�es previously carried out by ITANZ con�nued as an integral part of the Company's 
opera�ons, under the name and pla�orm of the Company, without any disrup�on. Therefore, consequent to approval of 
scheme of arrangement, the principal line of business has been amended to include rendering/providing consultancy 
services in the field of Informa�on Technology (IT) and IT enables services including so�ware development, installa�on and 
implementa�on and other IT related supplies and services. Furthur, pursuant to the provisions of Sec�on 13 of the 
Companies Act, 2017 (XIX of 2017) read with regula�on 6 of the Companies’ regula�ons, the name of the Company has been 
changed to ITANZ Technologies Limited.

Details of assets and liabili�es assumed by the Company as a direct consequence of scheme of arrangement along with 
other disclosures are given in note 50 to these financial statements.

2 BASIS OF PREPARATION

2.1 Statement of compliance

These financial statements have been prepared in accordance with the accoun�ng and repor�ng standards applicable in 
Pakistan. The accoun�ng and repor�ng standards applicable in Pakistan comprise of:

- Interna�onal Financial Repor�ng Standards ['IFRS'] issued by the Interna�onal Accoun�ng Standards Board as no�fied 
under the Companies Act, 2017;

- Islamic Financial Accoun�ng Standards ['IFAS'] issued by Ins�tute of Chartered Accountants of Pakistan as no�fied under 
the Companies Act, 2017; and

- Provisions of and direc�ves issued under the Companies Act, 2017.

Where provisions of and direc�ves issued under the Companies Act, 2017 differ from the IFRS and IFAS Standards, the 
provisions of and direc�ves issued under the Companies Act, 2017 have been followed.

2.2 Basis of measurement

These financial statements have been prepared on the historical cost basis except for the following items, which are 
measured on an alterna�ve basis as at the repor�ng date.

Items Measurement basis

Financial liabili�es Amor�zed cost

Employees re�rement benefits Present value

Financial assets Amor�zed cost

2.3 Cri�cal accoun�ng judgements and key sources of es�ma�on uncertainty

The prepara�on of financial statements requires management to make judgments, es�mates and assump�ons that affect 
the applica�on of accoun�ng policies and the reported amounts of assets, liabili�es, income and expenses. The es�mates 
and associated assump�ons and judgments are based on historical experience and various other factors that are believed to 
be reasonable under the circumstances, the result of which forms the basis of making judgments about carrying values of 
assets and liabili�es that are not readily apparent from other sources. Subsequently, actual results may differ from these 
es�mates. Es�mates and underlying assump�ons are reviewed on an ongoing basis. Revisions to accoun�ng es�mates are 
recognized in the period in which the es�mate is revised and in any future periods affected. 

2.3.1 Cri�cal accoun�ng judgements

Cri�cal accoun�ng judgements made by the management in the applica�on of accoun�ng and repor�ng standards that 
have significant effect on the financial statements are as follows:

(a) Business model assessment (see note 5.2.2)

The Company classifies its financial assets on the basis of the Company's business model for managing the financial 
assets and the contractual cash flow characteris�cs of the financial asset. The Company determines the business 
model at a level that reflects how financial assets are managed to achieve a par�cular business objec�ve. This 
assessment includes judgement reflec�ng all relevant evidence including how the performance of the assets is 
evaluated and their performance measured, the risks that affect the performance of the assets and how these are 
managed. The Company monitors financial assets measured at amor�zed cost that are derecognized prior to their 
maturity to understand the reason for their disposal and whether the reasons are consistent with the objec�ve of the 
business for which the asset was held. Monitoring is part of the Company’s con�nuous assessment of whether the 
business model for which the remaining financial assets are held con�nues to be appropriate and if it is not appropriate 
whether there has been a change in business model and so a prospec�ve change to the classifica�on of those assets. 
No such changes were required during the year.
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 30 JUNE 2025
1. LEGAL STATUS AND OPERATIONS

ITANZ Technologies Limited (formerly, Zahur Co�on Mills Limited) ['the Company'] was incorporated under the repealed 
Companies Act, 1913 Ordinance, 1984 on 21 April 1990. The Company is a 'Public Company Limited by Shares' and is listed 
on Pakistan Stock Exchange Limited. The principal ac�vity of the Company is manufacturing and sale of greige fabric. 
Consequent to approval of scheme of arrangement as discussed in note 1.2, the principal line of business has been 
amended to include rendering/providing consultancy services in the field of Informa�on Technology (IT) and IT enabled 
services including so�ware development, installa�on and implementa�on and other IT related supplies and services.              

The Company is presently placed under the Defaulters/Suspension Counter of the Pakistan Stock Exchange ['PSX'] due to 
certain non-compliances specified under Sec�on 5.11.1 of the PSX Regula�ons. The primary reasons include: (a) non-
opera�onal status of the Company’s principal line of business; and (b) non-induc�on of shares into the Central Depository 
Company (CDC) system.

However, the Company has since resumed its business opera�ons in its principal line of ac�vity as an Informa�on 
Technology enterprise and has obtained CDC eligibility. All major corporate and legal compliances, inter alia, have been duly 
addressed.

The Company has also increased its authorized and paid-up share capital and is currently in the process of issuing new 
shares to the incoming major sponsors through the CDC. The impact of this share issuance will be reflected in the Company’s 
financial statements for the first quarter of the upcoming period.

1.1 Loca�on of business unit

Registered Office 623-B, PCSIR, Phase II, Lahore, Pakistan.

1.2 Amalgama�on under Scheme Of Arrangement

The Honourable Lahore High Court ['LHC'] vide its order dated 24 March 2025, has approved the Scheme of Arrangement for 
merger of the Company and ITANZ Technology (Private) Limited ['ITANZ'], wherein it was proposed to merge ITANZ with and 
into the Company with effect from 01 October 2023. Consequently, all assets, liabili�es, contracts, licenses, obliga�ons, and 
undertakings of ITANZ stand transferred to and vested in the Company as at the effec�ve date against allotment and issue of 
ordinary shares in the Company to shareholders of ITANZ with ITANZ dissolved without winding up. The merger is a reverse 
acquisi�on in terms of paragraph B19 of IFRS 3 Business Combina�ons. Accordingly, ITANZ is the accoun�ng acquirer (legal 
acquiree) while the Company is the accoun�ng acquiree (legal acquirer).

In accordance with the scheme, the authorized share capital of the Company has increased from Rs. 200 million comprising 
20,000,000 ordinary shares of Rs. 10 each to Rs. 1,200 million, comprising 120,000,000 ordinary shares of Rs. 10 each, to 
accommodate the shares to be issued under the share swap arrangement.

As considera�on for the merger, the Company will issue 97,961,500 fully paid ordinary shares to the shareholders of ITANZ. 
Following the issuance, the Company's paid-up share capital will increase to 107,821,500 ordinary shares. The valua�on and 
share exchange ra�o were determined based on a valua�on report issued by an independent valuer, Aamir Salman Rizwan 
Chartered Accountants, using fair value assessments of both en��es.

Post-merger, the business ac�vi�es previously carried out by ITANZ con�nued as an integral part of the Company's 
opera�ons, under the name and pla�orm of the Company, without any disrup�on. Therefore, consequent to approval of 
scheme of arrangement, the principal line of business has been amended to include rendering/providing consultancy 
services in the field of Informa�on Technology (IT) and IT enables services including so�ware development, installa�on and 
implementa�on and other IT related supplies and services. Furthur, pursuant to the provisions of Sec�on 13 of the 
Companies Act, 2017 (XIX of 2017) read with regula�on 6 of the Companies’ regula�ons, the name of the Company has been 
changed to ITANZ Technologies Limited.

Details of assets and liabili�es assumed by the Company as a direct consequence of scheme of arrangement along with 
other disclosures are given in note 50 to these financial statements.

2 BASIS OF PREPARATION

2.1 Statement of compliance

These financial statements have been prepared in accordance with the accoun�ng and repor�ng standards applicable in 
Pakistan. The accoun�ng and repor�ng standards applicable in Pakistan comprise of:

- Interna�onal Financial Repor�ng Standards ['IFRS'] issued by the Interna�onal Accoun�ng Standards Board as no�fied 
under the Companies Act, 2017;

- Islamic Financial Accoun�ng Standards ['IFAS'] issued by Ins�tute of Chartered Accountants of Pakistan as no�fied under 
the Companies Act, 2017; and

- Provisions of and direc�ves issued under the Companies Act, 2017.

Where provisions of and direc�ves issued under the Companies Act, 2017 differ from the IFRS and IFAS Standards, the 
provisions of and direc�ves issued under the Companies Act, 2017 have been followed.

2.2 Basis of measurement

These financial statements have been prepared on the historical cost basis except for the following items, which are 
measured on an alterna�ve basis as at the repor�ng date.

Items Measurement basis

Financial liabili�es Amor�zed cost

Employees re�rement benefits Present value

Financial assets Amor�zed cost

2.3 Cri�cal accoun�ng judgements and key sources of es�ma�on uncertainty

The prepara�on of financial statements requires management to make judgments, es�mates and assump�ons that affect 
the applica�on of accoun�ng policies and the reported amounts of assets, liabili�es, income and expenses. The es�mates 
and associated assump�ons and judgments are based on historical experience and various other factors that are believed to 
be reasonable under the circumstances, the result of which forms the basis of making judgments about carrying values of 
assets and liabili�es that are not readily apparent from other sources. Subsequently, actual results may differ from these 
es�mates. Es�mates and underlying assump�ons are reviewed on an ongoing basis. Revisions to accoun�ng es�mates are 
recognized in the period in which the es�mate is revised and in any future periods affected. 

2.3.1 Cri�cal accoun�ng judgements

Cri�cal accoun�ng judgements made by the management in the applica�on of accoun�ng and repor�ng standards that 
have significant effect on the financial statements are as follows:

(a) Business model assessment (see note 5.2.2)

The Company classifies its financial assets on the basis of the Company's business model for managing the financial 
assets and the contractual cash flow characteris�cs of the financial asset. The Company determines the business 
model at a level that reflects how financial assets are managed to achieve a par�cular business objec�ve. This 
assessment includes judgement reflec�ng all relevant evidence including how the performance of the assets is 
evaluated and their performance measured, the risks that affect the performance of the assets and how these are 
managed. The Company monitors financial assets measured at amor�zed cost that are derecognized prior to their 
maturity to understand the reason for their disposal and whether the reasons are consistent with the objec�ve of the 
business for which the asset was held. Monitoring is part of the Company’s con�nuous assessment of whether the 
business model for which the remaining financial assets are held con�nues to be appropriate and if it is not appropriate 
whether there has been a change in business model and so a prospec�ve change to the classifica�on of those assets. 
No such changes were required during the year.
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 (b) Sa�sfac�on of Performance Obliga�on in IT/ITES and Technology Service Contracts (see note 5.11.1)

  As outlined in note 1, persunat to scheme of arrangement, the Company amended its core business to focus on high-
value IT and IT-enabled services. spanning outsourcing, so�ware development and implementa�on, and so�ware 
licensing delivered through three strategic segments: Product-Based Solu�ons, Professional Services and Business 
Process Outsourcing.

  Many customer arrangements are customised, mul�-phase contracts that integrate so�ware, implementa�on, and 
ongoing support. In the IT/ITES industry, contracts frequently meet the over-�me criteria due to the high degree of 
customisa�on, integra�on with client infrastructure, and enforceable contractual rights for work performed. 
Management applies significant judgement to determine whether performance obliga�ons are sa�sfied over �me or 
at a point in �me. For performance obliga�ons recognised over �me, the Company selects a measure of progress that 
most faithfully represents the transfer of control to the customer. Significant es�ma�on is required in forecas�ng total 
project costs and �melines, assessing the impact of technical complexi�es, scope changes, and subcontractor 
performance. Revisions to these es�mates are recognised prospec�vely and may materially affect the amount and 
�ming of revenue and profit. Management reviews these es�mates regularly based on updated project performance 
data and contractual developments.

 (c) Significant increase in credit risk (see note 5.13.1)

  Expected credit losses ['ECL'] are measured, based on the Company's risk grading framework, at an allowance equal to 
12-month/life�me ECL for 'performing' assets, or life�me ECL for assets categorized as 'doub�ul' or 'in default'. An 
asset is categorized as 'doub�ul' when its credit risk has increased significantly since ini�al recogni�on. IFRS 9 does not 
define what cons�tutes a significant increase in credit risk. In assessing whether the credit risk of an asset has 
significantly increased the Company takes into account qualita�ve and quan�ta�ve reasonable and supportable 
forward-looking informa�on.

2.3.2 Key sources of es�ma�on uncertainty

 The key assump�ons concerning the future, and other key sources of es�ma�on uncertainty at the repor�ng date that may 
have a significant risk of causing a material adjustment to the carrying amounts of assets and liabili�es within the next 
financial year, are as follows:

 (a) Calcula�on of impairment allowance for expected credit losses on financial assets (see note 39.1.3)

  The Company recognizes a loss allowance for expected credit losses on financial assets carried at amor�zed cost on 
date of ini�al recogni�on. The amount of expected credit losses is updated on each repor�ng date to reflect the 
changes in credit risk since ini�al recogni�on of the respec�ve financial asset. Es�ma�ng expected credit losses and 
changes there in requires taking into account qualita�ve and quan�ta�ve forward looking informa�on. When 
measuring expected credit losses on financial assets the Company uses reasonable and supportable forward looking 
informa�on as well as historical data to calculate the difference between the contractual cash flows due and those that 
the Company would expect to receive, taking into account cash flows from collateral and integral credit enhancements, 
if any. Probability of default cons�tutes a key input in measuring expected credit losses. Probability of default is an 
es�mate of the likelihood of default over a given �me horizon, the calcula�on of which includes historical data, 
assump�ons and expecta�ons of future condi�ons. If the ECL rates on financial assets carried at amor�zed cost were 
higher (lower) by 10%, the loss allowance on those assets would have been higher (lower) by Rs. 80.45 million (30-Jun-
24: Rs. 43.98 million). 

 (b) Present value of defined benefit obliga�on (see note 11)

  The determina�on of the Company's defined benefit obliga�on depends on certain assump�ons, which include 
selec�on of the discount rate, average rate of increase in salaries and mortality rates. The discount rate is set by 
reference to market yields at the end of the repor�ng period on government bonds as there is no deep market for high 
quality corporate bonds in Pakistan. Average rate of increase in salary are based on market expecta�ons, infla�on and 
historical trends. Mortality rates are based upon SLIC(2001-05) mortality table. These assump�ons are considered to 
be a key source of es�ma�on uncertainty as rela�vely small changes in the assump�ons used may have a significant 
effect on the Company's financial statements within the next year.

  Present value of defined benefit obliga�on has been determined using projected unit credit method. The liability as at 
the repor�ng date has been determined by an independent actuary, Anwar Associates, Consul�ng Actuaries. The 
principal assump�ons used in determining present value of defined benefit obliga�on are:

RUPEES RUPEES

30-Jun-25 30-Jun-24

Discount rate 11.75%           14.75%           
Expected rates of increase in salary 10.75%           13.75%           

Change Defined

in actuarial benefit

assump�on obliga�on

RUPEES

+ 1% 4,172,761
       

- 1% 4,722,169
       

Discount rate

Expected rate of increase in salary + 1% 4,727,362
       

- 1% 4,162,794
       

30-Jun-25

  An analysis of sensi�vity for discount rate and expected rate of increase in salary used to determine the present value 
of defined benefit obliga�on as at the repor�ng date showing how the defined benefit obliga�on would have been 
affected by changes in relevant actuarial assump�on that were reasonably possible at that date is as follows:

 (c) Provisions for levies and income taxes under Income Tax Ordinance, 2001 (see note 30 and 31)

  The Company takes into account the current income tax law and decisions taken by appellate and other relevant legal 
forums while es�ma�ng its provisions for income taxes, levies and tax con�ngencies under the Income Tax Ordinance, 
2001 ['the Ordinance'].

  The provision for levies and current tax under the Ordinance are es�mated at Rs. 4.015 million (30-Jun-24: Rs. 0.894 
million) and Rs. nil (30-Jun-24: Rs. 4.423 million) respec�vely. The management believes that the provision for current 
tax and levies made in the financial statements is sufficient to discharge related liabili�es under the Ordinance.

  Credit for deferred tax of Rs. 76.63 milion (30-Jun-24: Rs. nil) has been es�mated a�er taking into account historical and 
future turnover and profit trends and their taxability under the current tax law.

2.4 Presenta�on currency

 These financial statements have been prepared in Pak Rupees which is the Company's func�onal currency. The amounts 
reported in these financial statements have been rounded to the nearest Rupees unless specified otherwise.

2.5 Date of authoriza�on for issue

 These financial statements have been approved by the Board of Directors of the Company and authorized for issue on 27 
October 2025.

3 NEW AND REVISED STANDARDS, INTERPRETATIONS AND AMENDMENTS EFFECTIVE DURING THE YEAR.

 The following new and revised Interna�onal Financial Repor�ng Standards [IFRS] and Interna�onal Accoun�ng Standards 
[IAS], interpreta�ons of and amendments to IFRS and IAS are effec�ve in the current period but are either not relevant to the 
Company or their applica�on does not have any material impact on the financial statements of the Company other than 
presenta�on and disclosures, except as stated otherwise.

3.1 Classifica�on of Liabili�es as Current or Non-Current (Amendments to IAS 1)

 The amendments aim to promote consistency in applying the requirements by helping companies determine whether, in 
the statement of financial posi�on, debt and other liabili�es with an uncertain se�lement date should be classified as 
current (due or poten�ally due to be se�led within one year) or non-current.
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 (b) Sa�sfac�on of Performance Obliga�on in IT/ITES and Technology Service Contracts (see note 5.11.1)

  As outlined in note 1, persunat to scheme of arrangement, the Company amended its core business to focus on high-
value IT and IT-enabled services. spanning outsourcing, so�ware development and implementa�on, and so�ware 
licensing delivered through three strategic segments: Product-Based Solu�ons, Professional Services and Business 
Process Outsourcing.

  Many customer arrangements are customised, mul�-phase contracts that integrate so�ware, implementa�on, and 
ongoing support. In the IT/ITES industry, contracts frequently meet the over-�me criteria due to the high degree of 
customisa�on, integra�on with client infrastructure, and enforceable contractual rights for work performed. 
Management applies significant judgement to determine whether performance obliga�ons are sa�sfied over �me or 
at a point in �me. For performance obliga�ons recognised over �me, the Company selects a measure of progress that 
most faithfully represents the transfer of control to the customer. Significant es�ma�on is required in forecas�ng total 
project costs and �melines, assessing the impact of technical complexi�es, scope changes, and subcontractor 
performance. Revisions to these es�mates are recognised prospec�vely and may materially affect the amount and 
�ming of revenue and profit. Management reviews these es�mates regularly based on updated project performance 
data and contractual developments.

 (c) Significant increase in credit risk (see note 5.13.1)

  Expected credit losses ['ECL'] are measured, based on the Company's risk grading framework, at an allowance equal to 
12-month/life�me ECL for 'performing' assets, or life�me ECL for assets categorized as 'doub�ul' or 'in default'. An 
asset is categorized as 'doub�ul' when its credit risk has increased significantly since ini�al recogni�on. IFRS 9 does not 
define what cons�tutes a significant increase in credit risk. In assessing whether the credit risk of an asset has 
significantly increased the Company takes into account qualita�ve and quan�ta�ve reasonable and supportable 
forward-looking informa�on.

2.3.2 Key sources of es�ma�on uncertainty

 The key assump�ons concerning the future, and other key sources of es�ma�on uncertainty at the repor�ng date that may 
have a significant risk of causing a material adjustment to the carrying amounts of assets and liabili�es within the next 
financial year, are as follows:

 (a) Calcula�on of impairment allowance for expected credit losses on financial assets (see note 39.1.3)

  The Company recognizes a loss allowance for expected credit losses on financial assets carried at amor�zed cost on 
date of ini�al recogni�on. The amount of expected credit losses is updated on each repor�ng date to reflect the 
changes in credit risk since ini�al recogni�on of the respec�ve financial asset. Es�ma�ng expected credit losses and 
changes there in requires taking into account qualita�ve and quan�ta�ve forward looking informa�on. When 
measuring expected credit losses on financial assets the Company uses reasonable and supportable forward looking 
informa�on as well as historical data to calculate the difference between the contractual cash flows due and those that 
the Company would expect to receive, taking into account cash flows from collateral and integral credit enhancements, 
if any. Probability of default cons�tutes a key input in measuring expected credit losses. Probability of default is an 
es�mate of the likelihood of default over a given �me horizon, the calcula�on of which includes historical data, 
assump�ons and expecta�ons of future condi�ons. If the ECL rates on financial assets carried at amor�zed cost were 
higher (lower) by 10%, the loss allowance on those assets would have been higher (lower) by Rs. 80.45 million (30-Jun-
24: Rs. 43.98 million). 

 (b) Present value of defined benefit obliga�on (see note 11)

  The determina�on of the Company's defined benefit obliga�on depends on certain assump�ons, which include 
selec�on of the discount rate, average rate of increase in salaries and mortality rates. The discount rate is set by 
reference to market yields at the end of the repor�ng period on government bonds as there is no deep market for high 
quality corporate bonds in Pakistan. Average rate of increase in salary are based on market expecta�ons, infla�on and 
historical trends. Mortality rates are based upon SLIC(2001-05) mortality table. These assump�ons are considered to 
be a key source of es�ma�on uncertainty as rela�vely small changes in the assump�ons used may have a significant 
effect on the Company's financial statements within the next year.

  Present value of defined benefit obliga�on has been determined using projected unit credit method. The liability as at 
the repor�ng date has been determined by an independent actuary, Anwar Associates, Consul�ng Actuaries. The 
principal assump�ons used in determining present value of defined benefit obliga�on are:

RUPEES RUPEES

30-Jun-25 30-Jun-24

Discount rate 11.75%           14.75%           
Expected rates of increase in salary 10.75%           13.75%           

Change Defined

in actuarial benefit

assump�on obliga�on

RUPEES

+ 1% 4,172,761
       

- 1% 4,722,169
       

Discount rate

Expected rate of increase in salary + 1% 4,727,362
       

- 1% 4,162,794
       

30-Jun-25

  An analysis of sensi�vity for discount rate and expected rate of increase in salary used to determine the present value 
of defined benefit obliga�on as at the repor�ng date showing how the defined benefit obliga�on would have been 
affected by changes in relevant actuarial assump�on that were reasonably possible at that date is as follows:

 (c) Provisions for levies and income taxes under Income Tax Ordinance, 2001 (see note 30 and 31)

  The Company takes into account the current income tax law and decisions taken by appellate and other relevant legal 
forums while es�ma�ng its provisions for income taxes, levies and tax con�ngencies under the Income Tax Ordinance, 
2001 ['the Ordinance'].

  The provision for levies and current tax under the Ordinance are es�mated at Rs. 4.015 million (30-Jun-24: Rs. 0.894 
million) and Rs. nil (30-Jun-24: Rs. 4.423 million) respec�vely. The management believes that the provision for current 
tax and levies made in the financial statements is sufficient to discharge related liabili�es under the Ordinance.

  Credit for deferred tax of Rs. 76.63 milion (30-Jun-24: Rs. nil) has been es�mated a�er taking into account historical and 
future turnover and profit trends and their taxability under the current tax law.

2.4 Presenta�on currency

 These financial statements have been prepared in Pak Rupees which is the Company's func�onal currency. The amounts 
reported in these financial statements have been rounded to the nearest Rupees unless specified otherwise.

2.5 Date of authoriza�on for issue

 These financial statements have been approved by the Board of Directors of the Company and authorized for issue on 27 
October 2025.

3 NEW AND REVISED STANDARDS, INTERPRETATIONS AND AMENDMENTS EFFECTIVE DURING THE YEAR.

 The following new and revised Interna�onal Financial Repor�ng Standards [IFRS] and Interna�onal Accoun�ng Standards 
[IAS], interpreta�ons of and amendments to IFRS and IAS are effec�ve in the current period but are either not relevant to the 
Company or their applica�on does not have any material impact on the financial statements of the Company other than 
presenta�on and disclosures, except as stated otherwise.

3.1 Classifica�on of Liabili�es as Current or Non-Current (Amendments to IAS 1)

 The amendments aim to promote consistency in applying the requirements by helping companies determine whether, in 
the statement of financial posi�on, debt and other liabili�es with an uncertain se�lement date should be classified as 
current (due or poten�ally due to be se�led within one year) or non-current.
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3.2 Lease Liability in a Sale and Leaseback (Amendments to IFRS 16)

 The amendment clarifies how a seller-lessee subsequently measures sale and leaseback transac�ons that sa�sfy the 
requirements in IFRS 15 to be accounted for as a sale.

3.3 Non-current Liabili�es with Covenants (Amendments to IAS 1)

 The amendment clarifies how condi�ons with which an en�ty must comply within twelve months a�er the repor�ng period 
affect the classifica�on of a liability.

3.4 Supplier Finance Arrangements (Amendments to IAS 7 and IFRS 7)

 The amendments add disclosure requirements, and ‘signposts’ within exis�ng disclosure requirements, that ask en��es to 
provide qualita�ve and quan�ta�ve informa�on about supplier finance arrangements.

4 NEW AND REVISED STANDARDS, INTERPRETATIONS AND AMENDMENTS NOT YET EFFECTIVE.

 The following standards, interpreta�ons and amendments are in issue which are not effec�ve as at the repor�ng date and 
have not been early adopted by the Company.

01 January 2025

01 July 2025

01 July 2025

01 January 2026

01 January 2026

01 January 2026

01 January 2027

Effec�ve date

(annual periods beginning

on or a�er)

Lack of Exchangeability (Amendments to IAS 21)

IFRS S2 Climate-related Disclosures

Amendments IFRS 9 and IFRS 7 regarding the classifica�on and measurement of

financial instruments

IFRS S1 General Requirements for Disclosure of Sustainability-related Financial 

Amendments IFRS 9 and IFRS 7 regarding the power purchase agreements

IFRS 17 Insurance Contracts

Annual Improvements to IFRS Accoun�ng Standards — Volume 11

 Other than afore men�oned standards, interpreta�ons and amendments, IASB has also issued the following standards 
which have not been no�fied by the Securi�es and Exchange Commission of Pakistan for adop�on.

 - IFRS 1 First Time Adop�on of Interna�onal Financial Repor�ng Standards
 - IFRS 18 Presenta�on and Disclosures in Financial Statements
 - IFRS 19 Subsidiaries without Public Accountability: Disclosures

 The Company intends to adopt these new standards on their effec�ve dates, subject to no�fica�on by Securi�es and 
Exchange Commission of Pakistan under sec�on 225 of the Companies Act, 2017 regarding their adop�on. The 
management an�cipates that the adop�on of the above standards, amendments and interpreta�ons in future periods, will 
not have a material impact on the Company's interim financial statements other than in presenta�on/disclosures.

5 MATERIAL ACCOUNTING POLICIES

5.1 Common control transac�ons

 A business combina�on (or a demerger for that purpose) involving en��es or businesses under common control is a 
business combina�on in which all of the combining en��es or businesses are ul�mately controlled by the same party or 
par�es both before and a�er the combina�on and the control is not transitory. Such common control transac�ons have 
been excluded from the scope of IFRS 3 which deals with Business Combina�ons.

 Common control tranac�ons are typically reported either by applying a form of predecessor method (i.e book values) or 
applying acquisi�on method (i.e fair values), or a variant of these methods. The Company has adopted 'Predecessor 
Accoun�ng' method as prescribed under the ICAP Accoun�ng Standard for Common Control Transac�ons no�fied under

 S.R.O 53(I)/2022 dated 12 January 2022. The use of the predecessor method results in the recogni�on of assets and 
liabili�es at their carrying amounts as at the date of common control transac�on. There are no fair value re-measurements 
and recogni�on of goodwill. Any difference between the considera�on and the carrying amounts of net assets is recognized 
in equity.

 Afer the adop�on of the standard, an applica�on of 'pedecessor method' as prescribed under this standard, there is no 
material impact on these financial statements.

5.2 Financial instruments

5.2.1 Recogni�on

 A financial instrument is recognized when the Company becomes a party to the contractual provisions of the instrument.

5.2.2 Classifica�on

 The Company classifies its financial assets on the basis of the Company's business model for managing the financial assets 
and the contractual cash flow characteris�cs of the financial asset. Financial liabili�es are classified in accordance with the 
substance of contractual provisions. The Company determines the classifica�on of its financial instruments at ini�al 
recogni�on as follows:

 (a) Financial assets at amor�zed cost

  These are financial assets held within a business model whose objec�ve is to hold financial assets in order to collect 
contractual cashflows and the contractual terms of the financial asset give rise on specified dates to cash flows that are 
solely payments of principal and interest on the principal amount outstanding.

 (b) Financial assets at fair value through other comprehensive income ['fair value through OCI']

  These are:

  (i) financial assets held within a business model whose objec�ve is achieved by both collec�ng contractual cashflows 
and selling financial assets and the contractual terms of the financial asset give rise on specified dates to cash flows 
that are solely payments of principal and interest on the principal amount outstanding; and

  (ii) investments in equity instruments, that are not held for trading nor con�ngent considera�on recognized by the 
Company as acquirer in a business combina�on, for which the Company makes an irrevocable elec�on at ini�al 
recogni�on to present changes in fair value on subsequent measurement in other comprehensive income. 

 (c) Financial assets at fair value through profit or loss

  These are financial assets which have not been classified as 'financial assets at amor�zed cost' or as 'financial assets at 
fair value through other comprehensive income', are mandatorily measured at fair value through profit or loss or for 
which the Company makes an irrevocable elec�on at ini�al recogni�on to designate as 'financial asset at fair value 
through profit or loss' if doing so eliminates or significantly reduces a measurement or recogni�on inconsistency.

 (d) Financial liabili�es at amor�zed cost

  These are financial liabili�es which are not derivates, financial guarantee contracts, commitments to provide loans at 
below-market interest rate, con�ngent considera�on payable to an acquirer in a business combina�on or financial 
liabili�es that arise when transfer of a financial asset does not qualify for derecogni�on.

 (e) Financial liabili�es at fair value through profit or loss

  These are financial liabili�es which have not been classified as 'financial liabili�es at amor�zed cost' or for which the 
Company makes an irrevocable elec�on at ini�al recogni�on to designate as 'financial liabili�es at fair value through 
profit or loss' if doing so eliminates or significantly reduces a measurement or recogni�on inconsistency.
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3.2 Lease Liability in a Sale and Leaseback (Amendments to IFRS 16)

 The amendment clarifies how a seller-lessee subsequently measures sale and leaseback transac�ons that sa�sfy the 
requirements in IFRS 15 to be accounted for as a sale.

3.3 Non-current Liabili�es with Covenants (Amendments to IAS 1)

 The amendment clarifies how condi�ons with which an en�ty must comply within twelve months a�er the repor�ng period 
affect the classifica�on of a liability.

3.4 Supplier Finance Arrangements (Amendments to IAS 7 and IFRS 7)

 The amendments add disclosure requirements, and ‘signposts’ within exis�ng disclosure requirements, that ask en��es to 
provide qualita�ve and quan�ta�ve informa�on about supplier finance arrangements.

4 NEW AND REVISED STANDARDS, INTERPRETATIONS AND AMENDMENTS NOT YET EFFECTIVE.

 The following standards, interpreta�ons and amendments are in issue which are not effec�ve as at the repor�ng date and 
have not been early adopted by the Company.

01 January 2025

01 July 2025

01 July 2025

01 January 2026

01 January 2026

01 January 2026

01 January 2027

Effec�ve date

(annual periods beginning

on or a�er)

Lack of Exchangeability (Amendments to IAS 21)

IFRS S2 Climate-related Disclosures

Amendments IFRS 9 and IFRS 7 regarding the classifica�on and measurement of

financial instruments

IFRS S1 General Requirements for Disclosure of Sustainability-related Financial 

Amendments IFRS 9 and IFRS 7 regarding the power purchase agreements

IFRS 17 Insurance Contracts

Annual Improvements to IFRS Accoun�ng Standards — Volume 11

 Other than afore men�oned standards, interpreta�ons and amendments, IASB has also issued the following standards 
which have not been no�fied by the Securi�es and Exchange Commission of Pakistan for adop�on.

 - IFRS 1 First Time Adop�on of Interna�onal Financial Repor�ng Standards
 - IFRS 18 Presenta�on and Disclosures in Financial Statements
 - IFRS 19 Subsidiaries without Public Accountability: Disclosures

 The Company intends to adopt these new standards on their effec�ve dates, subject to no�fica�on by Securi�es and 
Exchange Commission of Pakistan under sec�on 225 of the Companies Act, 2017 regarding their adop�on. The 
management an�cipates that the adop�on of the above standards, amendments and interpreta�ons in future periods, will 
not have a material impact on the Company's interim financial statements other than in presenta�on/disclosures.

5 MATERIAL ACCOUNTING POLICIES

5.1 Common control transac�ons

 A business combina�on (or a demerger for that purpose) involving en��es or businesses under common control is a 
business combina�on in which all of the combining en��es or businesses are ul�mately controlled by the same party or 
par�es both before and a�er the combina�on and the control is not transitory. Such common control transac�ons have 
been excluded from the scope of IFRS 3 which deals with Business Combina�ons.

 Common control tranac�ons are typically reported either by applying a form of predecessor method (i.e book values) or 
applying acquisi�on method (i.e fair values), or a variant of these methods. The Company has adopted 'Predecessor 
Accoun�ng' method as prescribed under the ICAP Accoun�ng Standard for Common Control Transac�ons no�fied under

 S.R.O 53(I)/2022 dated 12 January 2022. The use of the predecessor method results in the recogni�on of assets and 
liabili�es at their carrying amounts as at the date of common control transac�on. There are no fair value re-measurements 
and recogni�on of goodwill. Any difference between the considera�on and the carrying amounts of net assets is recognized 
in equity.

 Afer the adop�on of the standard, an applica�on of 'pedecessor method' as prescribed under this standard, there is no 
material impact on these financial statements.

5.2 Financial instruments

5.2.1 Recogni�on

 A financial instrument is recognized when the Company becomes a party to the contractual provisions of the instrument.

5.2.2 Classifica�on

 The Company classifies its financial assets on the basis of the Company's business model for managing the financial assets 
and the contractual cash flow characteris�cs of the financial asset. Financial liabili�es are classified in accordance with the 
substance of contractual provisions. The Company determines the classifica�on of its financial instruments at ini�al 
recogni�on as follows:

 (a) Financial assets at amor�zed cost

  These are financial assets held within a business model whose objec�ve is to hold financial assets in order to collect 
contractual cashflows and the contractual terms of the financial asset give rise on specified dates to cash flows that are 
solely payments of principal and interest on the principal amount outstanding.

 (b) Financial assets at fair value through other comprehensive income ['fair value through OCI']

  These are:

  (i) financial assets held within a business model whose objec�ve is achieved by both collec�ng contractual cashflows 
and selling financial assets and the contractual terms of the financial asset give rise on specified dates to cash flows 
that are solely payments of principal and interest on the principal amount outstanding; and

  (ii) investments in equity instruments, that are not held for trading nor con�ngent considera�on recognized by the 
Company as acquirer in a business combina�on, for which the Company makes an irrevocable elec�on at ini�al 
recogni�on to present changes in fair value on subsequent measurement in other comprehensive income. 

 (c) Financial assets at fair value through profit or loss

  These are financial assets which have not been classified as 'financial assets at amor�zed cost' or as 'financial assets at 
fair value through other comprehensive income', are mandatorily measured at fair value through profit or loss or for 
which the Company makes an irrevocable elec�on at ini�al recogni�on to designate as 'financial asset at fair value 
through profit or loss' if doing so eliminates or significantly reduces a measurement or recogni�on inconsistency.

 (d) Financial liabili�es at amor�zed cost

  These are financial liabili�es which are not derivates, financial guarantee contracts, commitments to provide loans at 
below-market interest rate, con�ngent considera�on payable to an acquirer in a business combina�on or financial 
liabili�es that arise when transfer of a financial asset does not qualify for derecogni�on.

 (e) Financial liabili�es at fair value through profit or loss

  These are financial liabili�es which have not been classified as 'financial liabili�es at amor�zed cost' or for which the 
Company makes an irrevocable elec�on at ini�al recogni�on to designate as 'financial liabili�es at fair value through 
profit or loss' if doing so eliminates or significantly reduces a measurement or recogni�on inconsistency.
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5.2.3 Measurement

 Measurement methods adopted are explained in individual policy statements associated with each financial instrument.

82.4 De-recogni�on

 A financial asset is derecognized when the Company's contractual rights to the cash flows from the financial assets expire or 
when the Company transfers the financial asset to another party without retaining control of substan�ally all risks and 
rewards of the financial asset. A financial liability is derecognized when the Company's obliga�ons specified in the contract 
expire or a discharged or cancelled.

5.2.5 Off-se�ng

 A financial asset and financial liability is offset and the net amount reported in the statement of financial posi�on if the 
Company has legally enforceable right to set-off the recognized amounts and intends either to se�le on a net basis or to 
realize the asset and se�le the liability simultaneously.

5.2.6 Regular way purchases or sales of financial assets

 Regular way purchases or sales are purchases or sales of financial assets that require delivery of assets within the �me frame 
established by regula�on or conven�on in the market place. Regular way purchases or sales of financial assets are 
recognized and derecognized on a trade date basis.

5.3 Ordinary share capital

 Ordinary share capital is recognized as equity. Transac�on costs directly a�ributable to the issue of ordinary shares are 
recognized as deduc�on from equity. Dividends on ordinary shares are charged directly against equity as a deduc�on from 
retained earnings, when approved by the ordinary shareholders of the Company.

5.4 Trade and other payables

5.4.1 Financial liabili�es

 These are classified as 'financial liabili�es at amor�zed cost'. On ini�al recogni�on, these are measured at cost, being their 
fair value at the date the liability is incurred, less a�ributable transac�on costs. Subsequent to ini�al recogni�on, these are 
measured at amor�zed cost using the effec�ve interest method, with interest recognized in profit or loss.

5.4.2 Non-financial liabili�es

 These, both on ini�al recogni�on and subsequently, are measured at cost. 

5.5 Loans and borrowings

 Loans and borrowings are classified as 'financial liabili�es at amor�zed cost'. On ini�al recogni�on, these are measured at 
cost, being fair value at the date the liability is incurred, less a�ributable transac�on costs. Subsequent to ini�al recogni�on, 
these are measured at amor�zed cost with any difference between cost and value at maturity recognized in the profit or loss 
over the period of the borrowings on an effec�ve interest basis. Transac�on costs included in the carrying amount of the 
loans are amor�zed over the lives of loans using the effec�ve interest method.

 Borrowing costs directly a�ributable to the acquisi�on, construc�on or produc�on of qualifying assets, which are assets 
that necessarily take a substan�al period of �me to get ready for their intended use or sale, are added to the cost of those 
assets, un�l such �me as the assets are substan�ally ready for their intended use or sale. Investment income earned on the 
temporary investment of specific borrowings pending their expenditure on qualifying asset is deducted from the borrowing 
costs eligible for capitaliza�on. All other borrowing costs are recognized in profit or loss as incurred.

5.6 Provisions and con�ngencies

 Provisions are recognized when the Company has a legal and construc�ve obliga�on as a result of past events and it is 
probable that ou�low of resources embodying economic benefits will be required to se�le the obliga�on and a reliable 
es�mate can be made of the amount of obliga�on. The amount recognized as provision is the best es�mate of the 

  considera�on required to se�le the present obliga�on at the repor�ng date, taking into account the risk and uncertain�es 
surrounding the obliga�on. Where a provision is measured using cash flows es�mated to se�le the present obliga�on, its 
carrying amount is the present value of those cash flows. Where ou�low of resources embodying economic benefits is not 
probable, or where a reliable es�mate of the amount of obliga�on cannot be made, a con�ngent liability is disclosed, unless 
the possibility of ou�low is remote.

5.7 Property, plant and equipment

 Property, plant and equipment acquired in a business combina�on (furniture and fixtures, computer hardware and 
equipment, vehicles) are stated in the statement of financial posi�on at cost less accumulated deprecia�on and 
accumulated impairment losses.

 Deprecia�on is recognized in profit or loss, using rates specified in note 16, so as to write off the cost of assets over their 
es�mated useful lives, using the reducing line method, with the excep�on of right-of-use assets, for which the lease does 
not transfer ownership of the underlying asset to the Company at the end of lease term, which are depreciated over the 
shorter of lease term and useful lives of the underlying assets, using straight line method.

 Deprecia�on on an item of property, plant and equipment commences from the month in which the item is ready for 
intended use. Deprecia�on is discon�nued from the month in which it is disposed or classified as held for disposal.

 The es�mated useful lives, residual values and deprecia�on method are reviewed at the end of each repor�ng period, with 
the effect of any changes in es�mate accounted for on a prospec�ve basis.

 An item of property, plant and equipment is derecognized upon disposal or when no future economic benefits are expected 
to arise from its con�nued use. The gain or loss arising on the disposal or re�rement of such items is determined as the 
difference between the disposal proceeds and the carrying amount of the asset and is recognized in profit or loss.

5.8 Intangible assets

 Intangible assets acquired in a business combina�on are carried at cost less accumulated amor�za�on and accumulated 
impairment losses. Amor�za�on is recognized in profit or loss, using rates specified in note 17, over their es�mated useful 
lives, using reducing balance method. The es�mated useful life and amor�za�on method are reviewed at the end of each 
repor�ng period, with the effect of any changes in es�mate being accounted for on a prospec�ve basis.

5.9 Trade and other receivables

5.9.1 Financial assets

 These are classified as 'financial assets at amor�zed cost'. On ini�al recogni�on, these are measured at cost, being their fair 
value at the date of transac�on, plus a�ributable transac�on costs. Subsequent to ini�al recogni�on, these are measured at 
amor�zed cost less accumulated impairment losses. Amor�zed cost is measured using the effec�ve interest method, with 
interest recognized in profit or loss.

5.9.2 Non-financial assets

 These, on ini�al recogni�on, are measured at cost. Subsequent to ini�al recogni�on, these are measured at cost less 
accumulated amor�za�on.

5.10 Cash and cash equivalents

 Cash and cash equivalents in the statement of financial posi�on comprise cash in hand and cash at bank. For the purpose of 
statement of cash flows, cash and cash equivalents consist of cash and bank balances.

5.11 Contracts with customers

5.11.1 Revenue

 Revenue is measured based on the considera�on specified in a contract with a customer. The Company recognizes revenue 
from a contract with customer when the Company sa�sfies an obliga�on specified in that contract. The following table 
provides informa�on about the nature and �ming of the sa�sfac�on of performance obliga�ons in contracts with 
customers, including significant payment terms, and the related revenue recogni�on policies.
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5.2.3 Measurement

 Measurement methods adopted are explained in individual policy statements associated with each financial instrument.

82.4 De-recogni�on

 A financial asset is derecognized when the Company's contractual rights to the cash flows from the financial assets expire or 
when the Company transfers the financial asset to another party without retaining control of substan�ally all risks and 
rewards of the financial asset. A financial liability is derecognized when the Company's obliga�ons specified in the contract 
expire or a discharged or cancelled.

5.2.5 Off-se�ng

 A financial asset and financial liability is offset and the net amount reported in the statement of financial posi�on if the 
Company has legally enforceable right to set-off the recognized amounts and intends either to se�le on a net basis or to 
realize the asset and se�le the liability simultaneously.

5.2.6 Regular way purchases or sales of financial assets

 Regular way purchases or sales are purchases or sales of financial assets that require delivery of assets within the �me frame 
established by regula�on or conven�on in the market place. Regular way purchases or sales of financial assets are 
recognized and derecognized on a trade date basis.

5.3 Ordinary share capital

 Ordinary share capital is recognized as equity. Transac�on costs directly a�ributable to the issue of ordinary shares are 
recognized as deduc�on from equity. Dividends on ordinary shares are charged directly against equity as a deduc�on from 
retained earnings, when approved by the ordinary shareholders of the Company.

5.4 Trade and other payables

5.4.1 Financial liabili�es

 These are classified as 'financial liabili�es at amor�zed cost'. On ini�al recogni�on, these are measured at cost, being their 
fair value at the date the liability is incurred, less a�ributable transac�on costs. Subsequent to ini�al recogni�on, these are 
measured at amor�zed cost using the effec�ve interest method, with interest recognized in profit or loss.

5.4.2 Non-financial liabili�es

 These, both on ini�al recogni�on and subsequently, are measured at cost. 

5.5 Loans and borrowings

 Loans and borrowings are classified as 'financial liabili�es at amor�zed cost'. On ini�al recogni�on, these are measured at 
cost, being fair value at the date the liability is incurred, less a�ributable transac�on costs. Subsequent to ini�al recogni�on, 
these are measured at amor�zed cost with any difference between cost and value at maturity recognized in the profit or loss 
over the period of the borrowings on an effec�ve interest basis. Transac�on costs included in the carrying amount of the 
loans are amor�zed over the lives of loans using the effec�ve interest method.

 Borrowing costs directly a�ributable to the acquisi�on, construc�on or produc�on of qualifying assets, which are assets 
that necessarily take a substan�al period of �me to get ready for their intended use or sale, are added to the cost of those 
assets, un�l such �me as the assets are substan�ally ready for their intended use or sale. Investment income earned on the 
temporary investment of specific borrowings pending their expenditure on qualifying asset is deducted from the borrowing 
costs eligible for capitaliza�on. All other borrowing costs are recognized in profit or loss as incurred.

5.6 Provisions and con�ngencies

 Provisions are recognized when the Company has a legal and construc�ve obliga�on as a result of past events and it is 
probable that ou�low of resources embodying economic benefits will be required to se�le the obliga�on and a reliable 
es�mate can be made of the amount of obliga�on. The amount recognized as provision is the best es�mate of the 

  considera�on required to se�le the present obliga�on at the repor�ng date, taking into account the risk and uncertain�es 
surrounding the obliga�on. Where a provision is measured using cash flows es�mated to se�le the present obliga�on, its 
carrying amount is the present value of those cash flows. Where ou�low of resources embodying economic benefits is not 
probable, or where a reliable es�mate of the amount of obliga�on cannot be made, a con�ngent liability is disclosed, unless 
the possibility of ou�low is remote.

5.7 Property, plant and equipment

 Property, plant and equipment acquired in a business combina�on (furniture and fixtures, computer hardware and 
equipment, vehicles) are stated in the statement of financial posi�on at cost less accumulated deprecia�on and 
accumulated impairment losses.

 Deprecia�on is recognized in profit or loss, using rates specified in note 16, so as to write off the cost of assets over their 
es�mated useful lives, using the reducing line method, with the excep�on of right-of-use assets, for which the lease does 
not transfer ownership of the underlying asset to the Company at the end of lease term, which are depreciated over the 
shorter of lease term and useful lives of the underlying assets, using straight line method.

 Deprecia�on on an item of property, plant and equipment commences from the month in which the item is ready for 
intended use. Deprecia�on is discon�nued from the month in which it is disposed or classified as held for disposal.

 The es�mated useful lives, residual values and deprecia�on method are reviewed at the end of each repor�ng period, with 
the effect of any changes in es�mate accounted for on a prospec�ve basis.

 An item of property, plant and equipment is derecognized upon disposal or when no future economic benefits are expected 
to arise from its con�nued use. The gain or loss arising on the disposal or re�rement of such items is determined as the 
difference between the disposal proceeds and the carrying amount of the asset and is recognized in profit or loss.

5.8 Intangible assets

 Intangible assets acquired in a business combina�on are carried at cost less accumulated amor�za�on and accumulated 
impairment losses. Amor�za�on is recognized in profit or loss, using rates specified in note 17, over their es�mated useful 
lives, using reducing balance method. The es�mated useful life and amor�za�on method are reviewed at the end of each 
repor�ng period, with the effect of any changes in es�mate being accounted for on a prospec�ve basis.

5.9 Trade and other receivables

5.9.1 Financial assets

 These are classified as 'financial assets at amor�zed cost'. On ini�al recogni�on, these are measured at cost, being their fair 
value at the date of transac�on, plus a�ributable transac�on costs. Subsequent to ini�al recogni�on, these are measured at 
amor�zed cost less accumulated impairment losses. Amor�zed cost is measured using the effec�ve interest method, with 
interest recognized in profit or loss.

5.9.2 Non-financial assets

 These, on ini�al recogni�on, are measured at cost. Subsequent to ini�al recogni�on, these are measured at cost less 
accumulated amor�za�on.

5.10 Cash and cash equivalents

 Cash and cash equivalents in the statement of financial posi�on comprise cash in hand and cash at bank. For the purpose of 
statement of cash flows, cash and cash equivalents consist of cash and bank balances.

5.11 Contracts with customers

5.11.1 Revenue

 Revenue is measured based on the considera�on specified in a contract with a customer. The Company recognizes revenue 
from a contract with customer when the Company sa�sfies an obliga�on specified in that contract. The following table 
provides informa�on about the nature and �ming of the sa�sfac�on of performance obliga�ons in contracts with 
customers, including significant payment terms, and the related revenue recogni�on policies.
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Product based solu�ons

Proprietary so�ware solu�ons,

licensing, implementa�on, and

related upgrades.

Performance obliga�on are sa�sfied when

transfer of control for so�ware/license is

occurred either upon physical delivery of

license through CD, USB or electronically

using FTP or delivery of the license key by

other electronic methods which provide

immediate availability of the product to the

customer. The Company’s performance

obliga�ons are sa�sfied either at a point in

�me or over �me, depending on the nature

of the product or service being delivered.

Invoices are generated at that point in

�me.The Company’s typical payment terms

tend to vary by region, but its standard

payment terms are within 120 days of

invoice.

Revenue is primarily

recognized at a point in �me

when control of the product is

transferred to the customer,

which generally occurs upon

delivery, ac�va�on, or formal

acceptance of the so�ware or

license. Where contracts

include addi�onal elements

such as implementa�on,

customiza�on, or system

upgrades, these are

accounted for as separate

performance obliga�ons.

Revenue a�ributable to such

services is recognized over

�me, based on progress

measures (such as

percentage of comple�on or

output-based milestones), as

these methods best depict

the con�nuous transfer of

value to the customer.

Revenue recogni�on policiesProduct/service

Nature and �ming of sa�sfac�on of performance

obliga�ons, including significant payment terms

Professional services

IT consultancy, customized

so�ware development, system

integra�on, and support.

Consul�ng services are generally sold on a

�me-and-materials or fixed fee basis and

can include services ranging from so�ware

installa�on to data migra�on and building

non-complex interfaces to allow the

so�ware to operate in integrated

environments. The Company recognizes

revenue from �me-and-material

arrangements as the services are performed.

In fixed fee arrangements, revenue is

recognized as services are performed as

measured by efforts incurred to date,

compared to total es�mated efforts to

complete the services project. The

management applies judgment while

es�ma�ng efforts to complete the services

projects. A number of internal and external

factors can affect these es�mates, including

u�liza�on and efficiency variances and

specifica�on and tes�ng requirement

changes. However, In milestone-based

arrangements subject to customer approval,

revenue is recognized when the relevant

milestone is formally accepted, as such

acceptance evidences the transfer of control

to the customer. Services are generally

invoiced upon milestones or upon formal

acceptance of milestones by the customers

as agreed in the contract and payments are

typically due in 120 days a�er invoice.

Revenue is recognized over

�me, based on progress

measures (such as

percentage of comple�on or

output-based milestones), as

these methods best depict

the con�nuous transfer of

value to the customer.

However, where contractual

terms require formal

acceptance of milestones by

the customers, the revenue is

recognized at a point in �me.

Business process outsourcing

Customer support, transac�on

processing, and data

management.

Performance obliga�ons are sa�sfied when

outsourced services are provided in line with 

agreed service-level terms. Company’s

typical payment terms tend to vary by region,

but its standard payment terms are within

120 days of invoice.

Revenue is generally

recognized over �me,

measured either on a straight-

line basis or by reference to

measurable outputs such as

service hours or transac�ons

processed, except where

contractual terms require

formal customer acceptance,

in which case revenue is

recognized at the point of

acceptance.

Revenue recogni�on policiesProduct/service

Nature and �ming of sa�sfac�on of performance

obliga�ons, including significant payment terms

5.11.2 Contract assets

 Contract assets represents considera�on receivable for work performed up to the repor�ng date where performance 
obliga�ons have been sa�sfied but invoices have not been issued to customers.. These are classified as 'financial assets at 
amor�zed cost'. On ini�al recogni�on, these are measured at cost, being their fair value at the date of transac�on, plus 
a�ributable transac�on costs. Subsequent to ini�al recogni�on, these are measured at amor�zed cost less accumulated 
impairment losses. Amor�zed cost is measured using the effec�ve interest method, with interest recognized in profit or 
loss. A contract asset is reclassified to a trade receivable once the Company has an uncondi�onal right to payment i.e. when 
the invoice is issued.

5.11.3 Contract liabili�es

 A contract liability is the obliga�on to transfer goods or services to a customer for which the Company has received 
considera�on from the customer. A contract liability is recognized at earlier of when the payment is made or the payment is 
due if a customer pays considera�on before the Company transfers goods or services to the customer.

5.12 Employee benefits

5.12.1 Short-term employee benefits

 The Company recognizes the undiscounted amount of short term employee benefits to be paid in exchange for services 
rendered by employees as a liability a�er deduc�ng amount already paid and as an expense in profit or loss unless it is 
included in the cost of services or property and equipment as permi�ed or required by the approved accoun�ng and 
repor�ng standards as applicable in Pakistan. If the amount paid exceeds the undiscounted amount of benefits, the excess is 
recognized as an asset to the extent that the prepayment would lead to a reduc�on in future payments or cash refund.

5.12.2 Post-employment benefits

 The Company operates an unapproved funded contributory provident fund for all its permanent employees who have 
completed the minimum qualifying period of service as defined under the respec�ve scheme. Equal monthly contribu�ons 
are made both by the Company and the employees at the rate of eight percent of basic salary to cover the obliga�on. 
Contribu�ons are charged to profit or loss.

 The Company operates an unfunded gratuity scheme (defined benefit plan) for all its employees who have completed the 
minimum qualifying service period with the excep�on for those who have opted to par�cipate in the provident fund of the 
Company. Liability is adjusted on each repor�ng date to cover the obliga�on and the adjustment is charged to profit or loss 
with the excep�on of remeasurements which are recognized in statement of comprehensive income. The amount 
recognized on statement of financial posi�on represents the present value of defined benefit obliga�on which is measured 
at present value using projected credit unit method.
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Product based solu�ons

Proprietary so�ware solu�ons,

licensing, implementa�on, and

related upgrades.

Performance obliga�on are sa�sfied when

transfer of control for so�ware/license is

occurred either upon physical delivery of

license through CD, USB or electronically

using FTP or delivery of the license key by

other electronic methods which provide

immediate availability of the product to the

customer. The Company’s performance

obliga�ons are sa�sfied either at a point in

�me or over �me, depending on the nature

of the product or service being delivered.

Invoices are generated at that point in

�me.The Company’s typical payment terms

tend to vary by region, but its standard

payment terms are within 120 days of

invoice.

Revenue is primarily

recognized at a point in �me

when control of the product is

transferred to the customer,

which generally occurs upon

delivery, ac�va�on, or formal

acceptance of the so�ware or

license. Where contracts

include addi�onal elements

such as implementa�on,

customiza�on, or system

upgrades, these are

accounted for as separate

performance obliga�ons.

Revenue a�ributable to such

services is recognized over

�me, based on progress

measures (such as

percentage of comple�on or

output-based milestones), as

these methods best depict

the con�nuous transfer of

value to the customer.

Revenue recogni�on policiesProduct/service

Nature and �ming of sa�sfac�on of performance

obliga�ons, including significant payment terms

Professional services

IT consultancy, customized

so�ware development, system

integra�on, and support.

Consul�ng services are generally sold on a

�me-and-materials or fixed fee basis and

can include services ranging from so�ware

installa�on to data migra�on and building

non-complex interfaces to allow the

so�ware to operate in integrated

environments. The Company recognizes

revenue from �me-and-material

arrangements as the services are performed.

In fixed fee arrangements, revenue is

recognized as services are performed as

measured by efforts incurred to date,

compared to total es�mated efforts to

complete the services project. The

management applies judgment while

es�ma�ng efforts to complete the services

projects. A number of internal and external

factors can affect these es�mates, including

u�liza�on and efficiency variances and

specifica�on and tes�ng requirement

changes. However, In milestone-based

arrangements subject to customer approval,

revenue is recognized when the relevant

milestone is formally accepted, as such

acceptance evidences the transfer of control

to the customer. Services are generally

invoiced upon milestones or upon formal

acceptance of milestones by the customers

as agreed in the contract and payments are

typically due in 120 days a�er invoice.

Revenue is recognized over

�me, based on progress

measures (such as

percentage of comple�on or

output-based milestones), as

these methods best depict

the con�nuous transfer of

value to the customer.

However, where contractual

terms require formal

acceptance of milestones by

the customers, the revenue is

recognized at a point in �me.

Business process outsourcing

Customer support, transac�on

processing, and data

management.

Performance obliga�ons are sa�sfied when

outsourced services are provided in line with 

agreed service-level terms. Company’s

typical payment terms tend to vary by region,

but its standard payment terms are within

120 days of invoice.

Revenue is generally

recognized over �me,

measured either on a straight-

line basis or by reference to

measurable outputs such as

service hours or transac�ons

processed, except where

contractual terms require

formal customer acceptance,

in which case revenue is

recognized at the point of

acceptance.

Revenue recogni�on policiesProduct/service

Nature and �ming of sa�sfac�on of performance

obliga�ons, including significant payment terms

5.11.2 Contract assets

 Contract assets represents considera�on receivable for work performed up to the repor�ng date where performance 
obliga�ons have been sa�sfied but invoices have not been issued to customers.. These are classified as 'financial assets at 
amor�zed cost'. On ini�al recogni�on, these are measured at cost, being their fair value at the date of transac�on, plus 
a�ributable transac�on costs. Subsequent to ini�al recogni�on, these are measured at amor�zed cost less accumulated 
impairment losses. Amor�zed cost is measured using the effec�ve interest method, with interest recognized in profit or 
loss. A contract asset is reclassified to a trade receivable once the Company has an uncondi�onal right to payment i.e. when 
the invoice is issued.

5.11.3 Contract liabili�es

 A contract liability is the obliga�on to transfer goods or services to a customer for which the Company has received 
considera�on from the customer. A contract liability is recognized at earlier of when the payment is made or the payment is 
due if a customer pays considera�on before the Company transfers goods or services to the customer.

5.12 Employee benefits

5.12.1 Short-term employee benefits

 The Company recognizes the undiscounted amount of short term employee benefits to be paid in exchange for services 
rendered by employees as a liability a�er deduc�ng amount already paid and as an expense in profit or loss unless it is 
included in the cost of services or property and equipment as permi�ed or required by the approved accoun�ng and 
repor�ng standards as applicable in Pakistan. If the amount paid exceeds the undiscounted amount of benefits, the excess is 
recognized as an asset to the extent that the prepayment would lead to a reduc�on in future payments or cash refund.

5.12.2 Post-employment benefits

 The Company operates an unapproved funded contributory provident fund for all its permanent employees who have 
completed the minimum qualifying period of service as defined under the respec�ve scheme. Equal monthly contribu�ons 
are made both by the Company and the employees at the rate of eight percent of basic salary to cover the obliga�on. 
Contribu�ons are charged to profit or loss.

 The Company operates an unfunded gratuity scheme (defined benefit plan) for all its employees who have completed the 
minimum qualifying service period with the excep�on for those who have opted to par�cipate in the provident fund of the 
Company. Liability is adjusted on each repor�ng date to cover the obliga�on and the adjustment is charged to profit or loss 
with the excep�on of remeasurements which are recognized in statement of comprehensive income. The amount 
recognized on statement of financial posi�on represents the present value of defined benefit obliga�on which is measured 
at present value using projected credit unit method.
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5.13 Impairment

5.13.1 Financial assets

 The Company recognizes a loss allowance for expected credit losses on financial assets carried at amor�zed cost on date of 
ini�al recogni�on. The amount of expected credit losses is updated on each repor�ng date to reflect the changes in credit 
risk since ini�al recogni�on of the respec�ve financial asset.

 Impairment is recognized at an amount equal to life�me expected credit losses for financial assets for which credit risk has 
increased significantly since ini�al recogni�on. For financial assets for which credit risk is low, impairment is recognized at an 
amount equal to twelve months' expected credit losses, with the excep�on of trade debts, for which the Company 
recognizes life�me expected credit losses es�mated using internal credit risk grading based on the Company's historical 
credit loss experience, adjusted for factors that are specific to debtors, general economic condi�ons,  and an assessment for 
both the current as well as the forecast direc�on of condi�ons at the repor�ng date, including �me value of money where 
appropriate.

 All impairment losses are recognized in profit or loss. An impairment loss is reversed if the reversal can be related objec�vely 
to an event occurring a�er the impairment loss was recognized. An impairment loss is reversed only to the extent that the 
financial asset’s carrying amount a�er the reversal does not exceed the carrying amount that would have been determined, 
net of amor�za�on, if no impairment loss had been recognized.

 The Company writes off a financial asset when there is informa�on indica�ng that the counter-party is in severe financial 
condi�on and there is no realis�c prospect of recovery. Any recoveries made post write-off are recognized in profit or loss.

5.13.2 Non-financial assets

 The carrying amount of the Company’s non-financial assets are reviewed at each repor�ng date to determine whether there 
is any indica�on of impairment. If any such indica�on exists, then the asset’s recoverable amount is es�mated. The 
recoverable amount of an asset or cash genera�ng unit is the greater of its value in use and its fair value less costs to sell. In 
assessing value in use, the es�mated future cash flows are discounted to their present values using a pre-tax discount rate 
that reflects current market assessments of the �me value of money and the risks specific to the asset or cash genera�ng 
unit.

 An impairment loss is recognized if the carrying amount of the asset or its cash genera�ng unit exceeds its es�mated 
recoverable amount. Impairment losses are recognized in profit or loss. Impairment losses recognized in respect of cash 
genera�ng units are allocated to reduce the carrying amounts of the assets in a unit on a pro-rata basis. Impairment losses 
recognized in prior periods are assessed at each repor�ng date for any indica�ons that the loss has decreased or no longer 
exists. An impairment loss is reversed if there has been a change in the es�mates used in determining the recoverable 
amount. An impairment loss is reversed only to that extent that the asset’s carrying amount a�er the reversal does not 
exceed the carrying amount that would have been determined, net of deprecia�on and amor�za�on, if no impairment loss 
had been recognized.

5.14 Ujrah payments

 Ujrah payments under an Ijarah arrangements are recognized as an expense in the profit or loss on a straight-line basis over 
the Ijarah terms unless another systema�c basis are representa�ve of the �me pa�ern of the user's benefit, even if the 
payments are not on that basis.

5.15 Taxa�on

 Income tax expense comprises current tax and deferred tax. Income tax expense is recognized in profit or loss except to the 
extent that it relates to items recognized directly in other comprehensive income, in which case it is recognized in other 
comprehensive income.

5.15.1 Current taxa�on

 Current tax is the amount of tax payable on taxable income for the year and any adjustment to the tax payable in respect of 
previous years. Provision for current tax is based on current rates of taxa�on in Pakistan a�er taking into account tax credits, 
rebates and exemp�ons available, if any. The amount of unpaid income tax in respect of the current or prior periods is 
recognized as a liability. Any excess paid over what is due in respect of the current or prior periods is recognized as an asset.

5.15.2 Deferred taxa�on

 Deferred tax is accounted for by providing for temporary differences between the carrying amounts of assets and liabili�es 
for financial repor�ng purposes and the amounts used for tax purposes. Deferred tax is measured at rates that are expected 
to be applied to the temporary differences when they reverse, based on laws that have been enacted or substan�vely 
enacted by the repor�ng date. A deferred tax liability is recognized for all taxable temporary differences. A deferred tax 
asset is recognized for deduc�ble temporary differences to the extent that future taxable profits will be available against 
which temporary differences can be u�lized.

5.16 Earnings per share

 Basic earnings per share is calculated by dividing the profit or loss a�ributable to ordinary shareholders of the Company by 
the weighted average number of ordinary shares outstanding during the year.

 Diluted earnings per share is calculated by adjus�ng basic earnings per share by the weighted average number of ordinary 
shares that would be issued on conversion of all dilu�ve poten�al ordinary shares into ordinary shares and post-tax effect of 
changes in profit or loss a�ributable to ordinary shareholders of the Company that would result from conversion of all 
dilu�ve poten�al ordinary shares into ordinary shares.

5.17 Comprehensive income

 Comprehensive income is the change in equity resul�ng from transac�ons and other events, other than changes resul�ng 
from transac�ons with shareholders in their capacity as shareholders. Total comprehensive income comprises all 
components of profit or loss and other comprehensive income ['OCI']. OCI comprises items of income and expense, 
including reclassifica�on adjustments, that are not recognized in profit or loss as required or permi�ed by accoun�ng and 
repor�ng standards applicable in Pakistan.

5.18 Foreign currency transac�ons and balances

 Transac�ons in foreign currency are translated to the func�onal currency of the Company using exchange rate prevailing at 
the date of transac�on. Monetary assets and liabili�es denominated in foreign currency are translated to the func�onal 
currency at exchange rate prevailing at the repor�ng date. Non-monetary assets and liabili�es denominated in foreign 
currency that are measured at fair value are translated to the func�onal currency at exchange rate prevailing at the date the 
fair value is determined. Non-monetary assets and liabili�es denominated in foreign currency that are measured at 
historical cost are translated to func�onal currency at exchange rate prevailing at the date of ini�al recogni�on. Any gain or 
loss arising on transla�on of foreign currency transac�ons and balances is recognized in profit or loss.

5.19 Fair value measurements

 ‘Fair value’ is the price that would be received to sell an asset or paid to transfer a liability in an orderly transac�on between 
market par�cipants at the measurement date in the principal or, in its absence, the most advantageous market to which the 
Company has access at that date. The fair value of a liability reflects its non-performance risk. A number of the Company’s 
accoun�ng policies and disclosures require the measurement of fair values.

 The best evidence of the fair value of a financial instrument on ini�al recogni�on is normally the transac�on price - i.e. the 
fair value of the considera�on given or received. If the Company determines that the fair value on ini�al recogni�on differs 
from the transac�on price and the fair value is evidenced neither by a quoted price in an ac�ve market for an iden�cal asset 
or liability nor based on a valua�on technique for which any unobservable inputs are judged to be insignificant in rela�on to 
the measurement, then the financial instrument is ini�ally measured at fair value, adjusted to defer the difference between 
the fair value on ini�al recogni�on and the transac�on price. Subsequently, that difference is recognized in profit or loss on 
an appropriate basis over the life of the instrument but no later than when the valua�on is wholly supported by observable 
market data or the transac�on is closed out.

 When one is available, the Company measures the fair value of an instrument using the quoted price in an ac�ve market for 
that instrument. A market is regarded as ‘ac�ve’ if transac�ons for the asset or liability take place with sufficient frequency 
and volume to provide pricing informa�on on an ongoing basis. If there is no quoted price in an ac�ve market, then the 
Company uses valua�on techniques that maximize the use of relevant observable inputs and minimize the use of 
unobservable inputs. The chosen valua�on technique incorporates all of the factors that market par�cipants would take 
into account in pricing a transac�on.
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5.13 Impairment

5.13.1 Financial assets

 The Company recognizes a loss allowance for expected credit losses on financial assets carried at amor�zed cost on date of 
ini�al recogni�on. The amount of expected credit losses is updated on each repor�ng date to reflect the changes in credit 
risk since ini�al recogni�on of the respec�ve financial asset.

 Impairment is recognized at an amount equal to life�me expected credit losses for financial assets for which credit risk has 
increased significantly since ini�al recogni�on. For financial assets for which credit risk is low, impairment is recognized at an 
amount equal to twelve months' expected credit losses, with the excep�on of trade debts, for which the Company 
recognizes life�me expected credit losses es�mated using internal credit risk grading based on the Company's historical 
credit loss experience, adjusted for factors that are specific to debtors, general economic condi�ons,  and an assessment for 
both the current as well as the forecast direc�on of condi�ons at the repor�ng date, including �me value of money where 
appropriate.

 All impairment losses are recognized in profit or loss. An impairment loss is reversed if the reversal can be related objec�vely 
to an event occurring a�er the impairment loss was recognized. An impairment loss is reversed only to the extent that the 
financial asset’s carrying amount a�er the reversal does not exceed the carrying amount that would have been determined, 
net of amor�za�on, if no impairment loss had been recognized.

 The Company writes off a financial asset when there is informa�on indica�ng that the counter-party is in severe financial 
condi�on and there is no realis�c prospect of recovery. Any recoveries made post write-off are recognized in profit or loss.

5.13.2 Non-financial assets

 The carrying amount of the Company’s non-financial assets are reviewed at each repor�ng date to determine whether there 
is any indica�on of impairment. If any such indica�on exists, then the asset’s recoverable amount is es�mated. The 
recoverable amount of an asset or cash genera�ng unit is the greater of its value in use and its fair value less costs to sell. In 
assessing value in use, the es�mated future cash flows are discounted to their present values using a pre-tax discount rate 
that reflects current market assessments of the �me value of money and the risks specific to the asset or cash genera�ng 
unit.

 An impairment loss is recognized if the carrying amount of the asset or its cash genera�ng unit exceeds its es�mated 
recoverable amount. Impairment losses are recognized in profit or loss. Impairment losses recognized in respect of cash 
genera�ng units are allocated to reduce the carrying amounts of the assets in a unit on a pro-rata basis. Impairment losses 
recognized in prior periods are assessed at each repor�ng date for any indica�ons that the loss has decreased or no longer 
exists. An impairment loss is reversed if there has been a change in the es�mates used in determining the recoverable 
amount. An impairment loss is reversed only to that extent that the asset’s carrying amount a�er the reversal does not 
exceed the carrying amount that would have been determined, net of deprecia�on and amor�za�on, if no impairment loss 
had been recognized.

5.14 Ujrah payments

 Ujrah payments under an Ijarah arrangements are recognized as an expense in the profit or loss on a straight-line basis over 
the Ijarah terms unless another systema�c basis are representa�ve of the �me pa�ern of the user's benefit, even if the 
payments are not on that basis.

5.15 Taxa�on

 Income tax expense comprises current tax and deferred tax. Income tax expense is recognized in profit or loss except to the 
extent that it relates to items recognized directly in other comprehensive income, in which case it is recognized in other 
comprehensive income.

5.15.1 Current taxa�on

 Current tax is the amount of tax payable on taxable income for the year and any adjustment to the tax payable in respect of 
previous years. Provision for current tax is based on current rates of taxa�on in Pakistan a�er taking into account tax credits, 
rebates and exemp�ons available, if any. The amount of unpaid income tax in respect of the current or prior periods is 
recognized as a liability. Any excess paid over what is due in respect of the current or prior periods is recognized as an asset.

5.15.2 Deferred taxa�on

 Deferred tax is accounted for by providing for temporary differences between the carrying amounts of assets and liabili�es 
for financial repor�ng purposes and the amounts used for tax purposes. Deferred tax is measured at rates that are expected 
to be applied to the temporary differences when they reverse, based on laws that have been enacted or substan�vely 
enacted by the repor�ng date. A deferred tax liability is recognized for all taxable temporary differences. A deferred tax 
asset is recognized for deduc�ble temporary differences to the extent that future taxable profits will be available against 
which temporary differences can be u�lized.

5.16 Earnings per share

 Basic earnings per share is calculated by dividing the profit or loss a�ributable to ordinary shareholders of the Company by 
the weighted average number of ordinary shares outstanding during the year.

 Diluted earnings per share is calculated by adjus�ng basic earnings per share by the weighted average number of ordinary 
shares that would be issued on conversion of all dilu�ve poten�al ordinary shares into ordinary shares and post-tax effect of 
changes in profit or loss a�ributable to ordinary shareholders of the Company that would result from conversion of all 
dilu�ve poten�al ordinary shares into ordinary shares.

5.17 Comprehensive income

 Comprehensive income is the change in equity resul�ng from transac�ons and other events, other than changes resul�ng 
from transac�ons with shareholders in their capacity as shareholders. Total comprehensive income comprises all 
components of profit or loss and other comprehensive income ['OCI']. OCI comprises items of income and expense, 
including reclassifica�on adjustments, that are not recognized in profit or loss as required or permi�ed by accoun�ng and 
repor�ng standards applicable in Pakistan.

5.18 Foreign currency transac�ons and balances

 Transac�ons in foreign currency are translated to the func�onal currency of the Company using exchange rate prevailing at 
the date of transac�on. Monetary assets and liabili�es denominated in foreign currency are translated to the func�onal 
currency at exchange rate prevailing at the repor�ng date. Non-monetary assets and liabili�es denominated in foreign 
currency that are measured at fair value are translated to the func�onal currency at exchange rate prevailing at the date the 
fair value is determined. Non-monetary assets and liabili�es denominated in foreign currency that are measured at 
historical cost are translated to func�onal currency at exchange rate prevailing at the date of ini�al recogni�on. Any gain or 
loss arising on transla�on of foreign currency transac�ons and balances is recognized in profit or loss.

5.19 Fair value measurements

 ‘Fair value’ is the price that would be received to sell an asset or paid to transfer a liability in an orderly transac�on between 
market par�cipants at the measurement date in the principal or, in its absence, the most advantageous market to which the 
Company has access at that date. The fair value of a liability reflects its non-performance risk. A number of the Company’s 
accoun�ng policies and disclosures require the measurement of fair values.

 The best evidence of the fair value of a financial instrument on ini�al recogni�on is normally the transac�on price - i.e. the 
fair value of the considera�on given or received. If the Company determines that the fair value on ini�al recogni�on differs 
from the transac�on price and the fair value is evidenced neither by a quoted price in an ac�ve market for an iden�cal asset 
or liability nor based on a valua�on technique for which any unobservable inputs are judged to be insignificant in rela�on to 
the measurement, then the financial instrument is ini�ally measured at fair value, adjusted to defer the difference between 
the fair value on ini�al recogni�on and the transac�on price. Subsequently, that difference is recognized in profit or loss on 
an appropriate basis over the life of the instrument but no later than when the valua�on is wholly supported by observable 
market data or the transac�on is closed out.

 When one is available, the Company measures the fair value of an instrument using the quoted price in an ac�ve market for 
that instrument. A market is regarded as ‘ac�ve’ if transac�ons for the asset or liability take place with sufficient frequency 
and volume to provide pricing informa�on on an ongoing basis. If there is no quoted price in an ac�ve market, then the 
Company uses valua�on techniques that maximize the use of relevant observable inputs and minimize the use of 
unobservable inputs. The chosen valua�on technique incorporates all of the factors that market par�cipants would take 
into account in pricing a transac�on.
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 If an asset or a liability measured at fair value has a bid price and an ask price, then the Company measures assets and long 
posi�ons at a bid price and liabili�es and short posi�ons at an ask price.

 Fair values are categorized into different levels in a fair value hierarchy based on the inputs used in the valua�on techniques 
as follows.

 - Level 1: quoted prices (unadjusted) in ac�ve markets for iden�cal assets or liabili�es.

 - Level 2: inputs other than quoted prices included in Level 1 that are observable for the asset or liability, either directly 
(i.e. as prices) or indirectly (i.e. derived from prices).

 - Level 3: inputs for the asset or liability that are not based on observable market data (unobservable inputs).

 If the inputs used to measure the fair value of an asset or a liability fall into different levels of the fair value hierarchy, then the 
fair value measurement is categorized in its en�rety in the same level of the fair value hierarchy as the lowest level input that 
is significant to the en�re measurement.

 The Company recognizes transfers between levels of the fair value hierarchy at the end of the repor�ng period during which 
the change has occurred.

6 AUTHORIZED SHARE CAPITAL

Note

Ordinary shares of Rs. 10 each 6.1

7 ISSUED ORDINARY SHARE CAPITAL

Ordinary shares of Rs. 10 each

SHARES SHARES

30-Jun-25 30-Jun-24

120,000,000 20,000,000  

120,000,000 20,000,000  

SHARES SHARES

30-Jun-25 30-Jun-24

9,860,000
     

9,860,000
    

9,860,000
     

9,860,000
    

RUPEES RUPEES

30-Jun-25 30-Jun-24

1,200,000,000 200,000,000   

1,200,000,000 200,000,000   

RUPEES RUPEES

30-Jun-25 30-Jun-24

98,600,000
      

98,600,000
     

98,600,000
      

98,600,000
     

6.1 Persuant to scheme of arrangement, as explained in note 1.2, the authorized share capital of the Company has  increased 
from Rs. 200 million comprising 20,000,000 ordinary shares of Rs. 10 each to Rs. 1,200 million, comprising 120,000,000 
ordinary shares of Rs. 10 each, to accommodate the shares to be issued under the share swap arrangement.

8 SHARES TO BE ISSUED UNDER SCHEME OF ARRANGEMENT

 These represent shares to be issued under the scheme of arrangement as considera�on of merger, as explained in note 1.2. 
Subsequent to the repor�ng date, the Company has issued 97,961,500 fully paid ordinary shares in accordance with the 
scheme of arrangement.

9 DISCOUNT ON ISSUE OF ORDINARY SHARES

 The merged financial statements represent the con�nua�on of the financial statements of ITANZ, being the accoun�ng 
acquirer. Therefore, the merged financial statements reflect issued equity interests of the accoun�ng acquirer before the 
merger. However, the equity structure (number of ordinary shares outstanding) reflects the equity structure of the  
Company, being the accoun�ng acquiree. Accordingly, the excess of par value of issued ordinary shares of the Company over 
that of the issued ordinary shares of the accoun�ng acquirer, immediately before the merger, has been recognized as 
discount on issue of ordinary shares.

10 RESERVE ON MERGER

 This represents the difference between the considera�on for merger, as explained in note 1.2, and book value of net assets 
of Zahur Co�on Mills Limited as at the effec�ve date of merger.

11 EMPLOYEES RETIREMENT BENEFITS

 The Company operates an unfunded gratuity scheme, a defined benefit plan, for all its employees who have completed the 
minimum qualifying service period with the excep�on of those employees who have opted to join provident fund scheme of 
the Company. Under the scheme, the Company pays a lump-sum benefit equal to last drawn monthly salary for each year of 
service to scheme members whereas the members of the scheme are not required to make any contribu�ons to the 
scheme. The scheme is administered by the management of the Company under the supervision and direc�ons of the 
Board of Directors of the Company. The amount recognized on statement of financial posi�on represents present value of 
defined benefit obliga�on.

11.1 Movement in the present value of the defined benefit obliga�on

As at beginning of the year

Transferred under scheme of arrangement

Charged to profit or loss for the year

Benefits paid during the year

Remeasurements recognized in other comprehensive income

Benefits due but not paid

As at the end of the year

11.2 Charge to profit or loss

Service cost

Interest cost

11.3 The charge to profit or loss has been allocated as follows

Direct cost

Administra�ve expenses

11.4 Remeasurements recognized in other comprehensive income

Actuarial gain/(loss) arising from:

Changes in financial assump�ons

Experience adjustments

RUPEES RUPEES

Note 30-Jun-25 30-Jun-24

[restated]

3,450,851        -                 
50 -                   2,376,400       

11.2 1,499,968        3,450,851       
-                   -                 

11.4 (539,073)          -                 
12.1 -                   (2,376,400)     

4,411,746
        

3,450,851
       

990,967           3,450,851       
509,001

           
-

                 

1,499,968

1,499,968

1,499,968

        
3,450,851

       

-
                   

-
                 

27.1
        

3,450,851
       

        
3,450,851

       

RUPEES RUPEES

30-Jun-25 30-Jun-24

-
                   

-
                 (539,073)

          
-

                 
(539,073)

          
-

                 
11.5 Average dura�on of the defined benefit obliga�on

 The average dura�on of the defined benefit obliga�on is 6 years.

11.6 Expected charge to profit or loss for the next financial year

 The expected charge to profit or loss for the year ending 30 June 2026 amounts to Rs. 1.47 million.
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 If an asset or a liability measured at fair value has a bid price and an ask price, then the Company measures assets and long 
posi�ons at a bid price and liabili�es and short posi�ons at an ask price.

 Fair values are categorized into different levels in a fair value hierarchy based on the inputs used in the valua�on techniques 
as follows.

 - Level 1: quoted prices (unadjusted) in ac�ve markets for iden�cal assets or liabili�es.

 - Level 2: inputs other than quoted prices included in Level 1 that are observable for the asset or liability, either directly 
(i.e. as prices) or indirectly (i.e. derived from prices).

 - Level 3: inputs for the asset or liability that are not based on observable market data (unobservable inputs).

 If the inputs used to measure the fair value of an asset or a liability fall into different levels of the fair value hierarchy, then the 
fair value measurement is categorized in its en�rety in the same level of the fair value hierarchy as the lowest level input that 
is significant to the en�re measurement.

 The Company recognizes transfers between levels of the fair value hierarchy at the end of the repor�ng period during which 
the change has occurred.

6 AUTHORIZED SHARE CAPITAL

Note

Ordinary shares of Rs. 10 each 6.1

7 ISSUED ORDINARY SHARE CAPITAL

Ordinary shares of Rs. 10 each

SHARES SHARES

30-Jun-25 30-Jun-24

120,000,000 20,000,000  

120,000,000 20,000,000  

SHARES SHARES

30-Jun-25 30-Jun-24

9,860,000
     

9,860,000
    

9,860,000
     

9,860,000
    

RUPEES RUPEES

30-Jun-25 30-Jun-24

1,200,000,000 200,000,000   

1,200,000,000 200,000,000   

RUPEES RUPEES

30-Jun-25 30-Jun-24

98,600,000
      

98,600,000
     

98,600,000
      

98,600,000
     

6.1 Persuant to scheme of arrangement, as explained in note 1.2, the authorized share capital of the Company has  increased 
from Rs. 200 million comprising 20,000,000 ordinary shares of Rs. 10 each to Rs. 1,200 million, comprising 120,000,000 
ordinary shares of Rs. 10 each, to accommodate the shares to be issued under the share swap arrangement.

8 SHARES TO BE ISSUED UNDER SCHEME OF ARRANGEMENT

 These represent shares to be issued under the scheme of arrangement as considera�on of merger, as explained in note 1.2. 
Subsequent to the repor�ng date, the Company has issued 97,961,500 fully paid ordinary shares in accordance with the 
scheme of arrangement.

9 DISCOUNT ON ISSUE OF ORDINARY SHARES

 The merged financial statements represent the con�nua�on of the financial statements of ITANZ, being the accoun�ng 
acquirer. Therefore, the merged financial statements reflect issued equity interests of the accoun�ng acquirer before the 
merger. However, the equity structure (number of ordinary shares outstanding) reflects the equity structure of the  
Company, being the accoun�ng acquiree. Accordingly, the excess of par value of issued ordinary shares of the Company over 
that of the issued ordinary shares of the accoun�ng acquirer, immediately before the merger, has been recognized as 
discount on issue of ordinary shares.

10 RESERVE ON MERGER

 This represents the difference between the considera�on for merger, as explained in note 1.2, and book value of net assets 
of Zahur Co�on Mills Limited as at the effec�ve date of merger.

11 EMPLOYEES RETIREMENT BENEFITS

 The Company operates an unfunded gratuity scheme, a defined benefit plan, for all its employees who have completed the 
minimum qualifying service period with the excep�on of those employees who have opted to join provident fund scheme of 
the Company. Under the scheme, the Company pays a lump-sum benefit equal to last drawn monthly salary for each year of 
service to scheme members whereas the members of the scheme are not required to make any contribu�ons to the 
scheme. The scheme is administered by the management of the Company under the supervision and direc�ons of the 
Board of Directors of the Company. The amount recognized on statement of financial posi�on represents present value of 
defined benefit obliga�on.

11.1 Movement in the present value of the defined benefit obliga�on

As at beginning of the year

Transferred under scheme of arrangement

Charged to profit or loss for the year

Benefits paid during the year

Remeasurements recognized in other comprehensive income

Benefits due but not paid

As at the end of the year

11.2 Charge to profit or loss

Service cost

Interest cost

11.3 The charge to profit or loss has been allocated as follows

Direct cost

Administra�ve expenses

11.4 Remeasurements recognized in other comprehensive income

Actuarial gain/(loss) arising from:

Changes in financial assump�ons

Experience adjustments

RUPEES RUPEES

Note 30-Jun-25 30-Jun-24

[restated]

3,450,851        -                 
50 -                   2,376,400       

11.2 1,499,968        3,450,851       
-                   -                 

11.4 (539,073)          -                 
12.1 -                   (2,376,400)     

4,411,746
        

3,450,851
       

990,967           3,450,851       
509,001

           
-

                 

1,499,968

1,499,968

1,499,968

        
3,450,851

       

-
                   

-
                 

27.1
        

3,450,851
       

        
3,450,851

       

RUPEES RUPEES

30-Jun-25 30-Jun-24

-
                   

-
                 (539,073)

          
-

                 
(539,073)

          
-

                 
11.5 Average dura�on of the defined benefit obliga�on

 The average dura�on of the defined benefit obliga�on is 6 years.

11.6 Expected charge to profit or loss for the next financial year

 The expected charge to profit or loss for the year ending 30 June 2026 amounts to Rs. 1.47 million.
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11.7 Risk factors

 The defined benefit plan exposes the Company to the following actuarial risks:

 Interest risk: The discount rate used in determina�on of present value of defined benefit obliga�on has been determined by 
reference to market yield at the repor�ng date on government bonds since there is no deep market in long term private 
sector bonds in Pakistan. An increase in market yield resul�ng in a higher discount rate will decrease the defined benefit 
liability.

 Longevity risk: The present value of defined benefit obliga�on is calculated by reference to the best es�mate of the 
expected remaining working lives of employees. An increase in the expected remaining working lives will increase the 
defined benefit obliga�on.

 Salary risk: The present value of defined benefit obliga�on is calculated by reference to future salaries of employees. An 
increase in salary of employees will increase the defined benefit obliga�on.

12 TRADE AND OTHER PAYABLES

Trade creditors

Advances from customers

Due to related par�es

Accrued liabili�es

Provident fund payable

Withholding taxes payable

Levies payable

Sales tax payable

Audit fee payable

Other payables

RUPEES RUPEES

Note 30-Jun-25 30-Jun-24

[restated]

48,867,657      19,842,340     

30,561,835      1,602,002       

1,373,927        1,373,927       

12.1 42,893,412      87,735,355     

12.2 19,365,342      18,154,036     

29,341,388      26,847,380     
12.3 4,908,947        893,719          

5,485,598        1,371,366       
1,570,000        270,000          

10,914,900      2,087,093       

195,283,006    160,177,218   

12.1 These include employees re�rement benefits amoun�ng to Rs. 2.38 million (30-Jun-24: Rs. 2.38 million) due but unpaid as 
at the repor�ng date.

12.2 Provident fund payable

 The Company operates an unfunded contribu�on provident fund scheme for its permanent eligible employees. Under this 
scheme, both the Company and the employees contribute 8% of the basic salary, wherever applicable, on a monthly basis.

 As explained in Note 2, pursuant to the Scheme of Arrangement effec�ve 30 September 2023, the provident fund liability of 
the erstwhile ITANZ Technologies (Private) Limited was assumed by the Company. A provident fund trust has been 
registered, and an applica�on for recogni�on under the Income Tax Ordinance, 2001 is pending with the Commissioner 
Inland Revenue. Un�l recogni�on is obtained and the trust is opera�onal, contribu�ons are retained by the Company as a 
payable to employees.

As at the beginning of the year 

Transferred under scheme of arrangement

Contribu�ons made during the year

Employee contribu�on

Employer contribu�on

Total contribu�ons made during the period

12.3 Levies payable

As at the beginning of the year 

Transferred under scheme of arrangement

Charged to profit or loss for the year

Paid/adjusted during the year

13 SHORT TERM BORROWINGS

Secured

Term loan

Unsecured

Loan from related par�es

Temporary loans

Interest bearing

Interest free

RUPEES RUPEES

Note 30-Jun-25 30-Jun-24

[restated]

18,154,036      -                 

-                   13,965,118     

605,653           2,094,459       

605,653           2,094,459       

1,211,306        4,188,918       

19,365,342      18,154,036     

893,719           -                 

-                   507,537          

30 4,015,228        893,719          

-                   (507,537)        

4,908,947        893,719          

13.1 25,000,000      -                 

13.2 25,950,501      25,950,501     

13.3 32,000,000      25,050,988     
13.4 15,000,000      15,000,000     

97,950,501
      

66,001,489
     

13.1 This represents short term finance facility obtained from Cordoba Financial Services Limited for working capital 
requirements and carry interest at 29% per annum, payable quarterly. The principal is repayable in bullet on matuirty in June 
2026. The facility is secured by crea�ng first exclusive charge on all present and future current assets of the Company for Rs. 
100 million, post dated cheques for the en�re tenor of the facility and personal guarantees of the Company's directors.

13.2 This represents interest free loans obtained from directors of the Company and their close rela�ves for working capital 
requirements. These loans are unsecured and are repayable on demand. 

13.3 These represents temporary loans from various individuals obtained for working capital requirements. These loans carry 
interest at rates ranging from 20% to 24% per annum, payable on a monthly/quarterly basis. These loans are unsecured and 
are repayable on demand.

13.4 This represents temporary loan from an individual obtained for working capital requirements. The loan is interest free, 
unsecured and is repayable on demand.

13.5 There are no undrawn borrowing facili�es as at the repor�ng date.
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11.7 Risk factors

 The defined benefit plan exposes the Company to the following actuarial risks:

 Interest risk: The discount rate used in determina�on of present value of defined benefit obliga�on has been determined by 
reference to market yield at the repor�ng date on government bonds since there is no deep market in long term private 
sector bonds in Pakistan. An increase in market yield resul�ng in a higher discount rate will decrease the defined benefit 
liability.

 Longevity risk: The present value of defined benefit obliga�on is calculated by reference to the best es�mate of the 
expected remaining working lives of employees. An increase in the expected remaining working lives will increase the 
defined benefit obliga�on.

 Salary risk: The present value of defined benefit obliga�on is calculated by reference to future salaries of employees. An 
increase in salary of employees will increase the defined benefit obliga�on.

12 TRADE AND OTHER PAYABLES

Trade creditors

Advances from customers

Due to related par�es

Accrued liabili�es

Provident fund payable

Withholding taxes payable

Levies payable

Sales tax payable

Audit fee payable

Other payables

RUPEES RUPEES

Note 30-Jun-25 30-Jun-24

[restated]

48,867,657      19,842,340     

30,561,835      1,602,002       

1,373,927        1,373,927       

12.1 42,893,412      87,735,355     

12.2 19,365,342      18,154,036     

29,341,388      26,847,380     
12.3 4,908,947        893,719          

5,485,598        1,371,366       
1,570,000        270,000          

10,914,900      2,087,093       

195,283,006    160,177,218   

12.1 These include employees re�rement benefits amoun�ng to Rs. 2.38 million (30-Jun-24: Rs. 2.38 million) due but unpaid as 
at the repor�ng date.

12.2 Provident fund payable

 The Company operates an unfunded contribu�on provident fund scheme for its permanent eligible employees. Under this 
scheme, both the Company and the employees contribute 8% of the basic salary, wherever applicable, on a monthly basis.

 As explained in Note 2, pursuant to the Scheme of Arrangement effec�ve 30 September 2023, the provident fund liability of 
the erstwhile ITANZ Technologies (Private) Limited was assumed by the Company. A provident fund trust has been 
registered, and an applica�on for recogni�on under the Income Tax Ordinance, 2001 is pending with the Commissioner 
Inland Revenue. Un�l recogni�on is obtained and the trust is opera�onal, contribu�ons are retained by the Company as a 
payable to employees.

As at the beginning of the year 

Transferred under scheme of arrangement

Contribu�ons made during the year

Employee contribu�on

Employer contribu�on

Total contribu�ons made during the period

12.3 Levies payable

As at the beginning of the year 

Transferred under scheme of arrangement

Charged to profit or loss for the year

Paid/adjusted during the year

13 SHORT TERM BORROWINGS

Secured

Term loan

Unsecured

Loan from related par�es

Temporary loans

Interest bearing

Interest free

RUPEES RUPEES

Note 30-Jun-25 30-Jun-24

[restated]

18,154,036      -                 

-                   13,965,118     

605,653           2,094,459       

605,653           2,094,459       

1,211,306        4,188,918       

19,365,342      18,154,036     

893,719           -                 

-                   507,537          

30 4,015,228        893,719          

-                   (507,537)        

4,908,947        893,719          

13.1 25,000,000      -                 

13.2 25,950,501      25,950,501     

13.3 32,000,000      25,050,988     
13.4 15,000,000      15,000,000     

97,950,501
      

66,001,489
     

13.1 This represents short term finance facility obtained from Cordoba Financial Services Limited for working capital 
requirements and carry interest at 29% per annum, payable quarterly. The principal is repayable in bullet on matuirty in June 
2026. The facility is secured by crea�ng first exclusive charge on all present and future current assets of the Company for Rs. 
100 million, post dated cheques for the en�re tenor of the facility and personal guarantees of the Company's directors.

13.2 This represents interest free loans obtained from directors of the Company and their close rela�ves for working capital 
requirements. These loans are unsecured and are repayable on demand. 

13.3 These represents temporary loans from various individuals obtained for working capital requirements. These loans carry 
interest at rates ranging from 20% to 24% per annum, payable on a monthly/quarterly basis. These loans are unsecured and 
are repayable on demand.

13.4 This represents temporary loan from an individual obtained for working capital requirements. The loan is interest free, 
unsecured and is repayable on demand.

13.5 There are no undrawn borrowing facili�es as at the repor�ng date.
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14 INCOME TAX PAYABLE

As at the beginning of the year 

Transferred under the scheme of arrangement

Charged to profit or loss for the year

Paid/adjusted during the year

15 CONTINGENCIES AND COMMITMENTS

15.1 Con�ngencies

15.1.1 Guarantees issue by banking companies on behalf of the Company outstanding as at the repor�ng date are as follows:

Bank guarantees

RUPEES RUPEES

Note 30-Jun-25 30-Jun-24

[restated]

4,423,205        -                 

-                   869,944          

31 -                   4,423,205       

-                   (869,944)        

4,423,205        4,423,205       

RUPEES RUPEES

30-Jun-25 30-Jun-24

8,450,277        8,450,277       

15.1.2 The Company has been suspended from the sales tax due to non-filing of its monthly sales tax returns. Under Sec�on 
33(Chapter VII) of Sales Tax Act, 1990, a penalty of Rs. 600,000 may be imposed for non submission of last five years monthly 
sales tax returns �ll the repor�ng date, if tax department issue the no�ce and plea of the Company has been rejected by the 
apellate authority in this regard. However, the approximate amount of the penalty has been provided for in these financial 
statements.

15.1.3 Under sec�on 512(2) of the Companies Act, 2017, the Company may be imposed the penalty for non compliance with Listed 
Companies (Code of Corporate Governance) Regula�ons, 2019, which can be up to five million rupees. Addi�onally, if the 
non-compliance con�nues, an extra penalty of up to one hundred thousand rupees may be imposed for each day the non 
compliance persists.

15.1.4 The Company is not deposi�ng withholding taxes in a �mely manner and has been filing nil periodic withholding statements. 
Non-payment a�racts a penalty of up to 10% of the amount in default, along with a surcharge at the higher of 12% per 
annum or KIBOR + 3%. However, an approximate amount of the penalty and default surcharge is provided for in these 
financial statements.

15.2 Commitments

15.2.1 Commitments under ijarah contracts

Not later than one year

Later than one year and not later than five years

Later than five years

RUPEES RUPEES

30-Jun-25 30-Jun-24

2,493,721        1,521,518       

1,576,243        4,824,725       

-                   -                 

4,069,964        6,346,243       

 The amount of ujrah payments for ijarah financing and the period in which these payments will become due are as follows:

Not later than one year

Later than one year and not later than five years

RUPEES RUPEES

30-Jun-25 30-Jun-24

478,500           957,000          
-                   -                 

478,500 957,000

15.2.2 Commitments under incuba�on license

 The Company has entered into an arrangement with Interna�onal Center of Chemical and Biological Sciences ['ICCBS'] 
whereby ICCBS has provided the Company office space against Incuba�on licence fee. Incuba�on license fee is payable 
monthly in advance. Commitments for payments in future periods under the incuba�on fee license agreement are as 
follows:

16 PROPERTY AND EQUIPMENT

                                                                  

              
                               

                                                 

              
                      

                                                       
              

                                         

Transferred Transferred Net book

As at under the scheme As at As at under the scheme As at value as at

01-Jul-24 of arrangement Addi�ons Disposals 30-Jun-25  Rate 01-Jul-24 of arrangement For the year Disposals 30-Jun-25 30-Jun-25

Furniture and fixtures 58,600

         

-

                         

88,000

      

-

              

146,600

    

20 32,097

         

-

                           

6,768

          

- 38,865 107,735

Computer hardware and equipment 5,715,391

    

-

                         

541,408

    

-

              

6,256,799

 

30 4,066,935

    

-

                           

532,623

      

- 4,599,558 1,657,241

Vehicles -

               

-

                         

1,172,424

 

(1,172,424)

  

-

            

20 -

              

-

                           

-

              

- - -

5,773,991 - 1,801,832 (1,172,424) 6,403,399 4,099,032 - 539,391 - 4,638,423 1,764,976

Transferred Transferred Net book

As at under the scheme As at As at under the scheme As at value as at

01-Jul-23 of arrangement Addi�ons Disposals 30-Jun-24 01-Jul-23 of arrangement For the year Disposals 30-Jun-24 30-Jun-24

Furniture and fixtures - 58,600 - - 58,600 20 - 27,128 4,969 - 32,097 26,503

Computer hardware and equipment - 5,600,391 115,000 - 5,715,391 30 - 3,528,449 538,486 - 4,066,935 1,648,456

Vehicles - - 6,702,170 (6,702,170) - 20 - - - - - -

- 5,658,991 6,817,170 (6,702,170) 5,773,991 - 3,555,577 543,455 - 4,099,032 1,674,959

------------Rupees-----------

------------Rupees-----------

 COST  DEPRECIATION 

30-Jun-25

 COST  DEPRECIATION 

30-Jun-24

16.1 Disposal of opera�ng fixed assets

             
                                                                      

             
                                                                    

Accumulated Net Disposal Loss Mode of

Cost deprecia�on book value proceeds on disposal disposal Par�culars of buyer

Vehicles

Suzuki Alto VXR 1,172,424

              

-

                         

1,172,424

              

940,524

                 

(231,900)

                

Nego�a�on Ahmed Bilal, Lahore.

1,172,424

              

-

                         

1,172,424

              

940,524

                 

(231,900)

                

Accumulated Net Disposal (Loss)/gain Mode of

Cost deprecia�on book value proceeds on disposal disposal Par�culars of buyer

Vehicles

Suzuki Alto VXR 1,511,012

              

-

                         

1,511,012

              

1,105,954

              

(405,058)

                

Nego�a�on Abdul Basit, Lahore.

Suzuki Alto VXR 1,509,688

              

-

                         

1,509,688

              

1,105,954

              

(403,734)

                

Nego�a�on Abdul Basit, Lahore.

Suzuki Alto VXR 1,430,250 - 1,430,250 1,105,954 (324,296) Nego�a�on Abdul Basit, Lahore.

Honda BRV 2,251,220 - 2,251,220 3,975,000 1,723,780 Nego�a�on Syed Asim Zafar (employee)

6,702,170 - 6,702,170 7,292,862 590,692

30-Jun-24

30-Jun-25

------------Rupees-----------

------------Rupees-----------

16.2 The deprecia�on charge for the year has been allocated as follows:

Direct cost

Administra�ve expenses

RUPEES RUPEES

30-Jun-25 30-Jun-24

25 431,513           434,764          

27 107,878           108,691          

539,391           543,455          

Note
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14 INCOME TAX PAYABLE

As at the beginning of the year 

Transferred under the scheme of arrangement

Charged to profit or loss for the year

Paid/adjusted during the year

15 CONTINGENCIES AND COMMITMENTS

15.1 Con�ngencies

15.1.1 Guarantees issue by banking companies on behalf of the Company outstanding as at the repor�ng date are as follows:

Bank guarantees

RUPEES RUPEES

Note 30-Jun-25 30-Jun-24

[restated]

4,423,205        -                 

-                   869,944          

31 -                   4,423,205       

-                   (869,944)        

4,423,205        4,423,205       

RUPEES RUPEES

30-Jun-25 30-Jun-24

8,450,277        8,450,277       

15.1.2 The Company has been suspended from the sales tax due to non-filing of its monthly sales tax returns. Under Sec�on 
33(Chapter VII) of Sales Tax Act, 1990, a penalty of Rs. 600,000 may be imposed for non submission of last five years monthly 
sales tax returns �ll the repor�ng date, if tax department issue the no�ce and plea of the Company has been rejected by the 
apellate authority in this regard. However, the approximate amount of the penalty has been provided for in these financial 
statements.

15.1.3 Under sec�on 512(2) of the Companies Act, 2017, the Company may be imposed the penalty for non compliance with Listed 
Companies (Code of Corporate Governance) Regula�ons, 2019, which can be up to five million rupees. Addi�onally, if the 
non-compliance con�nues, an extra penalty of up to one hundred thousand rupees may be imposed for each day the non 
compliance persists.

15.1.4 The Company is not deposi�ng withholding taxes in a �mely manner and has been filing nil periodic withholding statements. 
Non-payment a�racts a penalty of up to 10% of the amount in default, along with a surcharge at the higher of 12% per 
annum or KIBOR + 3%. However, an approximate amount of the penalty and default surcharge is provided for in these 
financial statements.

15.2 Commitments

15.2.1 Commitments under ijarah contracts

Not later than one year

Later than one year and not later than five years

Later than five years

RUPEES RUPEES

30-Jun-25 30-Jun-24

2,493,721        1,521,518       

1,576,243        4,824,725       

-                   -                 

4,069,964        6,346,243       

 The amount of ujrah payments for ijarah financing and the period in which these payments will become due are as follows:

Not later than one year

Later than one year and not later than five years

RUPEES RUPEES

30-Jun-25 30-Jun-24

478,500           957,000          
-                   -                 

478,500 957,000

15.2.2 Commitments under incuba�on license

 The Company has entered into an arrangement with Interna�onal Center of Chemical and Biological Sciences ['ICCBS'] 
whereby ICCBS has provided the Company office space against Incuba�on licence fee. Incuba�on license fee is payable 
monthly in advance. Commitments for payments in future periods under the incuba�on fee license agreement are as 
follows:

16 PROPERTY AND EQUIPMENT

                                                                  

              
                               

                                                 

              
                      

                                                       
              

                                         

Transferred Transferred Net book

As at under the scheme As at As at under the scheme As at value as at

01-Jul-24 of arrangement Addi�ons Disposals 30-Jun-25  Rate 01-Jul-24 of arrangement For the year Disposals 30-Jun-25 30-Jun-25

Furniture and fixtures 58,600

         

-

                         

88,000

      

-

              

146,600

    

20 32,097

         

-

                           

6,768

          

- 38,865 107,735

Computer hardware and equipment 5,715,391

    

-

                         

541,408

    

-

              

6,256,799

 

30 4,066,935

    

-

                           

532,623

      

- 4,599,558 1,657,241

Vehicles -

               

-

                         

1,172,424

 

(1,172,424)

  

-

            

20 -

              

-

                           

-

              

- - -

5,773,991 - 1,801,832 (1,172,424) 6,403,399 4,099,032 - 539,391 - 4,638,423 1,764,976

Transferred Transferred Net book

As at under the scheme As at As at under the scheme As at value as at

01-Jul-23 of arrangement Addi�ons Disposals 30-Jun-24 01-Jul-23 of arrangement For the year Disposals 30-Jun-24 30-Jun-24

Furniture and fixtures - 58,600 - - 58,600 20 - 27,128 4,969 - 32,097 26,503

Computer hardware and equipment - 5,600,391 115,000 - 5,715,391 30 - 3,528,449 538,486 - 4,066,935 1,648,456

Vehicles - - 6,702,170 (6,702,170) - 20 - - - - - -

- 5,658,991 6,817,170 (6,702,170) 5,773,991 - 3,555,577 543,455 - 4,099,032 1,674,959

------------Rupees-----------

------------Rupees-----------

 COST  DEPRECIATION 

30-Jun-25

 COST  DEPRECIATION 

30-Jun-24

16.1 Disposal of opera�ng fixed assets

             
                                                                      

             
                                                                    

Accumulated Net Disposal Loss Mode of

Cost deprecia�on book value proceeds on disposal disposal Par�culars of buyer

Vehicles

Suzuki Alto VXR 1,172,424

              

-

                         

1,172,424

              

940,524

                 

(231,900)

                

Nego�a�on Ahmed Bilal, Lahore.

1,172,424

              

-

                         

1,172,424

              

940,524

                 

(231,900)

                

Accumulated Net Disposal (Loss)/gain Mode of

Cost deprecia�on book value proceeds on disposal disposal Par�culars of buyer

Vehicles

Suzuki Alto VXR 1,511,012

              

-

                         

1,511,012

              

1,105,954

              

(405,058)

                

Nego�a�on Abdul Basit, Lahore.

Suzuki Alto VXR 1,509,688

              

-

                         

1,509,688

              

1,105,954

              

(403,734)

                

Nego�a�on Abdul Basit, Lahore.

Suzuki Alto VXR 1,430,250 - 1,430,250 1,105,954 (324,296) Nego�a�on Abdul Basit, Lahore.

Honda BRV 2,251,220 - 2,251,220 3,975,000 1,723,780 Nego�a�on Syed Asim Zafar (employee)

6,702,170 - 6,702,170 7,292,862 590,692

30-Jun-24

30-Jun-25

------------Rupees-----------

------------Rupees-----------

16.2 The deprecia�on charge for the year has been allocated as follows:

Direct cost

Administra�ve expenses

RUPEES RUPEES

30-Jun-25 30-Jun-24

25 431,513           434,764          

27 107,878           108,691          

539,391           543,455          

Note
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16.3 Change in input method applied for deprecia�on calcula�on

 As the merged financial statements represent the con�nua�on of the financial statements of ITANZ, being the accoun�ng 
acquirer in accordance with the principles of IFRS 3, the Company has therefore revised the method of deprecia�on 
calcula�on from straight line to reducing balance. This change in input method applied for deprecia�on calcula�on is a 
change in es�mate and in line with the principles of IAS 8 ['Accoun�ng Policies, Changes in Accoun�ng Es�mates and Errors'] 
and shall therefore be taken into account prospec�vely. However, as the date of common control transac�on is in previous 
year the impacts of es�mate change has been reflected in previous year as well.

17 INTANGIBLE ASSETS
------------Rupees-----------

Note

Transferred Transferred Net book

As at under the scheme As at As at under the scheme As at value as at

01-Jul-24 of arrangement Addi�ons 30-Jun-25 Rate 01-Jul-24 of arrangement For the year 30-Jun-25 30-Jun-25

Property Management (PM) solu�on so�ware 17.1 116,358,880

 

-

                          

-

                

116,358,880

 

20 43,312,269

   

-

                          

14,609,322

   

57,921,591

   

58,437,289

                

116,358,880 - - 116,358,880 43,312,269 - 14,609,322 57,921,591 58,437,289

Transferred Transferred Net book

As at under the scheme As at As at under the scheme As at value as at

01-Jul-23 of arrangement Addi�ons 30-Jun-24  Rate 01-Jul-23 of arrangement For the year 30-Jun-24 30-Jun-24

Property Management (PM) solu�on so�ware 17.1 - 115,558,880 800,000 116,358,880 20 - 29,576,030 13,736,239

   

43,312,269

   

73,046,611

   

-

                

- 115,558,880 800,000 116,358,880 - 29,576,030 13,736,239

   

43,312,269

   

73,046,611

   

------------Rupees-----------

30-Jun-25

 COST  AMORTIZATION/IMPAIRMENT 

30-Jun-24

 COST  AMORTIZATION/IMPAIRMENT 

17.1 Under the scheme of arrangement, the Company has acquired the PM Solu�on so�ware — a cloud-based, ready-to-use 
pla�orm specifically designed to meet customer needs. The so�ware facilitates the centraliza�on and streamlining of 
func�ons such as rate management, billing, planning, and development control.

17.2 The amor�za�on charge for the year has been allocated to direct cost.

18 LONG TERM DEPOSITS

Financial ins�tui�ons

Others

18.1 These represents security deposits against ijarah financing.

19 DEFERRED TAXATION

Deferred tax asset on deduc�ble temporary differences

Deferred tax liability on taxable temporary differences

RUPEES RUPEES

Note 30-Jun-25 30-Jun-24

[restated]

18.1 1,231,650        1,463,550       

-                   68,210            

1,231,650        1,531,760       

RUPEES RUPEES

Note 30-Jun-25 30-Jun-24

19.1 76,622,206      -                 

19.1 (2,665)              -                 

76,619,541      -                 

19.1 Recognized deferred tax assets and liabili�es

Deferred tax assets and liabili�es are a�ributable to the following:

Deferred tax assets

Intangible assets

Trade receivables

Employees re�rement benefits

Unused tax losses and credits

Deferred tax liabili�es

Property and equipment    

As at Recognized in Recognized in As at

01-Jul-24 profit or loss OCI 30-Jun-25

-                 1,213,387       -                   1,213,387       
-                 310,437          -                   310,437          
-                 98,945            (10,774)            88,171            
-                 75,010,211     -                   75,010,211     

-                 76,632,980     (10,774)            76,622,206     

-                 (2,665)            -                   (2,665)            

-                 (2,665)            -                   (2,665)            

-
                 

76,630,315
     

(10,774)
            

76,619,541
     

30-Jun-25

----RUPEES----

19.2 Deferred tax arising from �ming differences pertaining to income from business is provided for only that por�on of �ming 
differences that represent income taxable under normal provisions of the Income Tax Ordinance, 2001 [the 'Ordinance'] as 
revenue from export sales of the Company is subject to taxa�on under the final tax regime, while the remaining por�on of 
revenue a�racts assessment under normal provisions of the Ordinance. These differences are calculated at that propor�on 
of total �ming differences that the local sales bear to the total sales revenue based on historical and future trends. Deferred 
tax has been calculated at 29% (30-Jun-24: nil) of the �ming differences so determined based on tax rates no�fied by the 
Government of Pakistan for future tax years.

20 TRADE RECEIVABLES

Considered good

Local customers

Foreign customers

Impairment allowance for expected credit losses

20.1 Impairment allowance for expected credit losses

As at beginning of the year

Recognized during the year

21 DEPOSITS AND PREPAYMENTS

Security deposits

Prepaid levies

RUPEES RUPEES

Note 30-Jun-25 30-Jun-24

[restated]

15,533,138      48,770,894     

748,835,856    377,359,954   

764,368,994    426,130,848   

20.1 (15,533,138)     -                 

748,835,856    426,130,848   

-                   -                 

39.1.6 15,533,138      -                 

15,533,138      -                 

8,813,915        8,980,915       

255,875           122,666          

9,069,790        9,103,581       
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16.3 Change in input method applied for deprecia�on calcula�on

 As the merged financial statements represent the con�nua�on of the financial statements of ITANZ, being the accoun�ng 
acquirer in accordance with the principles of IFRS 3, the Company has therefore revised the method of deprecia�on 
calcula�on from straight line to reducing balance. This change in input method applied for deprecia�on calcula�on is a 
change in es�mate and in line with the principles of IAS 8 ['Accoun�ng Policies, Changes in Accoun�ng Es�mates and Errors'] 
and shall therefore be taken into account prospec�vely. However, as the date of common control transac�on is in previous 
year the impacts of es�mate change has been reflected in previous year as well.

17 INTANGIBLE ASSETS
------------Rupees-----------

Note

Transferred Transferred Net book

As at under the scheme As at As at under the scheme As at value as at

01-Jul-24 of arrangement Addi�ons 30-Jun-25 Rate 01-Jul-24 of arrangement For the year 30-Jun-25 30-Jun-25

Property Management (PM) solu�on so�ware 17.1 116,358,880

 

-

                          

-

                

116,358,880

 

20 43,312,269

   

-

                          

14,609,322

   

57,921,591

   

58,437,289

                

116,358,880 - - 116,358,880 43,312,269 - 14,609,322 57,921,591 58,437,289

Transferred Transferred Net book

As at under the scheme As at As at under the scheme As at value as at

01-Jul-23 of arrangement Addi�ons 30-Jun-24  Rate 01-Jul-23 of arrangement For the year 30-Jun-24 30-Jun-24

Property Management (PM) solu�on so�ware 17.1 - 115,558,880 800,000 116,358,880 20 - 29,576,030 13,736,239

   

43,312,269

   

73,046,611

   

-

                

- 115,558,880 800,000 116,358,880 - 29,576,030 13,736,239

   

43,312,269

   

73,046,611

   

------------Rupees-----------

30-Jun-25

 COST  AMORTIZATION/IMPAIRMENT 

30-Jun-24

 COST  AMORTIZATION/IMPAIRMENT 

17.1 Under the scheme of arrangement, the Company has acquired the PM Solu�on so�ware — a cloud-based, ready-to-use 
pla�orm specifically designed to meet customer needs. The so�ware facilitates the centraliza�on and streamlining of 
func�ons such as rate management, billing, planning, and development control.

17.2 The amor�za�on charge for the year has been allocated to direct cost.

18 LONG TERM DEPOSITS

Financial ins�tui�ons

Others

18.1 These represents security deposits against ijarah financing.

19 DEFERRED TAXATION

Deferred tax asset on deduc�ble temporary differences

Deferred tax liability on taxable temporary differences

RUPEES RUPEES

Note 30-Jun-25 30-Jun-24

[restated]

18.1 1,231,650        1,463,550       

-                   68,210            

1,231,650        1,531,760       

RUPEES RUPEES

Note 30-Jun-25 30-Jun-24

19.1 76,622,206      -                 

19.1 (2,665)              -                 

76,619,541      -                 

19.1 Recognized deferred tax assets and liabili�es

Deferred tax assets and liabili�es are a�ributable to the following:

Deferred tax assets

Intangible assets

Trade receivables

Employees re�rement benefits

Unused tax losses and credits

Deferred tax liabili�es

Property and equipment    

As at Recognized in Recognized in As at

01-Jul-24 profit or loss OCI 30-Jun-25

-                 1,213,387       -                   1,213,387       
-                 310,437          -                   310,437          
-                 98,945            (10,774)            88,171            
-                 75,010,211     -                   75,010,211     

-                 76,632,980     (10,774)            76,622,206     

-                 (2,665)            -                   (2,665)            

-                 (2,665)            -                   (2,665)            

-
                 

76,630,315
     

(10,774)
            

76,619,541
     

30-Jun-25

----RUPEES----

19.2 Deferred tax arising from �ming differences pertaining to income from business is provided for only that por�on of �ming 
differences that represent income taxable under normal provisions of the Income Tax Ordinance, 2001 [the 'Ordinance'] as 
revenue from export sales of the Company is subject to taxa�on under the final tax regime, while the remaining por�on of 
revenue a�racts assessment under normal provisions of the Ordinance. These differences are calculated at that propor�on 
of total �ming differences that the local sales bear to the total sales revenue based on historical and future trends. Deferred 
tax has been calculated at 29% (30-Jun-24: nil) of the �ming differences so determined based on tax rates no�fied by the 
Government of Pakistan for future tax years.

20 TRADE RECEIVABLES

Considered good

Local customers

Foreign customers

Impairment allowance for expected credit losses

20.1 Impairment allowance for expected credit losses

As at beginning of the year

Recognized during the year

21 DEPOSITS AND PREPAYMENTS

Security deposits

Prepaid levies

RUPEES RUPEES

Note 30-Jun-25 30-Jun-24

[restated]

15,533,138      48,770,894     

748,835,856    377,359,954   

764,368,994    426,130,848   

20.1 (15,533,138)     -                 

748,835,856    426,130,848   

-                   -                 

39.1.6 15,533,138      -                 

15,533,138      -                 

8,813,915        8,980,915       

255,875           122,666          

9,069,790        9,103,581       
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22 ADVANCES AND OTHER RECEIVABLES

Advances to employees

Sales tax withheld

Other receivables

23 CASH AND BANK BALANCES

Cash in hand

Bank balances

24 REVENUE FROM CONTRACTS WITH CUSTOMERS - NET

Outsourcing services:

Business process outsourcing

IT services

So�ware development and implementa�on

So�ware licensing

Gross revenue

Sales tax

1,506,074        1,806,074       

4,985,674        485,357          

2,832,000        2,832,000       

9,323,748        5,123,431       

6,905               6,048              
26,980,217      29,219            

26,987,122      35,267            

Local Export Total

-                 82,218,588      82,218,588     
-                 205,546,470    205,546,470   

-                 287,765,058    287,765,058   
-

                 
123,327,881

    
123,327,881
   

35,836,756
     

-
                   

35,836,756
     

35,836,756
     

411,092,939
    

446,929,695
   

(5,409,166)
     

-
                   

(5,409,166)
     

30,427,590
     

411,092,939
    

441,520,529
   

30-Jun-25

----RUPEES----

RUPEES RUPEES

Note 30-Jun-25 30-Jun-24

[restated]

Outsourcing services:

Business process outsourcing

IT services

So�ware development and implementa�on

So�ware licensing

Gross revenue

Sales tax

Local Export Total

[restated] [restated] [restated]

-
                 

59,929,626
      

59,929,626
     

-
                 

149,824,066
    

149,824,066
   

-
                 

209,753,692
    

209,753,692
   

-                 89,894,440      89,894,440     

46,333,513     -                   46,333,513     

46,333,513     299,648,132    345,981,645   

(7,078,243)     -                   (7,078,243)     

39,255,270     299,648,132    338,903,402   

----RUPEES----

30-Jun-24

25 DIRECT COST

Salaries and benefits

Internet and communica�on

Subscrip�ons and I.T consultancy

Travelling expenses

Deprecia�on of property and equipment

Amor�za�on of intangible assets

26 OTHER INCOME

Gain on financial instruments

Foreign exchange gain

Payables wri�en back

Others

Gain on disposal of property, plant and equipment

27 ADMINISTRATIVE EXPENSES

Salaries and benefits

Electricity, gas and water

Rent, rates and taxes

Legal and professional

Insurance

Entertainment and staff welfare

Vehicles running and maintenance

Prin�ng, sta�onery and periodicals

Fee and subscrip�on
Computer expenses

Repairs and maintenance

Auditor's remunera�on

Traveling and conveyance

Ujrah payments

Adver�sement

Depreca�on of property and equipment

Miscellaneous 

RUPEES RUPEES

Note 30-Jun-25 30-Jun-24

[restated]

40,948,528      97,747,881     

1,036,342        816,353          

85,735,105      16,456,041     

70,000             1,403,770       

16.2 431,513           434,764          

17 14,609,322      13,736,239     

142,830,810    130,595,048   

17,220,520      2,312,102       

33,276,041      -                 

50,496,561      2,312,102       

16.1 -                   590,692          

-                   590,692          

50,496,561      2,902,794       

27.1 12,524,405      28,403,321     
346,950           470,190          

3,171,590        3,662,825       
8,651,073        88,834            

-                   154,683          
701,346           324,711          
855,000           76,160            

49,610             914,649          
8,184,128        224,430          

35,497             125,150          
197,025

           
2,423,759

       
27.2 1,570,000

        
520,000

          
1,390,373

        
894,169

          
2,564,807

        
1,735,994

       
179,000

           
67,000

            
16.2 107,878

           
108,691

          
11,535,614

      
108,409

          
52,064,296

      
40,302,975

     

27.1 These includes charges in respect of employees re�rement benefits amoun�ng to Rs. 1.50 million (30-Jun-24: Rs. 3.45 
million) and contribu�on to provident fund amoun�ng to Rs. 0.61 million (30-Jun-24: Rs. 2.09 million).
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22 ADVANCES AND OTHER RECEIVABLES

Advances to employees

Sales tax withheld

Other receivables

23 CASH AND BANK BALANCES

Cash in hand

Bank balances

24 REVENUE FROM CONTRACTS WITH CUSTOMERS - NET

Outsourcing services:

Business process outsourcing

IT services

So�ware development and implementa�on

So�ware licensing

Gross revenue

Sales tax

1,506,074        1,806,074       

4,985,674        485,357          

2,832,000        2,832,000       

9,323,748        5,123,431       

6,905               6,048              
26,980,217      29,219            

26,987,122      35,267            

Local Export Total

-                 82,218,588      82,218,588     
-                 205,546,470    205,546,470   

-                 287,765,058    287,765,058   
-

                 
123,327,881

    
123,327,881
   

35,836,756
     

-
                   

35,836,756
     

35,836,756
     

411,092,939
    

446,929,695
   

(5,409,166)
     

-
                   

(5,409,166)
     

30,427,590
     

411,092,939
    

441,520,529
   

30-Jun-25

----RUPEES----

RUPEES RUPEES

Note 30-Jun-25 30-Jun-24

[restated]

Outsourcing services:

Business process outsourcing

IT services

So�ware development and implementa�on

So�ware licensing

Gross revenue

Sales tax

Local Export Total

[restated] [restated] [restated]

-
                 

59,929,626
      

59,929,626
     

-
                 

149,824,066
    

149,824,066
   

-
                 

209,753,692
    

209,753,692
   

-                 89,894,440      89,894,440     

46,333,513     -                   46,333,513     

46,333,513     299,648,132    345,981,645   

(7,078,243)     -                   (7,078,243)     

39,255,270     299,648,132    338,903,402   

----RUPEES----

30-Jun-24

25 DIRECT COST

Salaries and benefits

Internet and communica�on

Subscrip�ons and I.T consultancy

Travelling expenses

Deprecia�on of property and equipment

Amor�za�on of intangible assets

26 OTHER INCOME

Gain on financial instruments

Foreign exchange gain

Payables wri�en back

Others

Gain on disposal of property, plant and equipment

27 ADMINISTRATIVE EXPENSES

Salaries and benefits

Electricity, gas and water

Rent, rates and taxes

Legal and professional

Insurance

Entertainment and staff welfare

Vehicles running and maintenance

Prin�ng, sta�onery and periodicals

Fee and subscrip�on
Computer expenses

Repairs and maintenance

Auditor's remunera�on

Traveling and conveyance

Ujrah payments

Adver�sement

Depreca�on of property and equipment

Miscellaneous 

RUPEES RUPEES

Note 30-Jun-25 30-Jun-24

[restated]

40,948,528      97,747,881     

1,036,342        816,353          

85,735,105      16,456,041     

70,000             1,403,770       

16.2 431,513           434,764          

17 14,609,322      13,736,239     

142,830,810    130,595,048   

17,220,520      2,312,102       

33,276,041      -                 

50,496,561      2,312,102       

16.1 -                   590,692          

-                   590,692          

50,496,561      2,902,794       

27.1 12,524,405      28,403,321     
346,950           470,190          

3,171,590        3,662,825       
8,651,073        88,834            

-                   154,683          
701,346           324,711          
855,000           76,160            

49,610             914,649          
8,184,128        224,430          

35,497             125,150          
197,025

           
2,423,759

       
27.2 1,570,000

        
520,000

          
1,390,373

        
894,169

          
2,564,807

        
1,735,994

       
179,000

           
67,000

            
16.2 107,878

           
108,691

          
11,535,614

      
108,409

          
52,064,296

      
40,302,975

     

27.1 These includes charges in respect of employees re�rement benefits amoun�ng to Rs. 1.50 million (30-Jun-24: Rs. 3.45 
million) and contribu�on to provident fund amoun�ng to Rs. 0.61 million (30-Jun-24: Rs. 2.09 million).
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27.2 Auditor's remunera�on

Annual statutory audit

Limited scope review

Special purpose audit

Review report under corporate governance

Out of pocket expenses

28 OTHER EXPENSES

Loss on financial instruments

Long term deposits wri�en off

Others

Loss on disposal of property and equipment

29 FINANCE COST

Bank charges and commission

Interest on short term borrowings

30 PROVISION FOR LEVIES

Levies under Income Tax Ordinance, 2001

Current year

Prior year

31 PROVISION FOR INCOME TAXES

Current taxa�on

for current year

for prior years

Deferred taxa�on

a�ributable to origina�on and reversal of temporary differences

a�ributable to changes in tax rates

RUPEES RUPEES

Note 30-Jun-25 30-Jun-24

1,350,000
        

370,000
          

70,000
             

50,000
            

-                   100,000          

100,000           -                 

50,000             -                 

1,570,000        520,000          

68,210             -                 

16.1 231,900           -                 

300,110           -                 

RUPEES RUPEES

Note 30-Jun-25 30-Jun-24

[restated]

69,362             63,337            

8,997,983        7,207,407       

9,067,345        7,270,744       

30.1 4,015,228        893,719          
-                   -                 

4,015,228        893,719          

RUPEES RUPEES

Note 30-Jun-25 30-Jun-24

[restated]

31.1 -                   4,423,205       
-                   -                 

-                   4,423,205       

(76,630,315)
     

-
                 

-
                   

-
                 

(76,630,315)
     

-
                 

(76,630,315) 4,423,205

30.1 Levies under Income Tax Ordinance, 2001 ['the Ordinance'] have been recognized under sec�on 113C and 154A (30-Jun-24: 
sec�on 154A) of the Ordinance.

31.1 Provision for current taxa�on has been recognized under sec�on 18 of the Income Tax Ordinance, 2001.

31.2 The income tax assessments of the Company up to and including tax year 2023 have been completed by the concerned 
income tax authori�es or are deemed to have been so completed under the provisions of sec�on 120 of the Ordinance.

31.3 Es�mated liability payable with return of income to be filed under sec�on 114 of the Income Tax Ordinance 2001, subject to 
adjustment of taxes and levies paid/deducted in advance and available refunds, comprises the following:

Levies under Income Tax Ordinance, 2001

Income taxes

31.4 Reconcilia�on between average effec�ve tax rate and applicable tax rate for the year is as follows:

Profit before income taxes

Provision for income taxes

Average effec�ve tax rate

Tax effects of:

Adjustments for prior year

Provision for deferred taxa�on

Provision for statutory levies

Income chargeable to tax at different rates

Income not chargeable to tax

Inadmissible deduc�ons and other adjustments

Admissible deduc�ons, losses and tax credits

Applicable tax rate

32 BASIC EARNINGS PER SHARE

Profit a�ributable to ordinary shareholders

Weighted average number of ordinary shares outstanding during the year

Basic earnings per share

RUPEES RUPEES

Note 30-Jun-25 30-Jun-24

30 4,015,228        893,719          

                      -          4,423,205 

         4,015,228        5,316,924 

Unit 30-Jun-25 30-Jun-24

Rupees 268,206,163    162,743,710   

Rupees (76,630,315)     4,423,205       

%               (28.57)                 2.72 

%                       -                       -   

%                 28.57                     -   

%                 (0.43)                (0.16)

%                 28.35               24.50 

%                       -                       -   

%                 (4.58)                (3.78)

%                   5.67                 5.72 

%                 29.00               29.00 

30-Jun-25 30-Jun-24

344,836,478    158,320,505   

9,860,000        9,860,000       

34.97
               

16.06
              

------------Rupees-----------

-------No. of shares-------

------------Rupees-----------
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27.2 Auditor's remunera�on

Annual statutory audit

Limited scope review

Special purpose audit

Review report under corporate governance

Out of pocket expenses

28 OTHER EXPENSES

Loss on financial instruments

Long term deposits wri�en off

Others

Loss on disposal of property and equipment

29 FINANCE COST

Bank charges and commission

Interest on short term borrowings

30 PROVISION FOR LEVIES

Levies under Income Tax Ordinance, 2001

Current year

Prior year

31 PROVISION FOR INCOME TAXES

Current taxa�on

for current year

for prior years

Deferred taxa�on

a�ributable to origina�on and reversal of temporary differences

a�ributable to changes in tax rates

RUPEES RUPEES

Note 30-Jun-25 30-Jun-24

1,350,000
        

370,000
          

70,000
             

50,000
            

-                   100,000          

100,000           -                 

50,000             -                 

1,570,000        520,000          

68,210             -                 

16.1 231,900           -                 

300,110           -                 

RUPEES RUPEES

Note 30-Jun-25 30-Jun-24

[restated]

69,362             63,337            

8,997,983        7,207,407       

9,067,345        7,270,744       

30.1 4,015,228        893,719          
-                   -                 

4,015,228        893,719          

RUPEES RUPEES

Note 30-Jun-25 30-Jun-24

[restated]

31.1 -                   4,423,205       
-                   -                 

-                   4,423,205       

(76,630,315)
     

-
                 

-
                   

-
                 

(76,630,315)
     

-
                 

(76,630,315) 4,423,205

30.1 Levies under Income Tax Ordinance, 2001 ['the Ordinance'] have been recognized under sec�on 113C and 154A (30-Jun-24: 
sec�on 154A) of the Ordinance.

31.1 Provision for current taxa�on has been recognized under sec�on 18 of the Income Tax Ordinance, 2001.

31.2 The income tax assessments of the Company up to and including tax year 2023 have been completed by the concerned 
income tax authori�es or are deemed to have been so completed under the provisions of sec�on 120 of the Ordinance.

31.3 Es�mated liability payable with return of income to be filed under sec�on 114 of the Income Tax Ordinance 2001, subject to 
adjustment of taxes and levies paid/deducted in advance and available refunds, comprises the following:

Levies under Income Tax Ordinance, 2001

Income taxes

31.4 Reconcilia�on between average effec�ve tax rate and applicable tax rate for the year is as follows:

Profit before income taxes

Provision for income taxes

Average effec�ve tax rate

Tax effects of:

Adjustments for prior year

Provision for deferred taxa�on

Provision for statutory levies

Income chargeable to tax at different rates

Income not chargeable to tax

Inadmissible deduc�ons and other adjustments

Admissible deduc�ons, losses and tax credits

Applicable tax rate

32 BASIC EARNINGS PER SHARE

Profit a�ributable to ordinary shareholders

Weighted average number of ordinary shares outstanding during the year

Basic earnings per share

RUPEES RUPEES

Note 30-Jun-25 30-Jun-24

30 4,015,228        893,719          

                      -          4,423,205 

         4,015,228        5,316,924 

Unit 30-Jun-25 30-Jun-24

Rupees 268,206,163    162,743,710   

Rupees (76,630,315)     4,423,205       

%               (28.57)                 2.72 

%                       -                       -   

%                 28.57                     -   

%                 (0.43)                (0.16)

%                 28.35               24.50 

%                       -                       -   

%                 (4.58)                (3.78)

%                   5.67                 5.72 

%                 29.00               29.00 

30-Jun-25 30-Jun-24

344,836,478    158,320,505   

9,860,000        9,860,000       

34.97
               

16.06
              

------------Rupees-----------

-------No. of shares-------

------------Rupees-----------
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33 DILUTED EARNINGS PER SHARE

Profit a�ributable to ordinary shareholders

Weighted average number of ordinary shares outstanding during the year

Shares to be issued under scheme of arrangement

Diluted earnings per share

34 CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS

Cash and bank balances

35 CASH GENERATED FROM OPERATIONS

Profit before income taxes

Adjustments for non-cash and other items:

Foreign exchange gain

Provision for employees re�rement benefits

Loss/(gain) on disposal of property and equipment

Interest on short term borrowings

Amor�za�on of intangible assets

Deprecia�on of property and equipment

Impairment allowance for expected credit losses

Payables wri�en back during the year

Deposits wri�en off during the year

Provision for levies under Income Tax Ordinance, 2001

Changes in working capital

Long term deposits

Trade receivables

Deposits and prepayments

Advances and other receivables

Trade and other payables

30-Jun-25 30-Jun-24

344,836,478    158,320,505   

9,860,000        9,860,000       

97,961,500      97,961,500     

107,821,500    107,821,500   

3.20                 1.47                

RUPEES RUPEES

Note 30-Jun-25 30-Jun-24

[restated]

23 26,987,122      35,267            

26,987,122      35,267            

268,206,163    162,743,710   

(17,220,520)     (2,312,102)     
1,499,968        3,450,851       

231,900           (590,692)        
8,997,983        7,207,407       

14,609,322      13,736,239     
539,391           543,455          

15,533,138      -                 
(33,276,041)     -                 

68,210             -                 
4,015,228        893,719          

(5,001,421)       22,928,877     

263,204,742    185,672,587   

231,900           1,803,920       
(321,017,626)   (183,732,156) 

167,000           (8,560,277)     
(4,200,317)       12,835,214     
64,366,601      70,399,571     

(260,452,442)
   

(107,253,728)
 

2,752,300
        

78,418,859
     

------------Rupees-----------

-------No. of shares-------

------------Rupees-----------

36 TRANSACTIONS AND BALANCES WITH RELATED PARTIES

 The details of the Company's related par�es, with whom the Company had transac�ons during the year or has balances 
outstanding as at the repor�ng date, are as follows:

 Name of related party    Nature and basis of rela�onship

 Mr. Javed Zahur      Major Sponsor
 Mr. Hassan Zahur      Immediate family member of Major Sponsor
 Mr. Syed Jawed Ali     Key Management Personnel [Chief Execu�ve]
 Mr. Imran Zaid     Key Management Personnel [Director]
 Mr. Muhammad Sheraz    Key Management Personnel [Director]
 Technic Engineering and Fabrica�on (Private) Limited Associated Company [Common Directorship]
 ITANZ Infinity Pty Limited    Associated Company [Significant Influence]

 The Company con�nues to have a policy whereby all transac�ons with related par�es entered into in the ordinary course of 
business are carried out on commercial terms and condi�ons which are equivalent to those prevailing in an arm's length 
transac�on except for short term borrowings, advances payable, office, u�lity, director's and chief execu�ve's 
remunera�on. Detail of transac�ons with related par�es during the repor�ng period and balances with them as at the 
repor�ng date are as follows:

36.1 Transac�ons with related par�es

There were no transac�ons with the related party during the repor�ng period except as follows:

Nature of rela�onship Nature of transac�ons

Associated companies Revenue from contracts

Key management personnel Short term employee benefits

36.2 Balances with related par�es

Nature of rela�onship Nature of transac�ons

Trade receivables

Advances payable

Advances payable

Short term borrowings

Short term employee benefits payable

Nature of balance Presented in financial statements as Note

Receivables Trade receivables 20

Contract liabili�es Advances from customers 12

Key management personnel

Associated companies

RUPEES RUPEES

30-Jun-25 30-Jun-24

[restated]

411,092,939    299,648,132   

15,379,669      -                 

748,835,856    377,359,954   

746,625           746,625          

627,302           627,302          

25,950,501      25,950,501     
5,799,152 -                         

RUPEES RUPEES

30-Jun-25 30-Jun-24

748,835,856    426,130,848   
30,561,835      1,602,002       

                         

                         

37 CONTRACTS WITH CUSTOMERS

37.1 Contract balances

 There are no contract assets as at the repor�ng date. The informa�on about receivables and contract liabili�es arising from 
contracts with customers is as follows:
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33 DILUTED EARNINGS PER SHARE

Profit a�ributable to ordinary shareholders

Weighted average number of ordinary shares outstanding during the year

Shares to be issued under scheme of arrangement

Diluted earnings per share

34 CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS

Cash and bank balances

35 CASH GENERATED FROM OPERATIONS

Profit before income taxes

Adjustments for non-cash and other items:

Foreign exchange gain

Provision for employees re�rement benefits

Loss/(gain) on disposal of property and equipment

Interest on short term borrowings

Amor�za�on of intangible assets

Deprecia�on of property and equipment

Impairment allowance for expected credit losses

Payables wri�en back during the year

Deposits wri�en off during the year

Provision for levies under Income Tax Ordinance, 2001

Changes in working capital

Long term deposits

Trade receivables

Deposits and prepayments

Advances and other receivables

Trade and other payables

30-Jun-25 30-Jun-24

344,836,478    158,320,505   

9,860,000        9,860,000       

97,961,500      97,961,500     

107,821,500    107,821,500   

3.20                 1.47                

RUPEES RUPEES

Note 30-Jun-25 30-Jun-24

[restated]

23 26,987,122      35,267            

26,987,122      35,267            

268,206,163    162,743,710   

(17,220,520)     (2,312,102)     
1,499,968        3,450,851       

231,900           (590,692)        
8,997,983        7,207,407       

14,609,322      13,736,239     
539,391           543,455          

15,533,138      -                 
(33,276,041)     -                 

68,210             -                 
4,015,228        893,719          

(5,001,421)       22,928,877     

263,204,742    185,672,587   

231,900           1,803,920       
(321,017,626)   (183,732,156) 

167,000           (8,560,277)     
(4,200,317)       12,835,214     
64,366,601      70,399,571     

(260,452,442)
   

(107,253,728)
 

2,752,300
        

78,418,859
     

------------Rupees-----------

-------No. of shares-------

------------Rupees-----------

36 TRANSACTIONS AND BALANCES WITH RELATED PARTIES

 The details of the Company's related par�es, with whom the Company had transac�ons during the year or has balances 
outstanding as at the repor�ng date, are as follows:

 Name of related party    Nature and basis of rela�onship

 Mr. Javed Zahur      Major Sponsor
 Mr. Hassan Zahur      Immediate family member of Major Sponsor
 Mr. Syed Jawed Ali     Key Management Personnel [Chief Execu�ve]
 Mr. Imran Zaid     Key Management Personnel [Director]
 Mr. Muhammad Sheraz    Key Management Personnel [Director]
 Technic Engineering and Fabrica�on (Private) Limited Associated Company [Common Directorship]
 ITANZ Infinity Pty Limited    Associated Company [Significant Influence]

 The Company con�nues to have a policy whereby all transac�ons with related par�es entered into in the ordinary course of 
business are carried out on commercial terms and condi�ons which are equivalent to those prevailing in an arm's length 
transac�on except for short term borrowings, advances payable, office, u�lity, director's and chief execu�ve's 
remunera�on. Detail of transac�ons with related par�es during the repor�ng period and balances with them as at the 
repor�ng date are as follows:

36.1 Transac�ons with related par�es

There were no transac�ons with the related party during the repor�ng period except as follows:

Nature of rela�onship Nature of transac�ons

Associated companies Revenue from contracts

Key management personnel Short term employee benefits

36.2 Balances with related par�es

Nature of rela�onship Nature of transac�ons

Trade receivables

Advances payable

Advances payable

Short term borrowings

Short term employee benefits payable

Nature of balance Presented in financial statements as Note

Receivables Trade receivables 20

Contract liabili�es Advances from customers 12

Key management personnel

Associated companies

RUPEES RUPEES

30-Jun-25 30-Jun-24

[restated]

411,092,939    299,648,132   

15,379,669      -                 

748,835,856    377,359,954   

746,625           746,625          

627,302           627,302          

25,950,501      25,950,501     
5,799,152 -                         

RUPEES RUPEES

30-Jun-25 30-Jun-24

748,835,856    426,130,848   
30,561,835      1,602,002       

                         

                         

37 CONTRACTS WITH CUSTOMERS

37.1 Contract balances

 There are no contract assets as at the repor�ng date. The informa�on about receivables and contract liabili�es arising from 
contracts with customers is as follows:
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37.2 Changes in contract assets and liabili�es

 There are no contract assets as at the repor�ng date. Significant changes in contract liabili�es during the year are as follows:

RUPEES RUPEES

30-Jun-25 30-Jun-24

[restated]

As at beginning of the year 1,602,002        1,602,002       

Revenue recognized against contract liability as at beginning of the year -                   -                 

Wri�en back during the year (1,602,002)       -                 

Net increase due to cash received in excess of revenue recognized 30,561,835      -                 

As at end of the year 30,561,835      1,602,002       

RUPEES RUPEES

Note 30-Jun-25 30-Jun-24

[restated]

12 48,867,657      19,842,340     

12 1,373,927        1,373,927       
12 42,893,412      87,735,355     
12 19,365,342      18,154,036     
12 1,570,000        270,000          
12 10,914,900      2,087,093       
13 97,950,501      66,001,489     

222,935,739    195,464,240   

23 6,905               6,048              

18 -                   68,210            
20 748,835,856    426,130,848   
22 8,813,915        8,980,915       
22 1,506,074        1,806,074       
22 2,832,000        2,832,000       

38.1 Financial liabili�es

Financial liabili�es at amor�zed cost

Trade creditors

Due to related par�es

Accrued liabili�es

Provident fund payable

Audit fee payable

Other payables

Short term borrowings

38.2 Financial assets

Cash in hand

Financial assets at amor�zed cost

Long term deposits

Trade receivables

Security deposits

Advances to employees

Other receivables

Cash at bank 23 26,980,217      29,219            

788,968,062
    

439,847,266
   

37.3 Impairment losses

 The Company during the year has recognized Rs. 15.533 million (30-Jun-24: Rs. nil) as impairment loss for expected credit 
losses on receivables (trade receivables) arising from the Company's contracts with customers (See note 20.1).

38 FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS

 The carrying amounts of the Company's financial instruments as at the repor�ng date are as follows:

39 FINANCIAL RISK EXPOSURE AND MANAGEMENT

 The Company’s ac�vi�es expose it to a variety of financial risks: credit risk, liquidity risk and market risk (including currency 
risk, interest rate risk and price risk). These risks affect revenues, expenses and assets and liabili�es of the Company.

 The Board of Directors has the overall responsibility for establishment and oversight of risk management framework. The 
Board of Directors has developed a risk policy that sets out fundamentals of risk management framework. The risk policy 
focuses on unpredictability of financial markets, the Company's exposure to risk of adverse effects thereof and objec�ves, 
policies and processes for measuring and managing such risks. The management team of the Company is responsible for 
administering and monitoring the financial and opera�onal financial risk management throughout the Company in 
accordance with the risk management framework.

 The Company’s exposure to financial risks, the way these risks affect the financial posi�on and performance, and forecast 
transac�ons of the Company and the manner in which such risks are managed is as follows:

39.1 Credit risk

 Credit risk is the risk of financial loss to the Company, if the counterparty to a financial instrument fails to meet its 
obliga�ons.

39.1.1 Credit risk management prac�ces

 In order to minimize credit risk, the Company has adopted a policy of only dealing with creditworthy counterpar�es and 
limi�ng significant exposure to any single counterparty, except where strategic business rela�onships jus�fy such 
concentra�on. The Company only transacts with counterpar�es that have reasonably high external credit ra�ngs. Where an 
external ra�ng is not available, the Company uses an internal credit risk grading mechanism. Par�cularly for customers, a 
dedicated team responsible for the determina�on of credit limits uses a credit scoring system to assess the poten�al as well 
as exis�ng customers’ credit quality and assigns or updates credit limits accordingly. The ageing profile of trade receivables 
and individually significant balances, along with collec�on ac�vi�es, are reviewed on a regular basis. High-risk customers 
are iden�fied and restric�ons are placed on future engagements, including requiring advance payments, phased billing 
linked to project milestones, or secure payment guarantees such as confirmed bank undertakings.

 The Company reviews the recoverable amount of each financial asset on an individual basis at each repor�ng date to ensure 
that adequate loss allowance is made in accordance with the assessment of credit risk for each financial asset. The Company 
considers a financial asset to have low credit risk when the asset has reasonably high external credit ra�ng or, if an external 
ra�ng is not available, the asset has an internal ra�ng of ‘performing’. Performing means that the counterparty has no past-
due amounts or otherwise there is no significant increase in credit risk if the amounts are past due in the normal course of 
business based on history with the counterparty.

 In assessing whether the credit risk on a financial asset has increased significantly since ini�al recogni�on, the Company 
compares the risk of a default occurring on the financial asset at the repor�ng date with the risk of a default occurring on the 
financial asset at the date of ini�al recogni�on. In making this assessment, the Company considers both quan�ta�ve and 
qualita�ve informa�on that is reasonable and supportable, including historical experience and forward looking informa�on 
that is available without undue cost or effort. Irrespec�ve of the outcome of the above assessment, the Company presumes 
that the credit risk on a financial asset has increased significantly since ini�al recogni�on when contractual payments are 
more than 30 days past due, unless the Company has reasonable and supportable informa�on that demonstrates 
otherwise. This is usually the case with various customers of the Company where the Company has long standing business 
rela�onship with these customers and any amounts that are past due by more than 30 days in the normal course of business 
are considered 'performing' based on history with the customers. Therefore despite the foregoing, the Company considers 
some past due trade receivables to have low credit risk where the counterparty has a good history of mee�ng its contractual 
cash flow obliga�ons and is expected to maintain the same in future.

 The Company regularly monitors the effec�veness of the criteria used to iden�fy whether there has been a significant 
increase in credit risk and revises them as appropriate to ensure that the criteria are capable of iden�fying significant 
increase in credit risk.The Company considers investment finance related receivables to have low credit risk when these 
have a credit risk ra�ng of ‘performing’. Performing means that the counterparty has no past due amounts or otherwise 
there is no significant increase in credit risk if the amounts are past due by less than 90 days. Any amounts past due by 90 
days or more are considered non-performing.
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37.2 Changes in contract assets and liabili�es

 There are no contract assets as at the repor�ng date. Significant changes in contract liabili�es during the year are as follows:

RUPEES RUPEES

30-Jun-25 30-Jun-24

[restated]

As at beginning of the year 1,602,002        1,602,002       

Revenue recognized against contract liability as at beginning of the year -                   -                 

Wri�en back during the year (1,602,002)       -                 

Net increase due to cash received in excess of revenue recognized 30,561,835      -                 

As at end of the year 30,561,835      1,602,002       

RUPEES RUPEES

Note 30-Jun-25 30-Jun-24

[restated]

12 48,867,657      19,842,340     

12 1,373,927        1,373,927       
12 42,893,412      87,735,355     
12 19,365,342      18,154,036     
12 1,570,000        270,000          
12 10,914,900      2,087,093       
13 97,950,501      66,001,489     

222,935,739    195,464,240   

23 6,905               6,048              

18 -                   68,210            
20 748,835,856    426,130,848   
22 8,813,915        8,980,915       
22 1,506,074        1,806,074       
22 2,832,000        2,832,000       

38.1 Financial liabili�es

Financial liabili�es at amor�zed cost

Trade creditors

Due to related par�es

Accrued liabili�es

Provident fund payable

Audit fee payable

Other payables

Short term borrowings

38.2 Financial assets

Cash in hand

Financial assets at amor�zed cost

Long term deposits

Trade receivables

Security deposits

Advances to employees

Other receivables

Cash at bank 23 26,980,217      29,219            

788,968,062
    

439,847,266
   

37.3 Impairment losses

 The Company during the year has recognized Rs. 15.533 million (30-Jun-24: Rs. nil) as impairment loss for expected credit 
losses on receivables (trade receivables) arising from the Company's contracts with customers (See note 20.1).

38 FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS

 The carrying amounts of the Company's financial instruments as at the repor�ng date are as follows:

39 FINANCIAL RISK EXPOSURE AND MANAGEMENT

 The Company’s ac�vi�es expose it to a variety of financial risks: credit risk, liquidity risk and market risk (including currency 
risk, interest rate risk and price risk). These risks affect revenues, expenses and assets and liabili�es of the Company.

 The Board of Directors has the overall responsibility for establishment and oversight of risk management framework. The 
Board of Directors has developed a risk policy that sets out fundamentals of risk management framework. The risk policy 
focuses on unpredictability of financial markets, the Company's exposure to risk of adverse effects thereof and objec�ves, 
policies and processes for measuring and managing such risks. The management team of the Company is responsible for 
administering and monitoring the financial and opera�onal financial risk management throughout the Company in 
accordance with the risk management framework.

 The Company’s exposure to financial risks, the way these risks affect the financial posi�on and performance, and forecast 
transac�ons of the Company and the manner in which such risks are managed is as follows:

39.1 Credit risk

 Credit risk is the risk of financial loss to the Company, if the counterparty to a financial instrument fails to meet its 
obliga�ons.

39.1.1 Credit risk management prac�ces

 In order to minimize credit risk, the Company has adopted a policy of only dealing with creditworthy counterpar�es and 
limi�ng significant exposure to any single counterparty, except where strategic business rela�onships jus�fy such 
concentra�on. The Company only transacts with counterpar�es that have reasonably high external credit ra�ngs. Where an 
external ra�ng is not available, the Company uses an internal credit risk grading mechanism. Par�cularly for customers, a 
dedicated team responsible for the determina�on of credit limits uses a credit scoring system to assess the poten�al as well 
as exis�ng customers’ credit quality and assigns or updates credit limits accordingly. The ageing profile of trade receivables 
and individually significant balances, along with collec�on ac�vi�es, are reviewed on a regular basis. High-risk customers 
are iden�fied and restric�ons are placed on future engagements, including requiring advance payments, phased billing 
linked to project milestones, or secure payment guarantees such as confirmed bank undertakings.

 The Company reviews the recoverable amount of each financial asset on an individual basis at each repor�ng date to ensure 
that adequate loss allowance is made in accordance with the assessment of credit risk for each financial asset. The Company 
considers a financial asset to have low credit risk when the asset has reasonably high external credit ra�ng or, if an external 
ra�ng is not available, the asset has an internal ra�ng of ‘performing’. Performing means that the counterparty has no past-
due amounts or otherwise there is no significant increase in credit risk if the amounts are past due in the normal course of 
business based on history with the counterparty.

 In assessing whether the credit risk on a financial asset has increased significantly since ini�al recogni�on, the Company 
compares the risk of a default occurring on the financial asset at the repor�ng date with the risk of a default occurring on the 
financial asset at the date of ini�al recogni�on. In making this assessment, the Company considers both quan�ta�ve and 
qualita�ve informa�on that is reasonable and supportable, including historical experience and forward looking informa�on 
that is available without undue cost or effort. Irrespec�ve of the outcome of the above assessment, the Company presumes 
that the credit risk on a financial asset has increased significantly since ini�al recogni�on when contractual payments are 
more than 30 days past due, unless the Company has reasonable and supportable informa�on that demonstrates 
otherwise. This is usually the case with various customers of the Company where the Company has long standing business 
rela�onship with these customers and any amounts that are past due by more than 30 days in the normal course of business 
are considered 'performing' based on history with the customers. Therefore despite the foregoing, the Company considers 
some past due trade receivables to have low credit risk where the counterparty has a good history of mee�ng its contractual 
cash flow obliga�ons and is expected to maintain the same in future.

 The Company regularly monitors the effec�veness of the criteria used to iden�fy whether there has been a significant 
increase in credit risk and revises them as appropriate to ensure that the criteria are capable of iden�fying significant 
increase in credit risk.The Company considers investment finance related receivables to have low credit risk when these 
have a credit risk ra�ng of ‘performing’. Performing means that the counterparty has no past due amounts or otherwise 
there is no significant increase in credit risk if the amounts are past due by less than 90 days. Any amounts past due by 90 
days or more are considered non-performing.
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 The Company considers 'default' to have occurred when the financial asset is credit-impaired. A financial asset is considered 
to be credit-impaired when one or more events that have a detrimental impact on the es�mated future cash flows of that 
financial asset have occurred. The Company writes off a financial asset when there is informa�on indica�ng that the 
counterparty is in severe financial condi�on and there is no realis�c prospect of recovery.The Company considers 
investment finance related receivables to have low credit risk when these have a credit risk ra�ng of ‘performing’. 
Performing means that the counterparty has no past due amounts or otherwise there is no significant increase in credit risk 
if the amounts are past due by less than 90 days. Any amounts past due by 90 days or more are considered non-performing.

 The Company's credit risk grading framework comprises the following categories and basis for recognizing impairment 
allowance for Expected Credit Losses ['ECL'] for each category. The Company considers investment finance related 
receivables to have low credit risk when these have a credit risk ra�ng of ‘performing’. Performing means that the 
counterparty has no past due amounts or otherwise there is no significant increase in credit risk if the amounts are past due 
by less than 90 days. Any amounts past due by 90 days or more are considered non-performing.

Category Descrip�on Basis for recognizing ECL

Performing The counterparty has low credit risk Trade receivables: Life�me ECL

Other assets: 12-month ECL

Doub�ul Credit risk has increased significantly since ini�al recogni�on Life�me ECL

In-default There is evidence indica�ng the asset is credit-impaired Life�me ECL

Write-off There is no realis�c prospect of recovery Amount is wri�en-off

RUPEES RUPEES

Note 30-Jun-25 30-Jun-24

[restated]

18 -                   68,210            

20 764,368,994    426,130,848   

21 8,813,915        8,980,915       

22 1,506,074        1,806,074       

22 2,832,000        2,832,000       

Long term deposits with u�lity companies

Trade receivables

Security deposits

Advances to employees

Other receivables

Bank Balances 23 26,980,217      29,219            

804,501,200    439,847,266   

39.1.2 Exposure to credit risk

 Credit risk principally arises from 'financial assets carried at amor�zed cost' held by the Company as at the repor�ng date. 
The maximum exposure to credit risk as at the repor�ng date is as follows:

39.1.3 Credit quality and impairment

 Credit quality of financial assets is assessed by reference to external credit ra�ngs, where available, or to internal credit risk 
grading. The credit quality of the Company’s financial assets exposed to credit risk is as follows:

External credit Internal credit 12-month or Gross carrying Loss

ra�ng risk grading life-�me ECL amount allowance

RUPEES RUPEES

N/A Doub�ul Life�me ECL 764,368,994    15,533,138     

N/A Performing 12-month ECL 8,813,915        -                 

N/A Performing 12-month ECL 1,506,074        -                 

N/A Performing 12-month ECL 2,832,000        -                 

A-1+ -  A1+ Performing 12-month ECL 26,980,217      -                 

804,501,200    15,533,138     

Trade receivables

Security deposits

Advances to employees

Other receivables

Bank Balances

30-Jun-25

External Internal 12-month or Gross carrying Loss

ra�ng risk grading life-�me ECL amount allowance

RUPEES RUPEES

N/A Performing 12-month ECL 68,210             -                 

N/A Performing Life�me ECL 426,130,848    -                 

N/A Performing 12-month ECL 8,980,915
        

-
                 

N/A Performing 12-month ECL 1,806,074
        

-
                 

N/A Performing 12-month ECL 2,832,000
        

-
                 

Long term deposits with

u�lity companies

Trade receivables

Security deposits

Advances to employees

Other receivables

Bank balances A-1+ -  A1+ Performing 12-month ECL 29,219
             

-
                 

439,847,266
    

-
                 

30-Jun-24

 (a) Long term deposits with u�lity companies

  Deposits with u�lity companies are placed for an indefinite period without any fixed maturity. Therefore, no credit risk 
has been associated with these financial assets and accordingly no impairment loss allowance has been made, except 
where there are no realis�c prospects of recovery, in which case the deposits are considered to be 'Write-off' and thus 
adequate impairment loss allowance has been made for deposits classified as 'Write-off'.

 (b) Trade receivables

  For trade receivables, the Company has applied the simplified approach in IFRS 9 to measure the loss allowance at 
life�me ECL. The Company determines the expected credit losses on trade receivables by using internal credit risk 
gradings. As at the repor�ng date, all trade receivables are considered 'doub�ul' as there is significant increase in credit 
risk in respect of these receivables since ini�al recogni�on. The ageing analysis of trade receivables as at the repor�ng 
date is as follows:

RUPEES RUPEES

30-Jun-25 30-Jun-24

Neither past due nor impaired 77,965,942      52,892,591     

Past due by up to 30 days -                   -                 

Past due by 31 days to 180 days 223,693,504    212,094,551   
Past due by 181 days or more 462,709,549    161,143,706   

764,368,995    426,130,848   

 (c) Security deposits

  These primarily represent deposits with various customers for performance obliga�ons under the revenue contracts 
and will be refunded on comple�on/termina�on of the contracts. Due to long standing business rela�onships with 
these counterpar�es management does not expect any credit loss, except where the contract has ended and the 
related deposit has not been refunded, in which case these are considered to be 'in-default' and thus adequate 
impairment loss allowance has been made for deposits classified as 'in-default'. No credit risk has been associated with 
the security deposits considered 'performing' and accordingly no impairment loss allowance has been made.

 (d) Advances to employees

  Advances to employees have been given against future salaries and post-employment benefits. Therefore, no credit 
risk has been associated with these financial assets and accordingly no loss allowance has been made.

 (e) Other receivables

  These primarily represent receivables from the buyers of vehicles, disposed of in the ordinary course of business. Due 
to long standing business rela�onships with these counterpar�es management does not expect any credit loss, except 
where the counterpar�es are defaulted or winding-up pe��ons has been ini�ated against these counterpar�es, in 
which case these are considered to be 'in-default' and thus adequate impairment loss allowance has been made for 
receivables classified as 'in-default'. No credit risk has been associated with the receivables considered 'performing' 
and accordingly no impairment loss allowance has been made.
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 The Company considers 'default' to have occurred when the financial asset is credit-impaired. A financial asset is considered 
to be credit-impaired when one or more events that have a detrimental impact on the es�mated future cash flows of that 
financial asset have occurred. The Company writes off a financial asset when there is informa�on indica�ng that the 
counterparty is in severe financial condi�on and there is no realis�c prospect of recovery.The Company considers 
investment finance related receivables to have low credit risk when these have a credit risk ra�ng of ‘performing’. 
Performing means that the counterparty has no past due amounts or otherwise there is no significant increase in credit risk 
if the amounts are past due by less than 90 days. Any amounts past due by 90 days or more are considered non-performing.

 The Company's credit risk grading framework comprises the following categories and basis for recognizing impairment 
allowance for Expected Credit Losses ['ECL'] for each category. The Company considers investment finance related 
receivables to have low credit risk when these have a credit risk ra�ng of ‘performing’. Performing means that the 
counterparty has no past due amounts or otherwise there is no significant increase in credit risk if the amounts are past due 
by less than 90 days. Any amounts past due by 90 days or more are considered non-performing.

Category Descrip�on Basis for recognizing ECL

Performing The counterparty has low credit risk Trade receivables: Life�me ECL

Other assets: 12-month ECL

Doub�ul Credit risk has increased significantly since ini�al recogni�on Life�me ECL

In-default There is evidence indica�ng the asset is credit-impaired Life�me ECL

Write-off There is no realis�c prospect of recovery Amount is wri�en-off

RUPEES RUPEES

Note 30-Jun-25 30-Jun-24

[restated]

18 -                   68,210            

20 764,368,994    426,130,848   

21 8,813,915        8,980,915       

22 1,506,074        1,806,074       

22 2,832,000        2,832,000       

Long term deposits with u�lity companies

Trade receivables

Security deposits

Advances to employees

Other receivables

Bank Balances 23 26,980,217      29,219            

804,501,200    439,847,266   

39.1.2 Exposure to credit risk

 Credit risk principally arises from 'financial assets carried at amor�zed cost' held by the Company as at the repor�ng date. 
The maximum exposure to credit risk as at the repor�ng date is as follows:

39.1.3 Credit quality and impairment

 Credit quality of financial assets is assessed by reference to external credit ra�ngs, where available, or to internal credit risk 
grading. The credit quality of the Company’s financial assets exposed to credit risk is as follows:

External credit Internal credit 12-month or Gross carrying Loss

ra�ng risk grading life-�me ECL amount allowance

RUPEES RUPEES

N/A Doub�ul Life�me ECL 764,368,994    15,533,138     

N/A Performing 12-month ECL 8,813,915        -                 

N/A Performing 12-month ECL 1,506,074        -                 

N/A Performing 12-month ECL 2,832,000        -                 

A-1+ -  A1+ Performing 12-month ECL 26,980,217      -                 

804,501,200    15,533,138     

Trade receivables

Security deposits

Advances to employees

Other receivables

Bank Balances

30-Jun-25

External Internal 12-month or Gross carrying Loss

ra�ng risk grading life-�me ECL amount allowance

RUPEES RUPEES

N/A Performing 12-month ECL 68,210             -                 

N/A Performing Life�me ECL 426,130,848    -                 

N/A Performing 12-month ECL 8,980,915
        

-
                 

N/A Performing 12-month ECL 1,806,074
        

-
                 

N/A Performing 12-month ECL 2,832,000
        

-
                 

Long term deposits with

u�lity companies

Trade receivables

Security deposits

Advances to employees

Other receivables

Bank balances A-1+ -  A1+ Performing 12-month ECL 29,219
             

-
                 

439,847,266
    

-
                 

30-Jun-24

 (a) Long term deposits with u�lity companies

  Deposits with u�lity companies are placed for an indefinite period without any fixed maturity. Therefore, no credit risk 
has been associated with these financial assets and accordingly no impairment loss allowance has been made, except 
where there are no realis�c prospects of recovery, in which case the deposits are considered to be 'Write-off' and thus 
adequate impairment loss allowance has been made for deposits classified as 'Write-off'.

 (b) Trade receivables

  For trade receivables, the Company has applied the simplified approach in IFRS 9 to measure the loss allowance at 
life�me ECL. The Company determines the expected credit losses on trade receivables by using internal credit risk 
gradings. As at the repor�ng date, all trade receivables are considered 'doub�ul' as there is significant increase in credit 
risk in respect of these receivables since ini�al recogni�on. The ageing analysis of trade receivables as at the repor�ng 
date is as follows:

RUPEES RUPEES

30-Jun-25 30-Jun-24

Neither past due nor impaired 77,965,942      52,892,591     

Past due by up to 30 days -                   -                 

Past due by 31 days to 180 days 223,693,504    212,094,551   
Past due by 181 days or more 462,709,549    161,143,706   

764,368,995    426,130,848   

 (c) Security deposits

  These primarily represent deposits with various customers for performance obliga�ons under the revenue contracts 
and will be refunded on comple�on/termina�on of the contracts. Due to long standing business rela�onships with 
these counterpar�es management does not expect any credit loss, except where the contract has ended and the 
related deposit has not been refunded, in which case these are considered to be 'in-default' and thus adequate 
impairment loss allowance has been made for deposits classified as 'in-default'. No credit risk has been associated with 
the security deposits considered 'performing' and accordingly no impairment loss allowance has been made.

 (d) Advances to employees

  Advances to employees have been given against future salaries and post-employment benefits. Therefore, no credit 
risk has been associated with these financial assets and accordingly no loss allowance has been made.

 (e) Other receivables

  These primarily represent receivables from the buyers of vehicles, disposed of in the ordinary course of business. Due 
to long standing business rela�onships with these counterpar�es management does not expect any credit loss, except 
where the counterpar�es are defaulted or winding-up pe��ons has been ini�ated against these counterpar�es, in 
which case these are considered to be 'in-default' and thus adequate impairment loss allowance has been made for 
receivables classified as 'in-default'. No credit risk has been associated with the receivables considered 'performing' 
and accordingly no impairment loss allowance has been made.
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 (f) Bank balances

  The bankers of the Company have reasonably high credit ra�ngs as determined by various independent credit ra�ng 
agencies. Due to long standing business rela�onships with these counterpar�es and considering their strong financial 
standing, management does not expect any credit loss. Therefore, no credit risk has been associated with these 
financial assets and accordingly no impairment loss allowance has been made.

39.1.4 Concentra�ons of credit risk

 The Company's maximum exposure to credit risk, as at the repor�ng date, by type of counter-party is as follows:

RUPEES RUPEES

30-Jun-25 30-Jun-24

764,368,994    426,130,848   

26,980,217      29,219            

13,151,989      13,687,199     

804,501,200    439,847,266   

RUPEES RUPEES

Note 30-Jun-25 30-Jun-24

-                   -                 

20 15,533,138      -                 
-                   -                 

15,533,138      -                 

15,533,138      -                 

Customers

Banking companies and financial ins�tu�ons

Others

39.1.5 Collateral held

39.1.6 Changes in impairment allowance for expected credit losses

The changes in impairment allowance for expected credit losses are as follows:

As at beginning of the year

Impairment loss on trade receivables

recognized during the year

reversed during the year

Net change in impairment allowance

As at end of the year

The Company does not hold any collateral to secure its financial assets.

39.2 Liquidity risk

 Liquidity risk is the risk that the Company will not be able to meet its financial obliga�ons as they fall due.

39.2.1 Liquidity risk management

 The Company's approach to managing liquidity risk is to ensure, as far as possible, that it will always have sufficient liquidity 
to meet its liabili�es when due, under both normal and stressed condi�ons, without incurring unacceptable losses or 
risking damage to the Company's reputa�on. The Company manages liquidity risk maintaining adequate reserves, banking 
facili�es, reserve borrowing facili�es and the availability of financing through related par�es, by con�nuously monitoring 
forecast and actual cashflows, and by matching the maturity profiles of financial assets and liabili�es. Details of undrawn 
facili�es that the Company has at its disposal to further reduce liquidity risk are referred to in note 13.5. There were no 
changes in the Company's approach to liquidity risk management during the year.

39.2.2 Exposure to liquidity risk

 The following is the analysis of contractual maturi�es of financial liabili�es, including es�mated interest payments.

Carrying Contractual One year One to More than

amount cash flows or less five years five years

Trade creditors 48,867,657     48,867,657     48,867,657     -                   -                 

Due to related par�es 1,373,927       1,373,927       1,373,927       -                   -                 

Accrued liabili�es 42,893,412     42,893,412     42,893,412     -                   -                 

Provident fund payable 19,365,342     19,365,342     19,365,342     -                   -                 

Audit fee payable 1,570,000       1,570,000       1,570,000       -                   -                 

Other payables 10,914,900     10,914,900     10,914,900     -                   -                 

Short term borrowings 97,950,501     108,547,761   108,547,761   -                   -                 

222,935,739   233,532,999   233,532,999   -                   -                 

Carrying Contractual One year One to More than

amount cash flows or less five years five years

Trade creditors 19,842,340     19,842,340     19,842,340     -                   -                 
Due to related par�es 1,373,927       1,373,927       1,373,927       -                   -                 
Accrued liabili�es 87,735,355     87,735,355     87,735,355     -                   -                 
Provident fund payable 18,154,036     18,154,036     18,154,036     -                   -                 
Audit fee payable 270,000          270,000          270,000          -                   -                 
Other payables 2,087,093       2,087,093       2,087,093       -                   -                 
Short term borrowings 66,001,489     68,107,289     68,107,289     -                   -                 

195,464,240   197,570,040   197,570,040   -                   -                 

------------Rupees-----------

------------Rupees-----------

30-Jun-24

30-Jun-25

39.3 Market risk

39.3.1 Currency risk

 Currency risk is the risk that fair values or future cash flows of a financial instrument will fluctuate because of changes in 
foreign exchange rates. Currency risk arises from transac�ons and resul�ng balances that are denominated in a currency 
other than func�onal currency. 

 (a) Currency risk management

  The Company manages its exposure to currency risk through con�nuous monitoring of expected/forecast commi�ed 
and non-commi�ed foreign currency payments and receipts. Reports on forecast foreign currency transac�ons, 
receipts and payments are prepared on monthly basis, exposure to currency risk is measured and appropriate steps 
are taken to ensure that such exposure is minimized while op�mizing return. This includes matching of foreign 
currency liabili�es/payments to assets/receipts and using source inputs in foreign currency, if considered necessary. 
There were no changes in the Company's approach to currency risk management during the year.

 (b) Exposure to currency risk

  The Company's exposure to currency risk as at the repor�ng date is as follows:
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 (f) Bank balances

  The bankers of the Company have reasonably high credit ra�ngs as determined by various independent credit ra�ng 
agencies. Due to long standing business rela�onships with these counterpar�es and considering their strong financial 
standing, management does not expect any credit loss. Therefore, no credit risk has been associated with these 
financial assets and accordingly no impairment loss allowance has been made.

39.1.4 Concentra�ons of credit risk
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RUPEES RUPEES

30-Jun-25 30-Jun-24

764,368,994    426,130,848   

26,980,217      29,219            

13,151,989      13,687,199     

804,501,200    439,847,266   

RUPEES RUPEES

Note 30-Jun-25 30-Jun-24

-                   -                 

20 15,533,138      -                 
-                   -                 

15,533,138      -                 

15,533,138      -                 

Customers

Banking companies and financial ins�tu�ons

Others

39.1.5 Collateral held

39.1.6 Changes in impairment allowance for expected credit losses

The changes in impairment allowance for expected credit losses are as follows:

As at beginning of the year

Impairment loss on trade receivables

recognized during the year

reversed during the year

Net change in impairment allowance

As at end of the year

The Company does not hold any collateral to secure its financial assets.
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Carrying Contractual One year One to More than

amount cash flows or less five years five years
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222,935,739   233,532,999   233,532,999   -                   -                 

Carrying Contractual One year One to More than

amount cash flows or less five years five years
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Other payables 2,087,093       2,087,093       2,087,093       -                   -                 
Short term borrowings 66,001,489     68,107,289     68,107,289     -                   -                 

195,464,240   197,570,040   197,570,040   -                   -                 

------------Rupees-----------

------------Rupees-----------

30-Jun-24

30-Jun-25
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and non-commi�ed foreign currency payments and receipts. Reports on forecast foreign currency transac�ons, 
receipts and payments are prepared on monthly basis, exposure to currency risk is measured and appropriate steps 
are taken to ensure that such exposure is minimized while op�mizing return. This includes matching of foreign 
currency liabili�es/payments to assets/receipts and using source inputs in foreign currency, if considered necessary. 
There were no changes in the Company's approach to currency risk management during the year.
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  The Company's exposure to currency risk as at the repor�ng date is as follows:
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RUPEES RUPEES

30-Jun-25 30-Jun-24

Financial assets

Trade receivables

AUD 748,835,856    377,359,953   

748,835,856    377,359,953   

Financial liabili�es -                   -                 

Net statement of financial posi�on exposure 748,835,856    377,359,953   

Foreign currency commitments -                   -                 

Net exposure 748,835,856    377,359,953   

 (c) Sensi�vity analysis

  A five percent apprecia�on in Pak Rupee against foreign currencies would have increased profit for the year and equity 
as at the repor�ng date by Rs. 37.44 million million (30-Jun-24: Rs. 18.87 million). A five percent deprecia�on in Pak 
Rupee would have had an equal but opposite effect on profit for the year and equity. The analysis assumes that all 
other variables, in par�cular interest rates, remain constant and ignores the impact, if any, on provision for levies and 
income taxes for the year. There were no changes in the methods and assump�ons used in preparing the sensi�vity 
analysis.

39.3.2 Interest rate risk

 Interest rate risk is the risk that fair values or future cash flows of a financial instrument will fluctuate because of changes in 
interest rates.

 (a) Interest rate risk management

  The Company manages interest rate risk by analyzing its interest rate exposure on a dynamic basis. Cash flow interest 
rate risk is managed by simula�ng various scenarios taking into considera�on refinancing, renewal of exis�ng posi�ons 
and alterna�ve financing. Based on these scenarios, the Company calculates impact on profit a�er taxa�on and equity 
of defined interest rate shi�, mostly 100 basis points. There were no changes in Company's approach to interest rate 
risk management during the year.

 (b) Exposure to interest rate risk

  The effec�ve interest rates for interest bearing financial instruments are men�oned in relevant notes to the financial 
statements. The Company's interest bearing financial instruments as at the repor�ng date are as follows:

RUPEES RUPEES

30-Jun-25 30-Jun-24

Fixed rate instruments

Financial assets -                   -                 

Financial liabili�es 57,000,000      25,050,988     

Variable rate instruments

Financial assets -                   -                 
Financial liabili�es -                   -                 

(c) Fair value sensi�vity analysis for fixed rate instruments

The Company does not account for its fixed rate instruments at fair value.

39.3.3 Price risk

 Other price risk represents the risk that the fair value or future cash flows of financial instrument will fluctuate because of 
changes in market prices, other than those arising from interest rate risk or currency risk, whether those changes are caused 
by factors specific to the individual financial instrument or its issuer, or factors affec�ng all similar financial instruments. The 
Company is not exposed to any price risk as at the repor�ng date.

40 CAPITAL MANAGEMENT

 The Company's objec�ve when managing capital is to safeguard the Company's ability to con�nue as going concern while 
providing returns for  shareholders and benefits for other stakeholders and to maintain an op�mal capital structure through 
debt and equity balance. The Company manages its capital structure and makes adjustments to it in light of changes in 
economic condi�ons. In order to maintain or adjust the capital structure, the Company may adjust the amount of dividends 
paid to shareholders or issue of new shares. Consistent with others in industry, the Company monitors capital on the basis of 
gearing ra�o which is debt divided by total capital employed. Debt comprises short term loan from directors, sponsors, 
related par�es and other individuals. Total capital employed includes total equity plus debt. The gearing ra�os as at the 
repor�ng date are as follows:

Total debt

Total equity

Total capital employed

Gearing ra�o

41 FAIR VALUE MEASUREMENTS

42 MORTGAGES AND CHARGES

Hypotheca�on of fixed assets

Hypotheca�on of current assets

None of the assets and liabili�es are measured at fair value.

30-Jun-25 30-Jun-24

97,950,501      66,001,489     

626,640,853    281,276,076   

724,591,354    347,277,565   

13.52               19.01              

RUPEES RUPEES

30-Jun-25 30-Jun-24

-                   -                 
125,000,000    25,000,000     

------------Rupees-----------

------------Rupees-----------

------------Rupees-----------

%age

 The Company is not subject to externally imposed capital requirements. There were no changes in the Company's approach 
to capital management during the year.

43 REMUNERATION OF CHIEF EXECUTIVE, DIRECTORS AND EXECUTIVES

 The aggregate amount charged to profit or loss in respect of chief execu�ve, directors and execu�ves on account of 
managerial remunera�on, allowances and perquisites, post employment benefits and the number of such directors and 
execu�ves is as follows:
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RUPEES RUPEES

30-Jun-25 30-Jun-24
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of defined interest rate shi�, mostly 100 basis points. There were no changes in Company's approach to interest rate 
risk management during the year.

 (b) Exposure to interest rate risk

  The effec�ve interest rates for interest bearing financial instruments are men�oned in relevant notes to the financial 
statements. The Company's interest bearing financial instruments as at the repor�ng date are as follows:

RUPEES RUPEES

30-Jun-25 30-Jun-24
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changes in market prices, other than those arising from interest rate risk or currency risk, whether those changes are caused 
by factors specific to the individual financial instrument or its issuer, or factors affec�ng all similar financial instruments. The 
Company is not exposed to any price risk as at the repor�ng date.

40 CAPITAL MANAGEMENT

 The Company's objec�ve when managing capital is to safeguard the Company's ability to con�nue as going concern while 
providing returns for  shareholders and benefits for other stakeholders and to maintain an op�mal capital structure through 
debt and equity balance. The Company manages its capital structure and makes adjustments to it in light of changes in 
economic condi�ons. In order to maintain or adjust the capital structure, the Company may adjust the amount of dividends 
paid to shareholders or issue of new shares. Consistent with others in industry, the Company monitors capital on the basis of 
gearing ra�o which is debt divided by total capital employed. Debt comprises short term loan from directors, sponsors, 
related par�es and other individuals. Total capital employed includes total equity plus debt. The gearing ra�os as at the 
repor�ng date are as follows:

Total debt

Total equity

Total capital employed

Gearing ra�o

41 FAIR VALUE MEASUREMENTS

42 MORTGAGES AND CHARGES

Hypotheca�on of fixed assets

Hypotheca�on of current assets

None of the assets and liabili�es are measured at fair value.

30-Jun-25 30-Jun-24

97,950,501      66,001,489     

626,640,853    281,276,076   

724,591,354    347,277,565   

13.52               19.01              

RUPEES RUPEES

30-Jun-25 30-Jun-24

-                   -                 
125,000,000    25,000,000     

------------Rupees-----------

------------Rupees-----------

------------Rupees-----------

%age

 The Company is not subject to externally imposed capital requirements. There were no changes in the Company's approach 
to capital management during the year.

43 REMUNERATION OF CHIEF EXECUTIVE, DIRECTORS AND EXECUTIVES

 The aggregate amount charged to profit or loss in respect of chief execu�ve, directors and execu�ves on account of 
managerial remunera�on, allowances and perquisites, post employment benefits and the number of such directors and 
execu�ves is as follows:
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Chief Execu�ve Directors Execu�ves

Managerial remunera�on 5,564,664       9,815,005        36,684,912     

Post employment benefits 222,588          142,712           877,569          

5,787,252       9,957,717        37,562,481     

Number of persons 1                     6                      13                   

Chief Execu�ve Directors Execu�ves

Remunera�on -                 -                   -                 

Post employment benefits -                 -                   -                 

-                 -                   -                 

Number of persons 1                     6                      -                 

 30-Jun-25 

------------Rupees-----------

------------Rupees-----------

 30-Jun-24 

44 SEGMENT REPORTING

44.1 The Company is a single opera�ng segment.

44.2 All non-current assets of the Company are situated in Pakistan. 

44.3 All sales of the Company have originated from Pakistan. 

44.4 Informa�on about major customers

 Revenue derived from single significant external customer to whom sales in excess of 10% of the Company's total sales were 
made during the year is follows:

ITANZ Infinity PTY Limited

Geographical region

Australia

Pakistan

RUPEES RUPEES

30-Jun-25 30-Jun-24

411,092,939    299,648,132   

RUPEES RUPEES

30-Jun-25 30-Jun-24

411,092,939    299,648,132   

30,427,590      39,255,270     

44.5 Informa�on about geographical areas

 Revenue is allocated to regions based on the billing address of the customer at the �me of service delivery. The revenue is 
generated from the clients in the following geographical regions.

45 EMPLOYEES PROVIDENT FUND TRUST

 The Company has established a provident fund scheme for its eligible employees, with contribu�ons made by both the 
employees and the Company each at 8% (30-Jun-24: 8%) of basic salary and cost of living, where applicable, every month.In 
the previous year, an applica�on for recogni�on of the fund under the Income Tax Ordinance, 2001 was submi�ed to the 
Commissioner Inland Revenue, which remains pending as at the repor�ng date. Pending such recogni�on and the 
opera�onalisa�on of the trust, accumulated contribu�ons are retained by the Company and recorded as a payable towards 
employees (see Note 12.2).

46 ANNUAL SOFTWARE DEVELOPMENT CAPACITY

 As detailed in note 1, the Company's principle ac�vity has been amended. Resultantly, the Company, apart from yarn 
manufacturing, is now been engaged in so�ware development, subscrip�on and support, licensing and business process 
outsourcing services. Due to complicated nature of the so�ware development process annual development capacity can 
not be determined.

47 PLANT CAPACITY AND ACTUAL PRODUCTION

Number of spindles installed 

Plant capacity on the basis of u�liza�on converted into 30s count

Actual produc�on converted into 30s count

48 NUMBER OF EMPLOYEES

Total number of employees

Average number of employees

30-Jun-25 30-Jun-24

-                   -                 

-                   -                 

-                   -                 

30-Jun-25 30-Jun-24

21                    48                   
25                    48                   

------Kgs------

------Kgs------

------No.------

49 RECOVERABLE AMOUNTS AND IMPAIRMENT

 As at the repor�ng date, recoverable amounts of all assets/cash genera�ng units are equal to or exceed their carrying 
amounts, unless stated otherwise in these financial statements.

50 MERGER UNDER SCHEME OF ARRANGEMENT

 As explained in note 1.2 of these financial statements, all assets, liabili�es, contracts, licenses, obliga�ons and undertakings 
of ITANZ Technology (Private) Limited ['ITANZ'], stand transferred to and vested in the Company, as at the effec�ve date of 
common control. Net assets acquired under the scheme of arrangement are stated at their earning values under applicable 
accoun�ng standards and applicable laws. These have been recognized in accordance with the 'Predecessor Accoun�ng' 
method as prescribed under the ICAP Accoun�ng Standard for Common Control Transac�ons no�fied under S.R.O 
53(I)/2022 dated 12 January 2022.

 As entailed in S.R.O 53(I)/2022, the date of common control transac�on is the date on which the Company obtains control of 
the net assets of the ITANZ. To represent faithfully the Company's financial posi�on and result of opera�ons, the Company 
has accounted for common control transac�on from the date of such transac�on. In other words, the financial posi�on 
reflects the assets acquired and liabili�es assumed at the date of common control transac�on, not before or a�er they are 
obtained or assumed. The accoun�ng and presenta�on of common control transac�on therefore requires the restatement 
of previous period by including the pre-combina�on informa�on.
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 30-Jun-24 

44 SEGMENT REPORTING

44.1 The Company is a single opera�ng segment.

44.2 All non-current assets of the Company are situated in Pakistan. 

44.3 All sales of the Company have originated from Pakistan. 

44.4 Informa�on about major customers

 Revenue derived from single significant external customer to whom sales in excess of 10% of the Company's total sales were 
made during the year is follows:

ITANZ Infinity PTY Limited

Geographical region

Australia

Pakistan

RUPEES RUPEES

30-Jun-25 30-Jun-24

411,092,939    299,648,132   

RUPEES RUPEES

30-Jun-25 30-Jun-24

411,092,939    299,648,132   

30,427,590      39,255,270     

44.5 Informa�on about geographical areas

 Revenue is allocated to regions based on the billing address of the customer at the �me of service delivery. The revenue is 
generated from the clients in the following geographical regions.

45 EMPLOYEES PROVIDENT FUND TRUST

 The Company has established a provident fund scheme for its eligible employees, with contribu�ons made by both the 
employees and the Company each at 8% (30-Jun-24: 8%) of basic salary and cost of living, where applicable, every month.In 
the previous year, an applica�on for recogni�on of the fund under the Income Tax Ordinance, 2001 was submi�ed to the 
Commissioner Inland Revenue, which remains pending as at the repor�ng date. Pending such recogni�on and the 
opera�onalisa�on of the trust, accumulated contribu�ons are retained by the Company and recorded as a payable towards 
employees (see Note 12.2).

46 ANNUAL SOFTWARE DEVELOPMENT CAPACITY

 As detailed in note 1, the Company's principle ac�vity has been amended. Resultantly, the Company, apart from yarn 
manufacturing, is now been engaged in so�ware development, subscrip�on and support, licensing and business process 
outsourcing services. Due to complicated nature of the so�ware development process annual development capacity can 
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has accounted for common control transac�on from the date of such transac�on. In other words, the financial posi�on 
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 While accoun�ng for common control transac�on, a material error was iden�fied in the prior period financial statements of 
ITANZ Technologies (Private) Limited (the “Transferred en�ty”). Thus, to correctly provide the relevant informa�on to the 
users of financial statements about common control transac�on, the carrying amounts of items of net assets acquired 
require correc�on.

 The error pertained to the accoun�ng treatment of vehicles obtained under Shirkat-ul-Milk cum Ijarah financing 
arrangements with Dubai Islamic Bank. The Transferred en�ty had erroneously recognized these arrangements as Right-of-
Use assets and Lease Liabili�es under IFRS 16 ['Leases']. However, as the arrangements fall under the scope of IFAS 2 
['Ijarah'], they should have been accounted for as opera�ng leases, with Ujrah (rental) payments recognized as an expense 
on a straight-line basis over the term of the Ijarah, unless another systema�c basis is more representa�ve of the �me 
pa�ern of benefit. 

 A correc�on of error related to the net assets of the Transferred en�ty has been accounted for at the date of common 
control transac�on, in line with the requirements of IAS 8 Accoun�ng Policies, Changes in Accoun�ng Es�mates and Errors, 
as under:

 - Derecogni�on of previously recorded right-of-use assets and lease liabili�es.

 - Recogni�on of Ijarah rentals in the statement of profit or loss on a systema�c basis over the Ijarah term.

 - Reclassifica�on of down payment under Ijarah arrangements, previously recorded as rental expense, to long-term 
deposits.

 - Reclassifica�on of Ijarah payments previously misallocated against unrelated liabili�es

 This requires adjustment in the book values of net assets acquired under the scheme of arrangement on the date of 
common control transac�on and resultantly, measurement of these net assets received from the transferred en�ty at their 
corrected amounts.

 Details of the assets and liabili�es transferred by the transferred en�ty alongwith the rec�fica�on adjustments and 
adjustments due to scheme of arrangement as at the date of the common control transac�on are as follows:

Balance as at Rec�fica�on Other Transferred to

30-Sep-23 of error adjustments the Company

EQUITY AND LIABILITIES

Equity

Issued ordinary share capital 500,000          -                 98,100,000      98,600,000     

Discount on issue of ordinary shares -                 -                 (98,100,000)     (98,100,000)   

Reserve on merger -                 -                 (173,250)          (173,250)        

Retained earnings 164,990,536   (3,382,004)     173,250           161,781,782   

Total equity 165,490,536   (3,382,004)     -                   162,108,532   

Non current Liabili�es

Lease liabili�es 1,797,385       (1,797,385)     -                   -                 

Employees re�rement benefits 2,376,400       -                 -                   2,376,400       

4,173,785       (1,797,385)     -                   2,376,400       

Current liabili�es

Trade and other payables 76,623,975     (3,399,942)     -                   73,224,033     

Short term borrowings 112,909,159   -                 -                   112,909,159   

Income taxes payable -                 -                 -                   -                 

Current maturity of non current liabili�es -                 -                 -                   -                 

189,533,134   (3,399,942)     -                   186,133,192   

Total Liabili�es 193,706,919   (5,197,327)     -                   188,509,592   

359,197,455   (8,579,331)     -                   350,618,124   

Book Value

------------Rupees-----------

ASSETS

Non-current assets

Property and equipment 14,032,415     (11,929,001)   -                   2,103,414       
Intangible assets 85,982,850     -                 -                   85,982,850     
Long term deposits -                 3,267,470       -                   3,267,470       

100,015,265   (8,661,531)     -                   91,353,734     
Current assets

Trade receivables 240,086,590   -                 -                   240,086,590   
Deposits and prepayments 420,638          420,638          
Advances and other receivables 17,958,645     -                 -                   17,958,645     
Income tax refundable/adjustable 650,327          82,200            -                   732,527          
Cash and bank balances 65,990            -                 -                   65,990            

259,182,190   82,200            -                   259,264,390   

Total Assets 359,197,455
   

(8,579,331)
     

-
                   

350,618,124
   

Balance as at Rec�fica�on Other Transferred to

30-Sep-23 of error adjustments the Company

Book Value

------------Rupees-----------

 For the three months period ended 30 September 2023, the transferred en�ty has contributed revenue of Rs. 58.238 million 
and profit of Rs. 7.570 million. If the scheme of arrangement made effec�ve from 30 June 2023, the management es�mates 
that the above revenue and profit would have been recognized in the Company.

51 EVENTS AFTER THE REPORTING PERIOD

 Subsequent to the repor�ng period, the Company has issued 97,961,500 ordinary shares to the shareholders of ITANZ as 
considera�on for the merger. Persuant to this issuance, the Company's issued ordinary share capital has been increased 
from 9,860,000 ordinary shares to 107,821,500 ordinary shares of Rs. 10 each.

52 CORRECTION OF PRIOR PERIOD ERROR

52.1 Accrued interest

 During the repor�ng period, the Company iden�fied that in previous year, interest expense on short term borrowings was 
not recognized in the periods to which it related, but was instead recorded upon payment of the respec�ve cash flows i.e in 
current year. This treatment represented a departure from the accrual basis of accoun�ng as required under Interna�onal 
Financial Repor�ng Standards. The error has been corrected retrospec�vely by adjus�ng the amounts reported for all prior 
periods presented in these financial statements.

RUPEES

Financial statement line item Nature of impact 30-Jun-24

Finance cost Debit 2,105,800       

Accrued interest Credit 2,105,800       

Basic earnings per share Decrease 0.21                

52.2 Provision for levies and income taxes

 During the repor�ng period, the Company iden�fied that in previous year, the computa�on for levies and income taxes was 
inadvertently adjusted with the total Income tax refundable/adjustable for all years including those for which assesment 
was also made. The provision for levies and provision for taxa�on was therefore understated. The error has been corrected 
retrospec�vely by adjus�ng the amounts reported for all prior periods presented in these financial statements.
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ITANZ Technologies (Private) Limited (the “Transferred en�ty”). Thus, to correctly provide the relevant informa�on to the 
users of financial statements about common control transac�on, the carrying amounts of items of net assets acquired 
require correc�on.

 The error pertained to the accoun�ng treatment of vehicles obtained under Shirkat-ul-Milk cum Ijarah financing 
arrangements with Dubai Islamic Bank. The Transferred en�ty had erroneously recognized these arrangements as Right-of-
Use assets and Lease Liabili�es under IFRS 16 ['Leases']. However, as the arrangements fall under the scope of IFAS 2 
['Ijarah'], they should have been accounted for as opera�ng leases, with Ujrah (rental) payments recognized as an expense 
on a straight-line basis over the term of the Ijarah, unless another systema�c basis is more representa�ve of the �me 
pa�ern of benefit. 

 A correc�on of error related to the net assets of the Transferred en�ty has been accounted for at the date of common 
control transac�on, in line with the requirements of IAS 8 Accoun�ng Policies, Changes in Accoun�ng Es�mates and Errors, 
as under:

 - Derecogni�on of previously recorded right-of-use assets and lease liabili�es.

 - Recogni�on of Ijarah rentals in the statement of profit or loss on a systema�c basis over the Ijarah term.

 - Reclassifica�on of down payment under Ijarah arrangements, previously recorded as rental expense, to long-term 
deposits.

 - Reclassifica�on of Ijarah payments previously misallocated against unrelated liabili�es
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Balance as at Rec�fica�on Other Transferred to

30-Sep-23 of error adjustments the Company

EQUITY AND LIABILITIES
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359,197,455   (8,579,331)     -                   350,618,124   

Book Value

------------Rupees-----------
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Non-current assets

Property and equipment 14,032,415     (11,929,001)   -                   2,103,414       
Intangible assets 85,982,850     -                 -                   85,982,850     
Long term deposits -                 3,267,470       -                   3,267,470       

100,015,265   (8,661,531)     -                   91,353,734     
Current assets

Trade receivables 240,086,590   -                 -                   240,086,590   
Deposits and prepayments 420,638          420,638          
Advances and other receivables 17,958,645     -                 -                   17,958,645     
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Cash and bank balances 65,990            -                 -                   65,990            
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Total Assets 359,197,455
   

(8,579,331)
     

-
                   

350,618,124
   

Balance as at Rec�fica�on Other Transferred to

30-Sep-23 of error adjustments the Company

Book Value

------------Rupees-----------
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that the above revenue and profit would have been recognized in the Company.

51 EVENTS AFTER THE REPORTING PERIOD

 Subsequent to the repor�ng period, the Company has issued 97,961,500 ordinary shares to the shareholders of ITANZ as 
considera�on for the merger. Persuant to this issuance, the Company's issued ordinary share capital has been increased 
from 9,860,000 ordinary shares to 107,821,500 ordinary shares of Rs. 10 each.

52 CORRECTION OF PRIOR PERIOD ERROR

52.1 Accrued interest

 During the repor�ng period, the Company iden�fied that in previous year, interest expense on short term borrowings was 
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current year. This treatment represented a departure from the accrual basis of accoun�ng as required under Interna�onal 
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Basic earnings per share Decrease 0.21                
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RUPEES

Financial statement line item Nature of impact 30-Jun-24

Provision for levies Debit 717,336          

Levies payable Credit 717,336          

Provision for income taxes Debit 2,027,807       

Income taxes payable Credit 2,027,807       

Basic earnings per share Decrease 0.28                

RUPEES

Nature of impact 30-Jun-24

Debit 22,955,905     
Credit 22,955,905     

Financial statement line item

Trade creditors

Subscrip�ons and I.T consultancy

Basic earnings per share Increase 2.33                

52.3 Overbooked invoices for prior year

 During the repor�ng period, the Company iden�fied that in previous year, an addi�onal supplier invoice had been 
inadvertently recorded in the books of account in the preceding year, although the underlying payment terms with the 
supplier covered a three-year period and only a single invoice was contractually due. This resulted in overstatement of trade 
and other payables and corresponding expenses in the prior year. The error has been corrected retrospec�vely by adjus�ng 
the amounts reported for all prior periods presented in these financial statements.

52.4 Employees re�rement benefit charge for previous year

 Although the Company has a provident fund scheme for the employees who opt to par�cipate under the scheme but there 
was no post employment benefits available to those employees who were not par�cipants to the scheme. The Company has 
therefore recorded employees re�rement benefits charge for previous year to correctly report the obliga�on of the 
Company towards these employees. The error has been corrected retrospec�vely by adjus�ng the amounts reported for all 
prior periods presented in these financial statements.

Financial statement line item Nature of impact

Provision for employees re�rement benefits Debit

Employees re�rement benefits Credit

Basic earnings per share Decrease

53 RECLASSIFICATIONS

The following have been reclassified for be�er presenta�on.

Provision for levies under Income Tax Ordinance, 2001

Reclassified from Provision for income taxes > Current taxa�on

Reclassified to Provision for levies

Levies under Income Tax Ordinance, 2001 payable

Reclassified from Income taxes payable

Reclassified to Trade and other payables > Levies payable

Security deposits

Reclassified from Advances and other receivables > Security deposits >

Reclassified to Deposits and prepayments > Security deposits

RUPEES

30-Jun-24

3,450,851       

3,450,851       

0.35                

RUPEES RUPEES

30-Jun-25 30-Jun-24

4,015,228        893,719          

4,908,947        893,719          

8,813,915        8,980,915       

Prepaid levies

Reclassified from Income tax refundable/adjustable

Reclassified to Deposits and prepayments > Prepaid levies

Prepaid levies

Reclassified from Trade and other payables > Withholding taxes payable >

Reclassified to Deposits and prepayments > Prepaid levies

148,428           68,923            

107,447           53,743            

RUPEES RUPEES

30-Jun-25 30-Jun-24

54 GENERAL

 Compara�ve figures have been rearranged and reclassified, where necessary, for the purpose of comparison. However, 
there were no significant reclassifica�ons during the year, except for those referred to in note 52.

CHIEF EXECUTIVE OFFICER DIRECTOR CHIEF FINANCIAL OFFICER
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RUPEES
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Company towards these employees. The error has been corrected retrospec�vely by adjus�ng the amounts reported for all 
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30-Jun-25 30-Jun-24
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4,908,947        893,719          

8,813,915        8,980,915       

Prepaid levies

Reclassified from Income tax refundable/adjustable

Reclassified to Deposits and prepayments > Prepaid levies

Prepaid levies

Reclassified from Trade and other payables > Withholding taxes payable >

Reclassified to Deposits and prepayments > Prepaid levies

148,428           68,923            

107,447           53,743            

RUPEES RUPEES

30-Jun-25 30-Jun-24

54 GENERAL

 Compara�ve figures have been rearranged and reclassified, where necessary, for the purpose of comparison. However, 
there were no significant reclassifica�ons during the year, except for those referred to in note 52.

CHIEF EXECUTIVE OFFICER DIRECTOR CHIEF FINANCIAL OFFICER
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1. If a member is unable to attend the meeting, he/she may sign this form and send it to the Secretary so as to 
reach him not less than 48 hours before the time of holding the meeting. 

2. Members through CDC appointing proxies must attach attested copy of their Computerized National 
Identity Card with the proxy form.

3. The Shareholders through CDC, who wish to attend the Annual General Meeting are requested to please 
bring, original Computerized National Identity Card with copy thereof duly attested by their Bankers, 
Account number and Participant I.D number for identification purpose. 

4. In case of corporate entity, certified copy of the Board of Directors resolution / power of attorney with 
specimen signature shall be submitted (unless it has been provided earlier) along with proxy form of the 
Company.

FORM OF PROXY

ITANZ Technologies Ltd
(formerly Zahur Cotton Mills Ltd)

623-B, PCSIR Phase-II, Lahore.

Signed at

NOTES:

this the day of 2025

I/We ______________________________________________________ of _________________ being 

member(s) of ITANZ Technologies Ltd (formerly Zahur Cotton Mills Ltd), and holder of_________________ 

Ordinary Shares as per Share Register Folio No. ________________  (In case of Central Depository System 

Account Holder A/c No. _______________ Participant I.D. No. _____________-_____________) hereby 

appoint __________________________________________ of __________________ who is member of the 

company as per Register Folio No. -_______________________ (In case of Central Depository System 

Account Holder A/c No. _______________ Participant I.D. No. __________________________) or failing 

him/her ______________________________________________ of __________________ who is member of 

the Company as per Register Folio No. _____________________ (In case of Central Depository System 

Account Holder A/c No. _______________ Participant I.D. No. ________________) as my/our proxy to vote for  

me/us and on my/our behalf at the Annual General Meeting of the Company to be held on November 25, 2025 

and at any adjournment thereof.

WITNESSES: 

1. Signature

Name

Address

CNIC

2. Signature

Name

Address

CNIC

Affix
Rs. 50/=
Revenue

Stamp

(Signature should
agree with the

Specimen 
signature
registered
with the

Company)
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